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CHA’iRMAN’S STATEMENT

EFRBE

Dear valued shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Kin Yat Holdings Limited (the “Company” or
“Kin Yat”, and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”),
| am pleased to present the results for the year ended 31
March 2022 (the “Year”) to our shareholders.

MARKET OVERVIEW

After encountering the rather unknown COVID-19 in
2020, the world strived to adapt to the pandemic in 2021,
attempting to establish a new normal despite the virus
continued to evolve and mutate. Yet, despite we are more
experienced in handling uncertainties, the macro operating
environment continued to deliver new challenges: new
variants caused major markets to implement various
outbound travel restrictions, lockdown measures and
quarantine regulations, leading to a drag to consumer
sentiment and business activities; surge in commodity
prices and Renminbi appreciation have led to a significant
increase in raw materials and production cost; all at the
same time, the global freight market was severely impeded
by the pandemic, leading to a spike in freight charges,
which is part of customers’ total cost, forcing them to
mitigate risks by reducing orders or delaying shipment.

Over the years, manufactures in China also faced growing
uncertainties. The worsening Sino-U.S. trade tension
gave companies food for thought, and the rising labour
costs, along with the occasional production disruption
and lockdowns, provided the incentives to establish new
sites in order to diversify supply chain, become closer
to end markets, and be more competitive in cost. The
stringent travelling restrictions that come with the zero-
COVID policy also made executives travelling difficult,
posing further operational challenges. In fact, research
firm Gartner revealed last year that, a third of supply
chain leaders had plans to move at least some of their
manufacturing out of China before 2023. Despite China
continues to be a good place for manufacturing due to its
established and efficient supply chain system, some brand
owners still consider a “China Plus One” strategy to be
more agile and sustainable, favouring manufacturers with
diversified production solutions and extensive client reach.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEI\;I-\._ENT

RESULTS OVERVIEW AND KEY
ACHIEVEMENTS IN FY2021/22

Due to the combination client mix optimisation as well
as the aforementioned adverse impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group recorded a decline in revenue
by 14.0% year-on-year (“yoy”) to HK$2,316,315,000
(2020/21: HK$2,693,865,000). In-line with the decrease in
revenue, gross profit decreased from HK$319,645,000 of
last Year to HK$245,532,000 of the Year, with gross profit
margin largely held firm at 10.6%, as the Group continued
to implement a series of stringent cost control measures,
including stabilising raw materials cost and labour
cost, maintaining a good balance between production
schedules, as well as continuing the diversification and
optimisation of product mix. However, because of the
decrease in turnover, along with the impairment loss
from changes in fair value of the Group’s real estate
development projects in Dushan County, China, as well
as the absence of certain COVID-19-related grants
and subsidies, profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company decreased by 45.1% to HK$56,858,000
(2020/21: HK$103,626,000).

Nonetheless, FY2021/22 marked a year of change and
transformation for Kin Yat. Since 2019, the Group has
strategically reduced the revenue contribution from
a single significant customer, in order to free up the
resources and capacity for other new initiatives, while
reducing its client concentration risk. This year, the
Group has officially completed the long-term order with
the significant customer, paving the way for acquiring
new clients, tapping into new industries, or working with
existing customers on more product categories. We
are glad that our initial attempts in gearbox, beverage
machine, and other juvenile products proved to be
successful. Although they may not be able to compensate
the loss of significant order in the short-term, the move
would make us more sustainable, as we now derive
income from more industries, and is better positioned to
capture the next growth driver. We are also able to switch
from a volume-driven strategy to a margin-driven strategy,
given their smaller project scale and higher margin nature.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#%EAR A a]

¥BEMEBERN=-_ZT=-— =8
FRANEERB

MR ERF A4 & Eai2019% 8 7E ik
RERRBEOTFFZEER  AEBAUWA
RE ([RFE]) B A14.0%%E2,316,315,000
BL(ZEZZF,/ Z—8F :2,693,865,000
B) c BEBEWRARLD EF A LF
fE 319,645,000 TR D EARFEEFH
245,532,000/8 70 - ERARAEBEEEHE—
RS AESER - RIERTERME
RARSETIHA  REFFEHEER UK
BERERNESERES  ABEFNRKRE
FIE @ MN10.6% AT AREETET
B o N EARSE B A BE L 5 8 b B B B
BHEMAFESHEEHNRERSE  UEY
EWEE 19T R ER B S REBEENS
T 75 B) K B Bt AR A B BR SR FEAS v R
1451%%56,858,0008 L (ZE =% /= —
Bf 45 : 103,626,000/ 7T) °

wEm —F -~ HERREE

MW —F - B_T—NFE ~&EEEF
REMROREE-TEXFPHEATE
HUEBLERIEENEMHBE  ANA
BEEREFERETVRR NRAFE  A&EE
HZATBEFPHNRMITECERER &
WMAFEP  EERTERBRBEEPLAE
MBEEZHREERME - RMAEEHE K
MukEmdbRERSEDAFLT]  XBREF
AR - #AEEHEB RBEHEREHR
BABEBAEMREL  BHBERMERR
Bl BPRESEAHEEZTERDEA
YEAHEBSBEET —EZERRH ) - HNIA
BREE/NMEMBRES BT AE
EERBICASIUBE L E AN BRI -




CHA’iRMAN’S STATEMENT

FRE|E

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES

Looking ahead, we will continue to embrace our
diversification strategy in order to mitigate the risks from
concentrated customer portfolio and production base.
As a leading manufacturing solutions provider with good
reputation in the industry, we will continue to expand
our customer portfolio by exploring potential customers
in different industries, especially in emerging markets
such as electric vehicles and coffee machines, where we
already have presence. As COVID-19 has boosted the
demand of some businesses, we will target those sectors
to further expand our revenue stream and increase our
market share.

On existing customers, the Group will look to maintain
good relationship with them to ensure stable order volume
and cash flow. Leveraging our production expertise and
technological know-how, we will also look to provide them
with more products and value, such as offering gearbox to
our existing motor customers.

In addition to our traditional manufacturing business,
the Group will also utilise the spared resources and
capacities to explore the Original Brand Manufacturing
(OBM) business. Under its house brand, Kin Yat has
already housed its ‘Standard Motor’. In the medium-term,
the Group will actively seek OBM opportunities that are
complementary to our existing clients to enhance brand
awareness and profit margin. The evolvement into a
brand and patent owner should also greatly increase the
sustainability of our businesses.

Meanwhile, many brand customers have been seeking
flexible production solutions since the Sino-US trade
tension in 2018. The pandemic only reinforces the idea as
a countermeasure to the global unpredictability. Hence,
in addition to our dual manufacturing base in China and
Malaysia, we are also actively looking to set up another
new production site in Southeast Asia, providing our
customers with potentially lower direct labour cost,
logistics cost, and closer proximity to destination markets.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEI\;I-\._\ENT

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES

(continued)

To prepare for the unexpected, the Group would continue
its stringent cost measures to cope with the rising
labour, raw materials and logistic costs. The Group will
also maintain its solid financial position, by remaining
prudent on investment and be open to asset optimisation
opportunities, in order to generate stable cashflow for
business development.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to send
our heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
business partners and our professional teams for their
dedicated support and devoted contribution. The Group
is confident that with a strong foundation and vision
for further development, we can stand firm in a volatile
environment and move forward steadily.

Cheng Chor Kit
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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Kin Yat is one of the leading industrial enterprises primarily
engaged in the development and production of niche,
technology-driven and quality electrical and electronic
products as well as a premier provider of electric motor
drives and related products under its own house brand.
Leveraging its four decades of experience in the industry
and strong research and development (“R&D”) capability,
the Group has been strengthening its resilience in riding
the waves of changes in geo-political and macroeconomic
landscape by deploying a multi-pronged strategy which
would involve rebalancing of customer mix, geographical
diversification in production base and reshaping of
product mix with the aim to grow a more sustainable
future. In particular, to kick off the initiatives to reshape
the product portfolio, the Group established its house
brand for healthcare products at the beginning of 2020
supported by the existing core advanced production
equipment and technological know-how.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (the “Year” or
“FY2022”), the global operating environment continued
to fluctuate as COVID-19, supply chain disruption, and
geopolitical disputes lingered, while governments and
consumers slowly adapting to the “new normal” with
new-found optimism. On such backdrop, the Group is
committed to adapting, transforming, and diversifying
in order to become more sustainable. In particular,
a necessary business transformation by strategically
reducing the orders from its significant customer of the
Electrical and Electronic Products Business Segment (the
“E&E Segment”) has been completed. With the last batch
of orders with respect to such significant customer being
completed by the third quarter of the Year, the previously
occupied production capacity has been released, so
that the Group can explore other industries and niche
markets facilitating the E&E Segment to transit from a
volume-driven growth to a margin-driven growth strategy.
In light of the tough operating environment amidst the
surging production and operating costs during the Year,
the Motors Business Segment (the “Motors Segment”)
has no alternative but to call for a price increase
notwithstanding that it could cause a short-run decrease
in orders. As a result, the Group’s turnover during the
Year recorded a year-on-year (“YoY”) decrease of 14.0%,
from . approximately HK$2,693,865,000 to approximately
HK$2,316,315,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAIE‘-YSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

In terms of segmental breakdown of total external
turnover,

° E&E Segment: HK$1,267,957,000, representing
54.7% of the Group’s consolidated turnover for the
Year (for the Year ended 31 March 2021 (“2021"):
HK$1,639,837,000, 60.9%);

° Motors Segment: HK$1,044,052,000, contributing
45.1% of the Group’s consolidated turnover for the
Year (2021: HK$1,048,551,000, 38.9%);

° Real Estate Development Business Segment:
HK$4,306,000, 0.2% (2021: HK$5,477,000, 0.2%).

In addition to the decrease in revenue, the prolonged
supply chain disruption, along with occasional lockdowns,
production interruption, as well as the Renminbi
appreciation, have together put pressure on the Group’s
gross profit. Overall gross profit margin decreased 1.3
percentage point from 11.9% to 10.6%, with gross
profit decreased 23.2% from HK$319,645,000 to
HK$245,532,000.

In light of a decline in gross profit, the Group has devoted
efforts to rein in costs. Among indirect expenses,
administrative expense decreased YoY as no impairment
loss on properties under development was recognised
in the Year. Selling and distribution expense, however,
recorded an increase on elevated transportation costs
for delivering products to customers under ever-rising oil
price and COVID-19 induced global logistics bottlenecks.
Besides, other income and gains also saw a plunge mainly
attributable to the absence of certain COVID-19 related
grants and subsidies and a fair value loss on investment
properties recognised in the Year. As a result, profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company decreased
45.1% YoY from approximately HK$103,626,000 to
HK$56,858,000. Basic earnings per share for the Year
was HK12.95 cents (FY2021: HK23.61 cents).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B i R DA

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Group operates two manufacturing business streams
on three major production centres in the PRC, of
which two production centres are based in Guangdong
Province, situated in Songgang, Baoan District, Shenzhen
City (“Shenzhen”) and Shixing County, Shaoguan City
(“Shixing”), respectively, with the third being located
in Dushan County (“Dushan”), Guizhou Province. The
Group’s production bases are also supplemented by a
motors and encoder related product facility in Malaysia
for the Motors Segment and also a manufacturing facility
for the E&E Segment in Malaysia. During the Year, the
Shenzhen centre continued to focus on handling high
value-added processes for robotics and smart products,
whereas the Shixing centre remained as the major
production base for motor drives and other electrical and
electronic products. The Dushan centre currently houses
motors production and sub-assembly business.

Electrical and Electronic Products Business Segment
The E&E Segment engages in the development, design,
and manufacturing of three main product categories: (i)
robotics, (i) juvenile products and baby care products,
and (iii) smart products.

The Year represents a new beginning for the Group’s E&E
Segment. Previously, the Segment was predominantly
led by one of the Group’s significant customers from
the robotics sector. With the aim to expand margin and
diversify its concentration risk, the Group has started to
reduce its single client concentration since 2019. By the
end of the Year, the Group has completed its service
contract with the significant customer, freeing up the
necessary production capacity to tap into new industries
and customers that offer higher margin. Hence, despite
the short-term decrease in revenue from the robotics
sector, the strategic move should yield long-term benefits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAIiYSIS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Electrical and Electronic Products Business Segment
(continued)

Under the customer portfolio adjustment, the Group also
freed up additional production capacity and resources
for other product categories. With COVID-19 forcing
people to change living and working habit, there was
development in stay-at-home economy, and that has
in turn, increased the demand of the Group’s juvenile
products and baby care products. The sector is expected
to enjoy a positive outlook in the near future. According
to a report by Grand View Research, the global baby care
products market is expected to reach USD25.4 billion by
2028, at a CAGR of 4.3% from 2021 to 2028. The rising
disposable income and parental concerns also support a
growing spending on baby and childcare products.

Apart from the good performance from the juvenile
products and baby care products sector, the Group
continued to be benefited from the emerging smart home
trend during the Year. Riding on the spread of COVID-19,
as well as the Group’s strong R&D and Internet of Things
(“loT”) capability, the Group was able to introduce new
household products, and acquire new customers for its
Smart Products sector. Moter Intelligence also pointed out
that, the smart home market is expected to enjoy a strong
CAGR growth of 25.3% from 2022 to 2027, reaching
USD313.95 billion by 2027.

On the other hand, the rise in consumer health awareness
has led to a strong growth in health-oriented appliances.
The Group sees the medical sector as a new direction for
its product diversification and future development. Thus,
the sector has been actively exploring the possibility to
collaborate with different customers on new projects.
During the Year, this Segment has confirmed a number of
new projects and mass production of such new projects is
scheduled to kick-off in the financial year ending 31 March
2023 (“FY2023”).
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Electrical and Electronic Products Business Segment
(continued)

Overall, the external turnover of E&E Segment decreased
by 22.7% to HK$1,267,957,000 in the Year (2021:
HK$1,639,837,000), while this Segment remained the
major contributor to the overall turnover of the Group,
accounting for 54.7% (FY2021: 60.9%) of it. In the face
of supply chain disruptions and rising raw material costs,
overall segment profit recorded a decrease of 72.8% from
approximately HK$138,447,000 to HK$37,648,000 during
the Year, despite the Group’s best effort in product price
adjustment and cost control.

For the future view

The E&E Segment has achieved a remarkable
transformation in product development and client
acquisition under the gloom of COVID-19 and supply
chain issues with a multifold rise in the number of
customers and product categories. Looking forward, the
reducing reliance on a single customer would free up
additional resources, allowing the Segment to explore
new products and markets, and shift its positioning from
a volume-driven business to a margin-driven business.
In particular, the Group will continue to deploy more
resources in exploring new products and customers. That
includes a gradual shift towards juvenile products and
baby care products, and uncover new overseas markets
using its Malaysia plant or other overseas setup, in order
to offer a cost-competitive and reliable service to its
existing and new customers.

The Group is also committed to strengthening its R&D
capabilities by investing further in loT, as the rise of
smart home technologies would demand new and better
products, which also have higher ticket price and margins.
Leveraging its technological know-how and production
excellence, the Group will also explore the potential of
house brand products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAIE‘-YSIS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Motors Business Segment

The Motors Segment focuses on the development,
design, manufacturing and sales of electric motor drives
and related products, ranging from direct-current (“DC”)
motors to encoders and related products. Recently, its
product offering was extended to larger-sized motor
drives and brushless DC motors, as its attempt to capture
the latest technological trends and market demand.
Supported by its major production facilities located in
Shixing and Dushan, which are supplemented by the
production facility in Malaysia, the Motors Segment
has essentially established a dual-base production
and R&D platform, able to provide customers with
innovative, flexible, closer-to-market, yet cost-competitive
manufacturing solutions. The Motors Segment has been
categorised into four sectors of application, namely
automobiles, office automation equipment, toys, and
household appliances.

Despite the emergence of the Delta and Omicron variant,
most developed countries were able to recover, with
people slowly resuming normal consumption, especially
in the U.S. and Europe. However, the sporadic COVID-19
resurgence has also caused borders and factories to
temporarily close down, disrupting raw material supply
and goods flow. Facing unprecedented pressure in direct
cost including the surging copper price of approximately
26% in 2021 after another approximately 25% rise in
2020, the Motors Segment had proactively reached out
to its customers, and was able to shift the rising cost
amid the challenging situation. Nonetheless, due to the
limited visibility, customers generally remained prudent
when placing orders, and sales volume recorded a minor
drop during the Year. As a result, external turnover for the
Year was HK$1,044,052,000 (2021: HK$1,048,551,000),
representing a slight drop of 0.4% YoY. Gross profit
margin slightly increased, while segment profit recorded an
increase of 27.4% YoY, reaching HK$71,350,000 (FY2021:
HK$55,994,000).
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Motors Business Segment (continued)

Riding on the recovery momentum of the global economy,
the Segment has been actively acquiring new customers
to diversify its revenue stream. During the Year, the
Motors Segment has successfully acquired a number of
new customers particularly from the automobile sector
and home appliance sector, with mass production in
FY2023.

Apart from new customers, the Segment has also
developed the gearbox as a new product, which is
under the category of ‘Motor Plus’, for an existing home
appliance customer. The Motors Segment has recruited
new R&D team members for the long term development of
this product line and category, which has a relatively high
unit price and margin than other standard motors. This
demonstrated the fact that, by leveraging its long-term
business relationship and industry know-how, the Motors
Segment was able to seize the opportunity to further
satisfy its customer, while expanding its revenue stream
and margin in the long run.

For the future view

Looking into FY2023, the Motors Segment will closely
monitor the price of raw materials, and actively discuss
with its suppliers to maintain sufficient inventories at a
reasonable price level. To cater the demand of customers,
the Motors Segment will also ensure an on-time delivery of
goods, and adjust its price points when necessary in order
to maintain margin while being competitive.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAIE‘-YSIS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Motors Business Segment (continued)

For the future view (continued)

Apart from cultivating the newly-acquired customers,
particularly the Motors Segment has actively grown its
presence in the European markets by increasing the
number of sales and marketing personnel there since last
year, the Group will continue to explore different pipelines
to further diversify its customer portfolio and enhance
its revenue stream. Equipped with strong R&D capability
and a comprehensive and flexible manufacturing solution,
the Motors Segment is keen on serving customers from
different industries, with tailor-made product request
at smaller order volume. This would allow the Group to
expand its capability, improve order visibility, and enhance
margin, laying a solid foundation for future growth.

Looking forward, the Motors Segment will continue to
invest in R&D to develop more sophisticate products at
higher-ticket price, and at the same time, working with
existing customers to explore other motor plus products
to raise customer stickiness and order volume.

Non-manufacturing Businesses

Real Estate Development Business Segment

During the Year, the Segment continued its engagement in
the two residential and commercial property development
projects in Dushan Economic Development Zone, namely
The Royale Cambridge Residences and The Jardin
Montsouris.

The Segment was at a loss of HK$13,503,000 during
the Year (2021: a loss of HK$24,989,000). As the final
acceptance certificates for such project were not obtained
yet, contracted sales of The Jardin Montsouris were
not able to be recognised as revenue during the Year.
Besides, an impairment loss from changes in fair value
of The Royale Cambridge Residences of HK$2,601,000
(2021: HK$16,938,000) were incurred, which is non-cash
and non-recurring and non-cash in nature.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Non-manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Real Estate Development Business Segment (continued)
China’s real estate market was hard hit during the Year.
On the supply side, the property market was weakened
by a government clampdown on excessive borrowing
from developers. On the demand side, residential property
market remained sluggish as China continued to uphold
its zero-COVID policy and mortgage, with the lingering
COVID-19 pandemic leading to lockdowns as well as
restricted daily activities. According to the National Bureau
of Statistics of China, the growth rate of investment in real
estate development in 2022 apparently slowed from 7.0%
to 4.4% in 2021.

Hence, the demand of the Group’s real estate project
in Dushan was severely impacted. Under such
circumstances, no significant sales of property units
took place during the Year. Up to 31 March 2022, the
aggregate number of residential units contracted for sale
for The Jardin Montsouris project was 248 with a total
consideration of approximately RMB108,353,000. Only
2 units of The Royale Cambridge Residences were sold
during the Year.

Looking ahead, despite the introduction of easing policies
including the cancellation of home purchase restrictions,
cuts in mortgage rates, and the requirement of smaller
down-payments, China’s property market condition is
unlikely to improve in the short run, with prices remaining
flat and sales and investment falling further. The recurring
COVID-19 is also expected to put further pressure on
the already fragile demand. In face of the uncertainties
and gloomy operating environment, the Segment has put
the development of other phases of the project on hold,
and would instead, focusing its efforts and resources
to complete the remaining minor construction work and
auxiliary works that would bring the Phase 1A of The
Jardin Montsouris project to practical completion. Once
securing the relevant final acceptance certificates, the
Group is looking to sell the remaining completed property
units in the ensuing future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAIiYSIS

OUTLOOK

According to the World Economic Outlook April 2022
published by the International Monetary Fund, the
Russian-Ukraine conflict is likely to have a damaging
impact on the global economy in 2022. The growing risk
of inflation and interest rate hike, the unpredictability
that comes with the withdrawal of fiscal support in many
countries have all casted further doubts to the near-term
outlook although China has set its GDP growth rate target
for 2022 as high as 5.5%.

Facing these uncertainties, the Group will remain prudent
in its operation, able to satisfy customer needs in a timely
manner. While progressively expanding its customer
portfolio, the Group will also maintain a healthy financial
position by closely monitoring its working capital and
adopting a stringent cost control measure, in order to
prepare for the unexpected.

Since the Sino-U.S. trade tension, the Group has actively
expanded its footprint by offering dual-production
solutions. Given the uncertain economic outlook, the
Group will continue to cautiously evaluate the Myanmar
investment plan, as well as other possible options, to
further diversify its manufacturing solutions in the long run.
To drive efficiency enhancement and margin enhancement
of existing plants, the Group is also looking to further
adjust its production resources across PRC and Malaysia.

Lastly, the Group will continue to improve its core
competency by increasing its investment in R&D on
product enhancement and high value-added products
development. By adopting the aforesaid strategies,
the Group believes that it is well-positioned to start a
new page for its journey, delivering higher value to its
stakeholders.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend
for the Year (2021: Nil).

FINANCIAL CONDITIONS, LIQUIDITY
AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group primarily used its internally generated cash
flows and banking facilities to finance its operations
and business development. The Group has always
been executing a prudent and conservative strategy
in its financial management. As at 31 March 2022, the
Group had time deposits of HK$13,355,000 (31 March
2021: HK$13,607,000), cash and bank balances of
HK$257,584,000 (31 March 2021: HK$390,556,000),
and net current assets of HK$525,724,000 (31 March
2021: HK$417,886,000). As at 31 March 2022,
shareholders’ equity was HK$1,589,910,000 (31 March
2021: HK$1,499,496,000). Total consolidated banking
facilities of the Group from all banks as at 31 March
2022 amounted to approximately HK$661,742,000 (31
March 2021: HK$1,013,939,000). As at 31 March 2022,
total bank borrowings amounted to HK$529,147,000 (31
March 2021: HK$659,546,000).

As at 31 March 2022, the bank borrowings of the
Group was repayable within one year amounted to
HK$417,347,000 (31 March 2021: HK$467,672,000) and
the remaining balance of HK$111,800,000 (31 March
2021: HK$191,874,000) was repayable within second to
fifth years.

As at 31 March 2022, the current ratio of the Group
(current assets divided by current liabilities) was
maintained at 1.46 times (31 March 2021: 1.29 times)
and the gearing ratio of the Group (total bank borrowings
divided by total equity) was 33.3% (31 March 2021:
44.0%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2022, the total issued share capital of
the Company was HK$43,896,000 (31 March 2021:
HK$43,896,000), comprising 438,960,000 (31 March
2021: 438,960,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.
There was no change in the share capital of the Company
during the Year.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group’s bank deposits of HK$12,326,000 (31 March
2021: HK$17,975,000) and an investment property of
HK$46,789,000 (31 March 2021: HK$47,556,000) were
pledged to a bank in the PRC for banking facilities of
HK$61,631,000 as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021:
HK$95,867,000).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
RMB or U.S. dollars. The Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy on it. In order to manage and
minimise the foreign exchange risk, the management shall
from time to time review and monitor the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging the significant foreign
currency exposure when appropriate and necessary.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s financial facilities are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and RMB and interests on bank borrowings
are chargeable based on certain interest margin over the
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the People’s Bank
of China lending rate which are therefore of floating rate in
nature. The Group has not entered into any interest rate
risk hedge to mitigate exposure to interest rate risk during
the Year.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group employed around 5,600
full-time employees, of which less than 70 of them were
stationed in Hong Kong headquarters with the remaining
working in the PRC and Malaysia.

The Board’s remuneration committee of the Company
made recommendation to the Board on the policy and
structure of the Company for all remuneration of Directors,
reviewed and determined the remuneration package of
individual executive Director and senior management of
the Company with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives, responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere within the Group and in the
market. The Group remunerates its employees largely
in accordance with prevailing industry standards. In
Hong Kong, the Group’s employee benefits include staff
retirement scheme, medical scheme and performance
bonus. In the PRC and Malaysia, the Group provides its
employee’s staff welfare and allowances in accordance
with the prevailing labour laws. The Group has also put in
place a share option scheme to motivate and reward staff
with outstanding performance. At the discretion of the
Board, the Group’s employees will be granted the options,
of which the number of options granted is determined by
individual performance and level of responsibilities.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday,
16 August 2022 to Friday, 19 August 2022, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Friday, 19 August 2022, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
15 August 2022.

Cheng Chor Kit
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong KoQg, 29 June 2022
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECT:‘-QRS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, aged 70, is the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company. He is the founder
of the Group and is responsible for the Group’s overall
operation and strategic planning. He is also a member
of the Board’s remuneration committee and nomination
committee. Mr. Cheng served as a member of the
Guangdong Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (the “CPPCC”) and a
Standard member of the Shaoguan Committee of the
CPPCC. Mr. Cheng has over 40 years of experience in the
toy industry.

Mr. Liu Tat Luen, aged 57, is an executive Director since
December 2009. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor Degree in
Science (Quantity Surveying) from the University of Hong
Kong and a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Liu served as a director and
a responsible officer in a corporate finance advisory
firm (type 6 regulated activities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) in Hong Kong and
has over 20 years of working experience in the financial
industry in Asia as a whole.

Mr. Cheng Tsz To, aged 35, is an executive Director
since June 2014. After graduating with a Master’s degree
of Engineering in Mechatronics with honors from the
University of Sheffield, the United Kingdom, Mr. Cheng
joined the Group in 2010. He is the son of Mr. Cheng Chor
Kit, the executive Director and the controlling shareholder
(as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”)) of the Company and is the younger
brother of Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang, the executive Director of
the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang, aged 38, is an executive Director
since March 2016. After studied Physics and Mathematics
in the Loughborough University, the United Kingdom, Mr.
Cheng joined the Group in 2007. He is the chief executive
officer of the Motors Business Segment of the Group since
July 2013. Mr. Cheng is the son of Mr. Cheng Chor Kit,
the executive Director and the controlling shareholder (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company and is the
elder brother of Mr. Cheng Tsz To, the executive Director
of the Company.

Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston, aged 58, is an executive
Director appointed on 1 April 2021 and he joined the
Group in December 2019 as the deputy chief executive
officer of the Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment of the Group. Mr. Lee holds a Higher Diploma in
Electronic Engineering form the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(currently known as “The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University”) and a Master Degree in Engineering
Management from the University of Technology, Sydney.
Mr. Lee has over 30 years of experience in the field of
product development and sourcing with regard diversity of
electrical and electronic consumer products. Immediately
prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lee was a vice president of
Hasbro Far East Limited.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent, aged 66, was appointed
as an executive Director in August 2005 and a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. On 1 April 2021,
Dr. Fung resigned as the executive Director and all the
directorship of the subsidiaries of the Company, and was
simultaneously re-designated as a non-executive Director
of the Company. Dr. Fung has been, and shall remain
as, the member of the Board’s remuneration committee
and nomination committee prior to and upon his re-
designation. Dr. Fung holds a Master of Science Degree in
Engineering Business Management from the University of
Warwick, and a Doctoral Degree in Engineering from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. Fung has over 30
years of experience in the toy industry. Prior to joining the
Group, he worked as an engineering director in a sizeable
toys -manufacturing and distribution company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIREC'i:‘-QRS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chi Wai, aged 56, has been an independent
non-executive Director since September 2004. He is
the chairman of the Board’s nomination committee
and a member of the Board’s audit committee and
remuneration committee. Mr. Wong currently serves as an
independent non-executive director of C&D International
Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1908) and Arts
Optical International Holdings Limited (stock code:
1120), all of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. From June 2003 to 21 September
2020, Mr. Wong also served as an independent non-
executive director of Bonjour Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0653). Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree
in Social Science and was awarded a post-graduate
certificate in laws by the University of Hong Kong in 1988
and 1993, respectively. He is a practising certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
(“ICAEW”). He has over 30 years of experience in the
accountancy profession. Other than his private practice in
accounting, Mr. Wong has been admitted as a solicitor at
the High Court in March 2019 and currently practices as a
consultant in a law firm.

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian, aged 60, has been an
independent non-executive Director since September
2004. She is the chairperson of the Board’s audit
committee and a member of the Board’s remuneration
committee and nomination committee. Dr. Sun is a fellow

BYFHBTES

EMELE AT K BZEENFNA
BHEEBUIRTES BRAEEFTETR
HEEEIRRES SR TERZTES RS
MEEEKE - BXERKABEREHKIRE
SEBRLA (BRMHARE - 1908) MR 2
SEBERATR (BRHMRSE - 1120) (Lt A A
BRBZER LT 2B IERTES -
RIEE=FRNAE_T_ZTFAA-+—
A EXENMHESHERERAE (RO
5% 0 0653) 2 B IEHITES - HBERED IR
—NANFR—ANZFEFTERELEFR
BELTEBYNEEBRAREBTE - HADBH
EMesramk B8 RE RIS san
re((REBERETgrmAag)) e
B -FREHAEERBRA-_+TFLR K ED
A EMFAREN  BEERZZT—NEF
—REREEREMNAEMIVEN —KEM
PR -

BRENEL Ntm B-FTTOEFNAR
HEBIFATES RRESTEETEX
ZEBEGIFUNMEZEETFHZE S NER
FEBENE  -AELRATESHNAE
([HEEFMAE]) MRNEAMAGER
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Accountants (“HKICPA”) and of the CPA Australia.
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FZ # 4 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED  #)i 5B R A 7] \ .

23




BIO,éRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul, aged 70, has been an
independent non-executive Director since June 2014. He
is the chairman of the Board’s remuneration committee
and a member of the Board’s audit committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Cheng qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1976 and he has been a fellow member
of the ICAEW and of the HKICPA since 1982 and 1990
respectively. Mr. Cheng was a member of the Council
of HKICPA in 2006 and 2007 and a member of the
Corporate Finance Committee of HKICPA from 2006
to 2012. Currently, he is a deputy chairman of the
Professional Conduct Committee of HKICPA. Mr. Cheng
was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Xinyi Solar Holdings Limited ("Xinyi Solar", stock code:
0968) in 2013. Upon the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of Xinyi Solar held on 2 June 2022, Mr. Cheng
retired as the independent non-executive director of the
company. In June 2017, Mr. Cheng was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Bank of Shanghai
(Hong Kong) Limited, a restricted licence bank in Hong
Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIREC'i:‘-QRS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Cheung Wang Ip, aged 61, has been an independent
non-executive Director since July 2014. He is a member of
the Board’s audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Cheung is a Chartered General
Practice Surveyor by profession and has over 30 years of
professional work experience in the property industry and
related fields, including valuation and feasibility study. Mr.
Cheung is a corporate member of both the Royal Institute
of Chartered Surveyors and the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors (General Practice) as well as a member of
Associacao da Avaliacao da Propriedade de Macau.
He is a member of the China Real Estate Chamber of
Commerce Hong Kong Chapter and a member of China
Real Estate Appraiser in the PRC. In addition, Mr. Cheung
is serving as a member of the 12" Shanxi Provincial
Committee of the CPPCC. Currently, Mr. Cheung is
the Operation Head of Hong Kong and Macau and an
executive director of Vigers Appraisal and Consulting
Limited (“Vigers”), he is also an executive director of Vigers
Macao Company Limited (Vigers is an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of a listed company whose shares listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited).
Prior to joining Vigers in 2006, Mr. Cheung was a senior
director of the Valuation and Consultancy Department in
Savills Hong Kong Limited, where he held the position of
the Head of Hong Kong and Macau valuation team. He
had held various positions in companies including the
Mass Transit Railway Corporation, Guangzhou Investment
Company Limited and Jones Lang Wootton.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE

The Directors of the Company present their report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 14 to the financial
statements. The principal activities of the subsidiaries
consisted of the design, manufacture and sale of
electrical and electronic products, motor drives, other
manufacturing businesses and real estate development.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Year and the Group’s financial
position at that date are set out in the financial statements
on pages 86 to 227 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend to the shareholders for the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donation of
HK$30,000 (2021: HK$187,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business and the performance of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 is provided
in the chapters of “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
4 to 7 and pages 8 to 20, respectively, of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s main operations are carried out both in Hong
Kong and Mainland China and are regulated by the local
laws and regulations accordingly. During the Year and up
to the date of this annual report, the Group has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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REPORT OF THE DIREC'l:‘-ORS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The Group faces various risks and uncertainties in
operations. To cope with the risks, the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are in place
to ensure the principal risks are continuously identified,
monitored and managed on an established basis.

COVID-19 global pandemic

Since its global outbreak in 2020 and has continued
through the first quarter of 2022, the COVID-19 pandemic
has aggravated the level of risk facing the Group at all
levels of the business, in particular, heightened the level
of risk associated with the Group’s ongoing operations.
Governments’ guidelines on social distancing, business
travelling and import/export restrictions have brought
about significant business uncertainty and have led to
restricted operations in a number of our products during
the Year, the financial impact continues to pose a key risk
to the business.

Macroeconomic and political environments

The Group’s operations are predominately located
in Hong Kong and Mainland China with products
distributed worldwide to customers. The Group’s financial
performance and business are all impacted by geopolitical
influences and economic factors not just in the countries
in which the Group is operating, but also the markets
in which the Group’s products are ultimately distributed
and consumed. The key macroeconomic and political
factors include, without limitation to, exchange rate
fluctuations, a shift in government policy or regulations,
political instability, elevating inflation, or the introduction
of trade tariffs, embargos and economic sanctions. The
changes in these factors may adversely affect the Group’s
financial condition, operating performance, and prospects
domestically or abroad.

Details of the Group’s foreign currency exposure
and interest rate risk are provided in the chapter of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
8 to 20 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Supply chain risks

As a manufacturing corporation, a stable supply of quality
materials is a prerequisite for and pivotal to the production
of excellent products. The COVID-19 induced lockdowns
have caused severe disruptions in the supply chain
and logistics. Strong demand for a variety of products
colliding with persistent supply shortages not only drives
widespread prices of materials up but also makes the
Group arduous to scout out a stable yet quality supply.
Nonetheless, through the long-term business relationship
with a number of suppliers, we perceive the risk of supply
chain still manageable and are confident that we can
secure a stable supply of required materials at reasonable
prices to fulfill our operational needs.

People risks

The Group’s future development strongly relies on
recruiting the right people. The shortage or loss of
personnel with appropriate skills or experience could pose
a potential risk in achieving the Group’s strategic goal.
The Group offers competitive remuneration and benefits
package to attract and retain qualified personnel to satisfy
the needs of the corporate development.

The abovementioned do not present an exhaustive
picture of the risks and uncertainties facing the Group.
The Management of the Group would closely monitor
these factors and evaluate their impacts on the Group’s
operation from time to time, and formulate and devise
appropriate policies and measures to cope with the
threats of the risks posed to the operation.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAFF,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS

The Group’s success depends on the support from
key stakeholders which comprise our staff, customers
suppliers as well as our shareholders.

The Group values our employees as the most significant
and valuable assets to the Group, a comprehensive
benefit package is offered to each employee for
recognising their efforts. The Group also has a significant
mission for providing a healthy and safety workplace to
all employees. During the Year, no significant accident
occurred due to workplace accident.

The Group commits to provide quality services and
products to each customer, any complaints from our
customers are handled and investigated in thorough and
efficient manner.

The purchase of goods and contracting of services are
based solely on need, quality and price of the goods and
services. A fair and open competition in procurement with
high ethical standards promoted by the Group assure
high products quality at all times to gain the confidence of
customers.

For details of relationship with the shareholders of the
Company can be found in the chapter of “Corporate
Governance Report” set out on pages 44 to 70 of this
annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results, assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 228 of this annual report. The summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31
March 2022 are set out in Note 28 to the financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital and the share
options of the Company during the Year, together with the
reasons therefor, are set out in Note 30 and Note 31 to
the financial statements, respectively.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the Year are set out in Note 32 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”) or the laws of
Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2022, the Company’s reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie,
comprising the contributed surplus and the retained
profits, amounted to HK$458,185,000. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s
contributed surplus of HK$104,750,000 may be
distributed under certain circumstances. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account with a balance of
HK$156,015,000 may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 59% of the total sales for the
Year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 27% of the total sales.

Purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 16% of the total purchases of the Group for
the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 3% of the total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors,
their associates (as defined under Listing Rules), nor
those shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share'capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Tat Luen

Mr. Cheng Tsz To

Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang

Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston*

Non-executive Director
Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent**

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chi Wai

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul

Mr. Cheung Wang Ip

* Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 April 2021.

- Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent resigned as an executive
Director and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 1 April 2021.

Biographical details in respect of the Directors at the
date of this annual report is provided in the chapter of
“Biographical Details of the Directors” set out in pages 21
to 25 of this annual report.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, Mr. Liu Tat Luen, Mr.
Cheng Tsz Hang, Mr. Wong Chi Wai and Dr. Sun Kwai Yu,
Vivian, being the Directors who should retire by rotation,
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Directors confirm that the Company has received from
each of its independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the Company considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% S 8 58 A 7] \ 4

/'\

EEERE

BEE
AEERBEAFREAMIEFMOT

BITES

MRERE (FERTHAE)
BiEELE

BFHLE

Byt

FRIESLE

FHUTES
HEE/L

BYFHITES
BREmE L
BEE L
RERELE

* FRIZFFAR-_F-—FNA—HEZFA
HITEF -

 BEBEFR-F-—FA—HEEHT
EFUHERIFHTEE

RAFHRABERESTIEEABHRAF
WENEBH [ EREEFBIEE

REARMA ERESRERZETEEER
£ BrEkL EWMERELEFTNEL
BRARREERRBEAS LER - R
BERYBMERNARARRBEAS LEZE
BE-

EXWER ARFEREERSBIUIFNTE

ERHCFERAL - RELETWHRRESA3
FRERARESS E’]ﬁi%f P RN B IRHER

BRIIERTEERBIAL -




/'\

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-Law 166 of Bye-Laws, subject to
the applicable laws, every Director shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of his/her office. The Company
has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, the executive Director and the
chairman of the Board, entered into a service contract
with the Company commencing from 1 August 2005
without a fixed term but subject to termination by either
party giving not less than six months’ notice in writing to
the other party.

Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent, after his resignation as
executive Director and re-designated as a non-executive
Director, has entered into a new service contract with
the Company commencing from 1 April 2001 (for a term
of two years), subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Bye-Laws. The service contract,
unless terminated by either party giving not less than
one month’s notice in writing to the other party, the
termination of which should not be later than the end of
the two years.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 E AR A A

BEFRERX
RIBABMAF166MF  FERERRRT
REENARMEARBETHEHBBRIESL -
REZ S AEHRE 2 B2 ERERT A B
EXRTEZMAHRR B BB
BX REMAXBARAZEETESHE
B RREEF - ARACHAIEHHEER
hz EMERFRZEBERZEERERAR
BRE -

EECRBEYN

HITEEREFGIRERALECDBRAR
AEIY—H-_ETRF/\A —BRERL
EEFEEHNOREEO  EEP A AR
—HERHTDRANEAEEEANT AL -

BESBIHRTATEST AT RIENTE
EVERARBEILHRBALN B-FF
—FMA—ARKE(RERE)  REARER

AARRARBZERBFRE LHFSER
REE -RIFEF-—TAR—HELTIR
—EAANEBBATALIE  BRIRBEL
MEIEAMASERNZMERREEREAR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 & ¥



REPORT OF THE DIRECf‘-QRS

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

(continued)

Saved as disclosed above, all the Directors entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-Laws. Each of the executive and
independent non-executive Directors, unless terminated
by either party giving not less than six months’ notice and
three months’ notice, respectively, in writing to the other
party, the termination of which should not be later than the
end of the three years.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EERBESTHRAERRSG A

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BAROREEEZEZRAE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests of the Directors and MN-ZEBE-Z—_F=A=1+—H AQABEEK

chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO
which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
he/she is taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the Model Code of Securities Transactions
by directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

(@) Interests in the shares of the Company and its
associated corporations

EETBRABRARAREREEIE (FER
FHRHE KM EXVER) 2 - ARG &
BREEPHAA@Q RIEZES LB EKEHNEXV
HETMSDHMEARNNT MR 2R (B
FEREFEAFAMPERANEBIEXHEEEE
SR ABEEZRDZIAR)  HO)BIBEFEFNK
BRI MIZE352{8 Bt AB B A 2 ks ¢ 5k
) BIELMETAZTSTEITELSS HWIZE
SR (MZESFR ) BRMe AR R KRBTz
MR

(@) RAEQXFAREEBEEzZROOES

Number of ordinary shares held

FEEBERROEE
Approximate
percentage of
Personal Spouse Corporate shareholding
interests interests interests Total HAGEREN
fBARE [TREY $+3 LEER @t BAk
(Note 1) (Hfs#1)
The Company &2 7
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit 26,634,000 3,700,000 252,920,000 283,254,000 64.52%
BREGEE (Note 2) (fi5#2)
Mr. Liu Tat Luen 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.45%
Mr. Cheng Tsz To 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 0.68%
BFELE
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 0.68%
BrEis
Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent 8,152,000 - - 8,152,000 1.85%
BEEET
Mr. Wong Chi Wai 500,000 - - 500,000 0.11%
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.22%
BEmigt
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul 80,000 - - 80,000 0.02%
B L g
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip 200,000 - - 200,000 0.04%

REERLE

LA EESERIER -

All"'i-r\_]terests stated above represent long positions.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECf‘-QRS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(a)

Interests in the shares of the Company and its

associated corporations (continued)

EEERE

EERBESTHRAERRSG A

FAROREEZE ZEERAE @
(@) RADTREMAYEEZ RO ES

(&)

Number of ordinary shares held

FREERROEE
Approximate
percentage of
Personal Spouse Corporate shareholding
interests interests interests Total  HEAMEREMN
BARER REER EEER @t BAl
Associated Corporations ;B
Padora Global Inc (“Padora”)
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit 520 160 - 680 68.00%
BRGEE
Mr. Cheng Tsz To 160 - - 160 16.00%
BrELE
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang 160 - - 160 16.00%

BTt

All interests stated above represent long positions.

Notes:

M

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

The approximate percentage of shareholding is
calculated based on 438,960,000 shares, being
the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company as at 31 March 2022.

As at 31 March 2022, Padora, through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Resplendent Global Limited
(“Resplendent”), indirectly held 252,920,000 shares
of the Company. Mr. Cheng Chor Kit is interested
directly in 52.0% of Padora, and the remaining
shares are held equally by his spouse, and the
Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Cheng Tsz To
and Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang.

Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston, the Director of the
Company, has confirmed that he has no interests in
the shares of the Company as at 31 March 2022.

Save as disclosed in Note (2) above, all Directors
of the Company have confirmed that they had no
interests in any of its associated corporations of the
Company as at 31 March 2022.

LAFTEREYRER -
Hat
BEBOBI L IRERRRR —F

—ZF=ZA=+-HE#TEBARE
#0438,960,000/% 5t & ©

M

R-_Z-—#=A=+—H  Padora
%R H 2 & K B 2 flResplendent
Global Limited ([Resplendent |) f& #
5 H5252,920,0000% & A & & 15 o &5
Tt S 4 B B HE BPadoraz 52.0% 1
wm HBRTROBEZERS A28
EERFERERSTHEEFTHE
5o

AABEEFTRELERER  BHRZ
T _FZA=+t—HIEHEEAR
AR HERS o

B EXHER) FTEE AQGMA
EERR BFER_TEZ=_F=A8
=+ — AW EEE AR R A E
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) Interests in the underlying shares of the

BEENBETHRAERKRG 8
AR REESEZEZRAE &)

(b) RAERTHEBRKRG zEDE

Company
Number of
underlying shares Price of
in respect of share Company’s
options held and shares
approximate immediately
percentage of before the
shareholding Vesting period Exercise grant date
fisBREZ  Date of B L Exercise  priceper  AAFRH
Name of Director Capacity RERAHER  granted  from to period share  REBEZH
BEpg af FREMAEANL REAH # 2 s SROEE BHAZRE
HKS & HKS #T
Mr. Wong Chi Wai Beneficial owner 400,0000  7/7/2017 7/7/2017 - 2.262 2.220
Ehgrt ERBEA 0.09%) 6/7/2027
100,000 7/72017  7/7/2017  12/9/2017  13/9/2017 - 2.262 2.220
0.02%) 6/7/2027
100,000  9/7/2018  9/7/2018  12/9/2018 18/9/2018 - 2.470 2.470
(0.02%) 8/7/2028
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian Beneficial owner 100,000  9/7/2018  9/7/2018  12/9/2018  13/9/2018 - 2.470 2.470
BENEL EnlBA 0.02%) 8/7/2028
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul  Beneficial owner 100,000*  7/7/2017 71712017 - 2.262 2.220
gEE Rt ERHAA 0.02%) 6/7/2027
100,000 9/7/2018 9/7/2018 - 2.470 2.470
(0.02%) 8/7/2028
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip Beneficial owner 100,000  9/7/2018  9/7/2018  20/7/2018  21/7/2018 - 2.470 2.470
REERE ERBEEA 0.02%) 8/7/2028

*  Vested upon granted.

All interests stated above represent long positions.

The above options were granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECf‘-QRS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) Interests in the underlying shares of the
Company (continued)

The Directors’ interests in the Company’s share
options are disclosed in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022,
none of the Directors nor chief executive of the
Company had interests or short positions in any
securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which he/she is taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as
disclosed, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” of this chapter
and in the share option scheme disclosures in Note 31
to the financial statements, at no time during the Year
were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are
disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transaction” below, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (as defined in Section 543 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622)) relating to the management and/or
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECf‘-ORS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS
AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

During the Year, the Group was neither involved in any
significant investment, nor in any material acquisition or
disposal of any subsidy.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 January 2020 in relation to the connected
transaction with respect to the disposal of Unicon
Investments Limited (“Unicon”) to Mr. Cheng Chor Kit
(“Mr. Cheng”), an executive Director, the chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company and the controlling
shareholder of the Company (as defined under the Listing
Rules), whereas, upon completion of the said disposal,
Kin Yat Industrial Co Limited (“KYI”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company), as tenant, has
entered into a tenancy agreement (the “Existing Tenancy
Agreement”) with Unicon, as landlord, in respect of the
lease of property located at 7/F., Galaxy Factory Building,
25-27 Luk Hop Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong for a term of three years commencing from 1 April
2020 to 31 March 2023 (both days inclusive) for a monthly
rental amount of HK$124,800 (inclusive of government
rent, rates and management fee only). The transactions
contemplated under the Existing Tenancy Agreement are
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
but are exempt from the circular (including independent
financial advice) and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 27 January 2022, KYI, as tenant, entered into
a tenancy agreement (the “New Additional Tenancy
Agreement”) with Century Grand International Limited
(“Century Grand”), a company wholly owned by Mr.
Cheng, as landlord, in respect of the lease of a premise
located at Block B, 11/F., Galaxy Factory Building, 25-
27 Luk Hop Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
for a term of three years commenced from 1 February
2022 to 31 January 2025 (both days inclusive). Pursuant
to the New Additional Tenancy Agreement, KYI agreed
to lease the subject premises for a monthly lease rental
of HK$17,900 (inclusive of government rent, rates,
management fee and cleaning service fee). The subject
premise is used by the Group as a product showroom and
conference area.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

Details of the abovesaid transactions were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 21 January 2020
and 27 January 2022 respectively, and the circular of the
Company dated 11 March 2020.

As Century Grand is wholly owned by Mr. Cheng,
Century Grand is a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the entering into of the New Additional
Tenancy Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constitute a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As all
more applicable percentage ratios (as defined under the
Listing Rules) in respect of the New Additional Tenancy
Agreement are less than 5% and the total consideration is
less than HK$3,000,000, the transactions contemplated
under the New Additional Tenancy Agreement constitute
de minimis transactions pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of
the Listing Rules and are fully exempt from Shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

However, as the Existing Tenancy Agreement was entered
into by the Group with Unicon (which is also wholly
owned by Mr. Cheng), the transactions contemplated
under the Existing Tenancy Agreement and the New
Additional Tenancy Agreement shall be aggregated
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the purpose
of calculating the applicable percentage ratios under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Given that one or more
applicable percentage ratio(s) upon aggregation of the
Existing Tenancy Agreement with the New Additional
Tenancy Agreement exceeds 0.1% but is less than 5%,
the transactions contemplated under the New Additional
Tenancy Agreement are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but are exempt from the
circular (including independent financial advice) and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Apart from described above, under the Listing Rules,
the Company did not have any other disclosable non-
exempted connected transaction during the Year and up
to the date of this annual report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2022, so far as is known to any Director
or chief executive of the Company, the following persons
had an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of

FERREEMALTRERSD A
BRORERERE 2 ED

R-ZB-—HF=ZA=+—H BARFEM
EEURSTHRABMA U TALRAER
IR - B REER T HEAARE
&5 NS GG EXVERF2 M3 8B R X [ A
NEWE - JREE 7 LB 55 3361%5C

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were ARABEENEEMO#ERIRIOAE DT
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:
Approximate
percentage of
the Company's
Number of issued share Number of
ordinary shre capital share option
Name of substantial held HEARAFL held
shareholder Nature of interest and capacity FEBLER BITRAZ Frs
TERRER BH REMERIH RAEA BHaEDH BREHE
(Note 1) (fi7t1)
Resplendent Global Beneficial owner 252,920,000 57.62% -
Limited BEmEBA (Note 2)
(Bti#2)
Podora Global Inc Interests in controlling 252,920,000 57.62% -
corporation (Note 2)
s NIE - (Hizt2)
Mdm. Tsang Yuk Wan Interests in controlling 252,920,000 57.62% -
(“Mdm. Tsang”) corporation (Note 2)
BEELXT ZH R AR (T at2)
(Mg&=Ll)
Personal interests 3,700,000 0.84% -
[N £
Interests of spouse (Note 3) 26,634,000 6.06% -

Fo B (A1423)

All the interests stated above represent long positions.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Notes:

(1)  The approximate percentage of shareholding is calculated
based on 438,960,000 shares, being the total number of
issued ordinary shares of the Company as at 31 March
2022.

(2) 252,920,000 shares of the Company are held by
Resplendent, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Padora, relating
to the same block of shareholding of Mr. Cheng Chor Kit
(“Mr. Cheng”) disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. Cheng and his spouse, Mdm. Tsang, are
deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company
held by Resplendent.

(3) 26,634,000 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Cheng
in a personal capacity. By virtue of the SFO, Mdm. Tsang is
deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company
held by Mr. Cheng.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the
Directors or chief executive of the Company were not
aware of any person who had an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest
of the Directors, the controlling shareholder and their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of the Company that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group
during the Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECf‘-QRS

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set
out in the chapter of “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 44 to 70 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant event after the reporting period that
should be notified to shareholders of the Company.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for
their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheng Chor Kit
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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COB’i’ORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREBRSE

Kin Yat believes that the long-term business and
sustainable growth of the Group are built on the corporate
culture. Our Board has incorporated a culture of integrity,
accountability, and transparency that permeates
throughout the Group, and becomes the corporate
governance principles of the Company which includes
emphasising the quality of the Board, effective internal
control, stringent disclosure practices, and ultimately
generating a positive long-term shareholder value as well
as the accountability to all stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board regularly reviews the guidelines and latest
development in corporate governance. Except for the
deviation described in the section “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer” in this Corporate Governance Report
(the “CG Report”), in the opinion of the Board, the
Company has complied with the code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout
the Year.

The Board has reviewed the CG Report and is satisfied
that it has been in full compliance with all the requirements
stipulated in the CG Report in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT
EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
own code on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code regarding securities
transactions by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the Year. All relevant employees of the Group who,
because of their office in the Group, are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information have
been requested to comply with the provisions of the Model
Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The composition of the Board comprises of a balanced
mix of Directors and shall have a sufficient number of
Directors to provide a breadth of knowledge as well as the
ability to make insightful discussions on key issues.

As of the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
ten members, the Board is confident that the balance
between the number of executive and non-executive
Directors has been reasonably and adequately established
in order to protect the interests of the shareholders and
the Company as a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueq)

Composition of the Board (continued)
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Directors were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Tat Luen
Mr. Cheng Tsz To
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang
Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston

Non-executive Director
Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chi Wai

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul

Mr. Cheung Wang Ip

Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang and Mr. Cheng Tsz To are the
sons of Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, the executive Director and
the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of the Company. Save as disclosed above, none of
the Directors has any financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among the Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REIS--ORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition of the Board (continued)

All Directors disclose to the Company the number and
natures of offices held in other public companies or
organisations as well as other significant commitments
annually which ensures that all Board members are
capable of inputting enough time and devoting enough
attention to the Company’s affairs.

The detailed information in respect of each Director’s
historical background, expertise, and the current
appointments/commitment are shown in the chapter
“Biographical Details of the Directors” on pages 21 to 25
in this annual report.

Functions of the Board

The Company’s overall management is vested on its
Board which accepts that it is ultimately accountable
and responsible for to shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group. The Board’s role is to provide
entrepreneurial leadership set the Company’s strategic
aims and the Company’s values and standards, and to
ensure that its obligations to its stakeholders and others
are understood and met. To facilitate the operations, the
Board has established a schedule of matters reserved
for its approval. The specific responsibilities reserved
for the Board include (1) setting the Group’s strategies
and dividend policy, (2) approving budgets, reviewing
operational and financial performance (3) approving
major investments and divestments, (4) reviewing risk
management and internal control system of the Group,
(5) ensuring appropriate management development and
succession plans in place, (6) approving appointments
of Directors and other senior executives, (7) approving
corporate social responsibility policies, (8) ensuring
effective communication with shareholders and (9) other
significant operational and financial matters.

An update list of Directors identifying their role and

function is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Delegation of Authority

The Board has delegated the authorities and day-to-
day responsibilities to the management and requires the
management to execute the objectives and strategies
established by the Board. The Board also exercises a
separate and independent assessment to the performance
of the management on a periodical basis to ensure the
delegation is appropriate to the Company’s need.

The management is responsible for running the
Company’s businesses and for proposing the
development of the Group’s strategies and overall
commercial objectives in consultation with the Board.
The management is also responsible for implementing
decisions of the Board and its committees, developing
main policies and reviewing the business organisational
structure and operational performance. Furthermore, the
management is obligated to supply relevant, adequate,
clear and timely information and report to the Board and
its committees in a consistent format. The Board, where
necessary, can make further enquiries to the management
on any matters they are concerned.

Board Meeting

For the Board discharges their responsibilities, the
Directors are required to meet in person regularly. The
schedule of the Board meetings for the coming year is
determined and informed to all Directors in the fourth
quarter meeting annually. To ensure the discussions
attains the consensus of the Board, the chairman of the
Board enheartens for Directors to actively express their
opinion during the Board discussion.

In practice, prior to each meeting of the Board, as
delegated by the chairman of the Board, the company
secretary or a designated person of the Company
prepares and despatches the notice of meeting to all
Directors for at least 14 days. The management supplies
the relevant documents and information to the Board
and each committee in a timely manner to ensure that
all the participants are given adequate time to review
and prepare the matter discussed for making informed
decisions in the meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REF;-QRT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting (continued)

Where any Director requires more information than
provided by management, that Director can make further
enquiries during the discussion and/or invite the relevant
personnel to provide further explanation, where necessary.

The Board met four times during the Year and meeting
attendance records are set out on page 70 of this annual
report.

The minutes of the Board and its committees’ meetings
are prepared by the company secretary or a designated
person of the Company whom the Board delegates. The
draft minutes are circulated to all members of the Board
and each Committee for their commentary. The final
minutes are open for inspection by all members of the
Board at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer shall be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual and
the division of responsibilities between the chairman and
chief executive officer should be clearly established and
set out in writing.

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company are not separated and are performed by
the same individual, Mr. Cheng Chor Kit. The balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operations of the
Board, which comprises experienced and high calibre
individuals, with a highly independent element in the Board
where the Board members meet regularly to discuss
issues affecting the operations of the Company. The
Board believes that this structure is conducive to strong
and consistent leadership, enabling the Company to make
and implement decisions promptly and efficiently.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

The Independent non-executive Directors do not
merely review and scrutinise the Company’s financial
performance. Further, they bring in a wide range of skills
and business experience, in exercising an independent
and sound judgment on issues related to strategy, policy,
and key appointments to the Company. Besides, they play
a significant monitoring role in any matter related to the
conflict of interests.

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules,
there are no less than three independent non-executive
directors and at least one has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independent non-executive
Directors are all experienced individuals from various
professionals, their skills and experience are an essential
element in the proper functioning of the Board. The Board
believes that a vital independent components on the
Board can provide a higher level of “checks and balances”
on the Company’s key decision-making mechanism as
well as monitor the Company’s affairs effectively.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Director, the written confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Evaluated the independence of all independent non-
executive Directors on an annual basis and based on
their confirmation, the Board considers the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors have been
adequately maintained.

The independent non-executive Directors are identified
as such in all corporate communications containing the
names of the Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal
The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of Directors are laid down in the Bye-Laws.
Each of executive Director is engaged on a service
contract with the Company for different terms.

Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Director is also appointed in a services contract
with a specific term, and of his/her appointment.

All Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy are
subject to election at the annual general meeting after the
appointment. All Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Under provision B.2.3 of CG Code, any further re-
appointment of an independent non-executive Director
who has served the Board for more than nine years
will be subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by shareholders in the annual general meeting of the
Company. As the date of this report, only two independent
non-executive Directors served the Board for more than
nine years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Nomination Policy

The Company’s Nomination Policy provides the
framework by which criteria and process in the nomination
appointment and re-election of Directors can be clearly
defined and to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives which are
appropriate to the requirements of the Company business.
In considering the suitability of a proposed candidate,
the nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) will take a number of factors, including
qualifications, integrity, reputation, time commitment, skills
and experience relevant to the Company’s businesses,
into consideration. The decision to appoint or re-appoint
a director will be made subject to the Company’s
Board Diversity Policy and the relevant Listing Rules.
The above selection process will be conducted by the
Nomination Committee to identify potential candidate for
new directorship or for re-appointment of a Director. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee on the
selected candidates will be communicated to the Board
for their consideration and approval. The Nomination
Policy also includes the Board succession planning policy
outlining the process that the Board need to use for
planning to replace Board members due to the Directors
resignation, retirement and other circumstance. The
Nomination Policy will be reviewed on a regular basis.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueq)

Board Diversity Policy

To enhance the effectiveness and the balanced
development of the Board, the Board commits to
promoting diversity among the composition of its Board
members. The Board Diversity Policy provides a process
and guideline which the Company will implement to
achieve its diversity and ensures the Board has the
appropriate mix of skills, experience and diversity
perspectives required for the Company’s businesses. The
Board believes that the diversity should not be limited to
gender, the following charts indicate the diversity of the
Board members in terms of gender, age and length of
services.

Gender %5l

. Male
==}
i
Female

z

Length of Services {EHA
Below 5 years
HBFEUT
5-10 years
RETF

11 - 15 years
+-Eta%F
Over 15 years

THEENLE

The Board believes that the diversity has been embedded
into the Company’s culture and integrated into our
policies. To ensure the sustainability of the Board Diversity
Policy, the Board have reviewed the Board Diversity
Policy and the effectiveness of the diversity of the Board
annually. The Company has taken and continues to take
steps to enhance diversity on the Board. Going forward,
we will adopt a more open policy on board diversity.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training

Every Director should keep himself or herself abreast
of the responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company.
Each new incoming Director receives an induction
package covering the introduction of Group’s businesses
and real-life overview of the Company, induction of their
roles and responsibilities, the practical procedure duties
and the compliance of laws and regulations.

All Directors are encouraged to pursue an ongoing
development and refreshment of their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
relevant and productive.

On 29 November 2021, a tailor-made seminar
was organised to Directors in related to the recent
development of corporate governance. Except for one
Director who was unable to attend the seminar because of
his business, all Directors had participated in this seminar.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training (continued)
The training of each individual Director for the Year is set
out below:

TEERBME

EEE )
By ()
REENAEFZEIHIMT

Types of training

Name of Director EEHE EAER
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit BT A A/B
Mr. Liu Tat Luen BEELYE A/B
Mr. Cheng Tsz To L e e A/B
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang Bl 18 & A/B
Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston TRIESLE A/B
Non-executive Director FHITES

Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent HEEE L A/B
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHITESE

Mr. Wong Chi Wai W A/B
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian BREmE L A/B
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul BB & 5% A A/B
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip RARFERE A/B

A Attending briefings/seminars/conference/forums
B Reading/studying training or other materials

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
coverage on directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
any legal actions taken against the Directors and senior
management of the Company arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.
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TREBRSE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following Board
committees, all chaired by independent non-executive
Directors, with clearly defined terms of reference, which
are on no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG
Code of the Listing Rules:

- Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”);

- Nomination Committee; and

- Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”)

The roles and responsibilities of each Board committee
are set out by the Board with clearly defined written
terms of reference, and this document is available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. Under
the written terms of reference, each Committee reports
directly to the Board on its decisions or recommendations.

Pursuant to the written terms of reference, each
Board committee has the authority to engage outside
consultants or experts as it considers necessary to
discharge the committee’s responsibilities. Minutes
of all Board committees meetings are circulated to all
Board members. To further reinforce independence
and effectiveness, all Audit Committee members being
appointed are independent non-executive Directors, and
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
have been structured with a majority of independent
non-executive Directors being the Board committees’
members. During the Year and up to the date of this
annual report, each Board Committee’s members include:

EEZET
EEECNINTHBEIFRNTESTHE
TFRNESEZES  YARPARATHER
CHARTEBER EMARRZE TR
Z AR

- ¥MZBREe(FMZESE)):

- REZEg R
- EBRZB®(EXRZES))

EXeE TEZBENACKBAEYHES
SUEHARAEEBEEE - XA
B X FTRUE R AR B HER - RESHRE
BEE SZEeRHEREMMEBEELER
tHREEE -

RiEEEBELE RETZEGZAE.
EXEeE TRLEAREERR/TERZ
BIHMEMKER -MEEETEETZEZE
CERLBHIXSEEFTINEEMN - R
—EMEBIERBERE AEERETZE
REZEEKENRBIIFNTES - MH
ZEQRREBRRBEZKEBHYUNBIIERIT
EERT -RAFEAREEARFHAY
E=ZeB TRZEQNRERK:

Remuneration Nomination Audit
Committee Committee Committee
FMzag REZE8 ENZEE
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit Executive Director Member X 8 Member X & -
BRELE HITES
Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent  Non-executive Director Member X & Member i & -
BEEET FaTES
Mr. Wong Chi Wai Independent non-executive Director Member B 5 Chairman £ & Member X &
AEMELE BUFNITES
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian Independent non-executive Director Member FX & Member i\ &  Chairperson £ /&
REmET BUHITES
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul Independent non-executive Director Chairman ¥ & Member 5 & Member X &
BE % & BUFHTES
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip Independent non-executive Director Member 5 & Member A% & Member f% &
BUEHITES

REFREL

56 N \ _,.,...-"f
N 3
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration packages offered by the Company
should be able to attract and motivate the Directors and
senior management of the Company for their sufficient
quality, whilst at the same time taking into account
the shareholders’ interests as well. The main roles
and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee is
aimed to assist the Board to develop and administer
fair and transparent procedures for setting policy on
the remuneration of Directors and senior management
of the Company and to ensure no individual Director
or any of his/her associates can determine his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee reviews and determines,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages, including but not limited to basic salaries,
deferred compensation, stock options and any benefits
in kind, pension rights, incentive payments and any
other compensation payments, of individual executive
Directors and senior management of the Company with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
within the Group and in the market. The Remuneration
Committee also independently reviews and approves the
compensation and related arrangements for executive
Directors and senior management of the Company in
respect of any loss or termination of office or appointment.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the Year to review and approve the Directors’
remuneration packages. Meeting attendance records of
the Remuneration Committee are set out on page 70 of
this annual report.

Information relating to remuneration of each Director for
the Year is set out in Note 10 to the financial statements.
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TREBRSE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee

The primary responsibility of the Nomination Committee,
follow the Company’s Nomination Policy and Diversity
Policy, reviews the structure, size and composition of
the Board from time to time and advises to the Board
on the candidates, conditions, selection standards and
procedures of the proposed appointment of Directors and
senior management of the Company.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
recommending to the Board all new appointments of
Directors and senior management of the Company
identified by referral or intermediary agencies. The
Nomination Committee considers the past performance
and qualification of the candidates for Directors and
senior management of the Company, reviews general
market conditions and the Bye-Laws in selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship and
management.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the Year to review and discuss the composition of the
Board, assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and to make recommendations to the
Board on the re-election of Directors. Meeting attendance
records of the Nomination Committee are set out on page
70 of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee

The Company has not deliberately established a risk
committee and a corporate governance committee,
the prominent roles and responsibilities of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in (1) maintaining
effective risk management and a system of internal control
and compliance with the Company’s obligations (including
external financial reporting obligations) under the Listing
Rules as modified from time to time and applicable laws
and regulations is in place; (2) overseeing the integrity
of the financial statements of the Company; and (3), on
behalf of the Board, (i) selecting the Company’s external
auditor and approving their remuneration, (i) assessing the
independence and qualifications of the external auditors,
and (iii) overseeing the performance of the Company’s
internal audit function.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed with
the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and financial reporting matters,
including the review of the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021 as well as the interim
report for the six months ended 30 September 2021.
During the Year, the Audit Committee also reviewed the
Group’s financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems, discussed with the internal auditor to
ensure the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit
function, conducted discussions with the external auditor
on financial reporting, compliance, the effectiveness of
the audit process, and reported all relevant matters to the
Board. In addition, the Audit Committee has met twice
with the external auditor of the Company and reviewed the
financial results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2022, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year.

Meeting attendance records of the Audit Committee are
set out on page 70 of this annual report.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#%EAR A a]

AN Az s 4 2
1 E‘:/l:l ﬁ%

BEEZEE(#)

ENEEE
AARYBEERTAREEGROEEA
Z8e ERZECVIEAGREE AW
PEEE() RBERAREERNDERZRT
AN WHRERDTET R (ERE
B RERAERAGIFETE Y I (B
HONABHBREZ BT 5 (2 ERAQT
MEHRE Y BN RE) AREAEESER
() PhIBA DT Z SN B Y T TS
(i) 37 SN AR BUET 2 B ST 1 R ¢ (i) B
BARTRNDEZBA Y K5 -

RAFERN BZZECCHERERMA
EEEPN S RARERETBRES
H BiEEMEHE T -_—F=-A=+—H
TFEZERERVBERERREE S = —
FNRNA=Z+TRHILEANEAZFEHRE - RAF
B BRZESNEHAAEB B
R EE RS EESE - BB EA
AR AR B N EBE AT B AE MO AR AR~ BLET
TEETR B RBERZEBEmEINE
BB YRNESSERMEERH
EEo W BEREEGLEAQF ZHNE
BEMeEmMARENAEEHE T
FZAZ+THUEFEZUEEE  B8EK
EERMZ SRR ER -

RAFER BRZEQ@HRTHAEH -
REEBGZE@RHECHIEANAFRET0R
W o




/'\

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREBRSE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Corporate Governance Function

The Board delegated its responsibilities to the Audit
Committee with clearly defined written terms of reference,
for performing the corporate governance functions:

1. to develop and review the policies and practices of
the Company on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the policies and practices
of the Company on compliance with legal and
regulatory;

4, to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to the Directors
and employees of the Group; and

5. to review the compliance by the Company with the
CG Code and the disclosure requirements for the CG
Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and External Auditor’s Financial Reporting
Responsibility

The management has timely and frequently provided
a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance to the Board. The Board is
responsible for preparing the financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs and
the results together with the cash flows situation for the
Year. In preparing the financial statements, the generally
accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong have been
adopted; appropriate accounting policies have been used
and applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates have been made.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Directors’ and External Auditor’s Financial Reporting
Responsibility (continued)

Other than the discussion in respect of the financial
conditions, liquidity and financial resources in the chapter
of “Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements of the
Group.

The Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 74 to 85 of
this annual report has set out the reporting responsibilities
of the external auditor of the Company.

Auditor’s Remuneration
The auditor’s remuneration and the fee for non-audit
services for the Year are as below:

Nature of services R E
Audit services ZH RS
Non-audit services IEZ RS
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and financial
control and reviewing their effectiveness. The Group is
committed to set up and maintain a sound and effective
internal control system that is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in operational system and achievement of
the Group’s objectives.

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management
approach to identify, access and manage different
types of risks. As the first line of defence, operational
management are responsible for identifying, assessing
and monitoring risk associated with each business
activities or transaction. The management, as the second
line of defence, defines rules sets and models, provides
technical support, develops new system and oversees
project management. It ensures that risks are within the
acceptable range and that the first line of defence is
effective. As the final line of defence, an internal control
advisor assists the Audit Committee to review the first and
second lines of defence.

An internal control advisor was appointed by the Company
as outsourced internal audit function to assist the
Group to conduct yearly review on the internal controls
system according to the internal audit plan agreed by
the management and Audit Committee. The internal
control advisor reported the internal audit findings and
recommendations to both the management of the Group
and Audit Committee. The management of the Group
agreed on the internal audit findings and adopted the
recommendations accordingly.

Based on the risk management mechanism and internal
audit review activities, the management of the Group had
provided a confirmation to the Board that the Group had
maintained an effective risk management mechanism and
internal control systems during the year ended 31 March
2022.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

Kin Yat, as a listed corporation, must, as soon as
reasonably practicable after any inside information has
come to its knowledge, disclose the inside information
to the public, unless the information falls with any of
the “Safe Harbours” as provided in SFO. Every Director
must take all reasonable measures from time to time to
ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach
of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Company.
In addition, as included in our staff handbook, a strict
prohibition to all Directors and relevant employees on
the unauthorised disclosure or use of confidential and
inside information as well as deal in the securities of the
Company when they are in possession of undisclosed
inside information.

To fulfil the disclosure obligation, during the Year, the
Company has disclosed inside information to the market
as a whole by way of the electronic publication system
operated by the Stock Exchange and other means in
accordance with the Listing Rules so that all participants
of the market have equal and simultaneous access to the
same information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Tung Wai has resigned and Mr. Hung Kam Wing,
Timmy (“Mr. Hung”) has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 8 October 2021.

Mr. Hung joined the Group in August 2021 as the Group
Financial Controller. Currently, he is a fellow member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in English and
Wales and an associate member of HKICPA.

Mr. Hung confirmed that he complied with all the required

qualifications, experience and training requirements under
the Listing Rules.
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SRERBE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

Shareholders’ Rights
1.

Rights to convene Special General Meeting
Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, any one or more
registered shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than 10% of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at the general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by a written requisition,
to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

The written requisition must state the purpose of
the meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and be
delivered to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company at the Company’s principal place of
business at 7/F., Galaxy Factory Building, 25-27 Luk
Hop Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, and
such may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionist(s).

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them
represented more than one half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene a meeting in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of
the Companies Act of Bermuda.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

TEERRE

BRREAMNRBREEBR 2

Shareholders’ Rights (continued) BRERER (4F)

2. Procedures for putting forward proposals at 2. RBEAS LIEZZEZEEF
shareholders’ meetings
Any one or more registered shareholders, at the T —ZRZRBBCLZRERNERET
date of submission of written requisition, represents EFHEH REEZERE@EBRERIE
either (a) not less than 5% of the total voting rights ZREADNE% O R— BB
of all shareholders; or (b) not less than one hundred R OAREREEDEBFUARERREARZ £
shareholders, entitled to submit a written requisition REEZ -
for putting forward proposals at the general meeting.
The written requisition duly signed by the registered BELDZBRAEAEBZEMER (B
shareholders, must state the purpose of the written BHPAEEE2EF2EM)  #ER—HT
requisition, together with a statement of not more BB—FTF ARABBERRERME
than one thousand words with respect to the matter EECZRAEREFRETETEE XM
referred to in the proposed resolution must be B MEFBERELAETEN - A
deposited at the principal place of business in Hong RIEERXERI AL NEBEXRE MHE
Kong, not less than six weeks before the general TR EAMER - BIZBRKRE XS/~
meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a R—IEKE -
resolution; or not less than one week in case of other
requisition.

3. Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to 3. REREFSIENEHZEF
the Board
The Board understands that in-depth communication BEERT BREIRAYETIIEER
with shareholders is an important way to understand RAEEHNEESR - REAIFERIAEZRE
the thinking of shareholders. Shareholders may at FRBBARABI 2 ARMERNERTEIR
any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing HEHR RAAWMEZBEFBOT
through the company secretary of the Company
whose contact details are as follows:
7/F., Galaxy Factory Building, 25-27 Luk Hop Street, EBNEFHE NS F25-275%
San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong ERIRAETE
Fax: (852)-2351-1867 2 & : (852)-2351-1867
Email: webmaster@kinyat.com.hk B E : webmaster@kinyat.com.hk
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EERRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investor Relations

1.

T N

Shareholders’ communication

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining
clear, timely and effective communications
with shareholders. Annual and interim reports
are published to provide shareholders with
comprehensive information of the Company’s
operational and financial performances. The
Company practices timely dissemination
of information and makes sure its website
(www.kinyat.com.hk) contains the most current
information, including annual reports, interim reports,
announcements, monthly returns and press releases,
and is updated in a timely manner to ensure
transparency.

The Board endeavour to maintain ongoing and
transparent communications with all shareholders
and, in particular, use the general meeting as a
platform for shareholders to state and exchange
views with the Board directly and encourage their
participation. The Directors are available to answer
questions from shareholders throughout an annual
general meeting. The external auditor is also
available at an annual general meeting to address
shareholders’ queries in accordance with the
requirements of applicable Listing Rules.

The annual general meeting for the year of 2021
of the Company (the “2021 AGM”) was held on 24
August 2021 and all the members of the Board and
the Chairman/Chairperson of each Board Committee
together with the external auditor presented in the
2021 AGM. Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing
Rules, any vote of shareholders on all resolutions
at general meetings must be taken by poll. The poll
results in respect of the resolutions proposed at the
2021 AGM were published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on 24 August
2021.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investor Relations (continued)

1.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Shareholders’ communication (continued)

The annual general meeting for the year of
2022 of the Company (the “2022 AGM”) will be
held on Friday, 19 August 2022, for details of
the information on the 2022 AGM, please refer
to this annual report and its accompanying
Explanatory Statement. The Board continues to
maintain regular dialogue with financial analysts
and institutional investors as appropriate to keep
them informed the Group’s strategies, operations,
management and plans. In order to strengthen
the bi-directional communications between the
Company, shareholders and investors, an email
contact (webmaster@kinyat.com.hk) responded by
senior management of the Company are available to
shareholders and investors.

Sufficient and timely information

The Board recognises the significance of providing
information to shareholders to enable each
shareholder to make an informed assessment for
the purposes of voting on each of the matters put
before shareholders at the general meeting. Copies
of the annual report, financial statements and related
documents are despatched to shareholders in
accordance with the statutory requirements.

Significant constitutional documents
There was no change in the Company’s
constitutional document for the Year.
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coBf-iDORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERER/RE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)
Investor Relations (continued) REEBRR(Z)

BRREAMNRBREEBR 2

4.

Dividend Policy

Our goal is to share the fruit of our effort and provide
a stable and sustainable return to our shareholders.
The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy
(the “Dividend Policy”) which is a guideline on the
distribution of dividends to shareholders of the
Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, there
shall be a balance between maintaining sufficient
capital for expanding the Group’s business as well
as rewarding the shareholders of the Company.
The Board shall also take into account, among
other things, when considering the declaration and
payments of dividends:

- the actual and expected financial performance
of the Group;

4.

BB R

DERMABIORR - REREHREE
MAIFFENEHRDRMNBER - AR A
ERAREEE ([REBE D ERDIK
BEFARRBRZIES -

ERIRNEER  BEAFARESH
AEBEDREBARBDBARFBRRZ
RS FE - EFEERE IR MR K
ERTAZE(EPEE)ATEE:

- AEBZBERREHMBREA

- the capital and debt level of the Group; - AEEZEEREBKE:
- the general market conditions; - —gmEARR

- any working capital and capital expenditure
requirement;

- any future development plans of the Group;

- retained earnings and distributable reserves of
the Company and each of the members of the
Group;

- the liquidity position of the Group;

- any restrictions on dividend payouts imposed
by any of the Group’s lenders;

- the statutory and regulatory restrictions which
the Group is subject to from time to time; and

- any other relevant factors that the Board may
deem appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investor Relations (continued)

4. Dividend Policy (continued)
Under our Dividend Policy, the recommendation
of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board as well as any
restrictions under the law’s requirements of Bermuda
and Hong Kong, the Listing Rules and the Bye-Laws
of the Company. The declaration of final dividend will
be subject to the approval of the shareholders.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Company
in respect of its future dividend. In addition, any
dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert
to the Company in accordance with the Bye-Laws of
the Company.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
change in information of the Directors subsequent to the
date of the 2021/2022 interim report of the Company is
set out below:

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul, the independent non-executive
Director has retired as an independent non-executive
director, after the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of Xinyi Solar Holdings Limited (stock code 0968)
held on 2 June 2022.

Other than disclosed above, there is no other information

required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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COB’i’ORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREBRSE

THE ATTENDANCE RECORD OF EACH
MEMBER OF THE BOARD IN 2021/2022
The number of Annual General Meeting, Board and its
Committees meetings attended by each Director for the
Year.

B /B _FEEER
REHESZLE

NAEEN SHEEFEEYREAEA
& EEEREISECERAN-

Annual
General Full Remuneration Nomination Audit
Meeting Board Committee  Committee  Committee
RRBAEAE 2RESE yMzEe REZEE ENZEE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit ORGxE 1/1 4/4 1/1 171 NATEA
Mr. Liu Tat Luen BERLE 1/1 4/4 NATER NATER  NATER
Mr. Cheng Tsz To BrEik 1/1 4/4 NATER NATER  NATER
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang BrEns 1/1 4/4 NATER  NATER  NATER
Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston TRlEEE 11 4/4 N/A “~E F N/A @ F N/A @
Non-executive Director FHTES
Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent ~ EZEf&+ 11 4/4 11 11 NATER
Independent non-executive BUFSTES
Directors
Mr. Wong Chi Wai EMELE 1/1 4/4 1/1 1/1 4/4
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian BENEL 1/1 4/4 1/1 1/1 4/4
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul BEg LT 1/1 4/4 11 11 4/4
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip REELE 1/1 3/4 1/1 1/1 4/4
:)
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OTHER CORPORATE INFORMA':[_ION

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

Banking facilities with covenants in relation to specific
performance of the controlling shareholder (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of the Company:

In April 2015 and November 2017, the Company as
borrower, entered into a renewed and a new term loan
facility agreement of HK$100,000,000 each with a bank
(“Bank A”) as lender for a term of 60 months of each term
loan facility respectively. All term loans made under the
foregoing two facilities were either repaid or substituted or
renewed by the ensuing banking facilities offered by Bank
A.

In May 2020, the Company as a borrower executed
a banking facility agreement relating to two term loan
facilities in the aggregate amount of HK$65,000,000
offered by Bank A (the “Facility 05/2020”). Under the
foregoing agreement, the term loan amounting to
HK$15,000,000 is repayable in 24 months commencing
19 April 2021 whilst another term loan of HK$50,000,000
is repayable in 30 months commencing 18 May 2021.

In November 2021, the Company as borrower entered
into a banking facility agreement relating to a term loan
in the amount of HK$70,000,000 offered by Bank A. The
term loan facility will be repayable in 36 months after the
date of loan drawdown and is to replace, substitute and
refinance the outstanding loan balances drawn under the
Facility 05/2020.

In January 2019, the Company as borrower entered into a
renewed term loan facility agreement with a bank (“Bank
B”) (the “Facility 01/2019A”) which was to substitute the
two term loan agreements the Company entered into with
Bank B in July 2015 and November 2017. Pursuant to the
Facility 01/2019A, the renewed term loans are for a period
of 36 months and including term loans of HK$45,000,000
to finance the capital expenditure of the Company and of
HK$217,500,000 to refinance the outstanding balance of
the loans previously granted.
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES ON THE
STOCK EXCHANGE (continued)

In January 2019, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (“Subsidiary A”) as borrower, entered into a
term loan facility agreement of HK$55,000,000 with Bank
B for a term of 36 months from the date of drawdown (the
“Facility 01/2019B).

In February 2020, the Company as borrower entered into
a term loan agreement with Bank B with the purpose
to substitute the term loan facilities under the Facility
01/2019A entered in January 2019. Pursuant to the
foregoing facility agreement, term loans in the aggregate
amount of HK$239,950,000 with a term of 36 months
from the date of drawdown were granted, encompassing
term loans in the aggregate amount of HK$179,950,000
designated to finance the Group’s capital expenditure;
and of HK$60,000,000 to partially refinance the
Company’s existing indebtedness (the “Facility 02/20207).

In September 2021, the Company and Subsidiary A, as
borrowers, were each offered by Bank B a new term loan
facility. The 2 new term loan facilities agreements carrying
the terms of 36 months from the dates of loan drawdowns
were executed in October 2021. The new term loan
facility in aggregate facility limits of up to HK$175,566,000
offered to the Company encompassed term loans in a
tally of HK$115,566,000 to refinance the outstanding
term loans indebted to Bank B drawn under the Facility
02/2020 and a new term loan of HK$60,000,000 to
refinance CAPEX investment. Subsidiary A was offered
the new term loan facility in the amount of up to
HK$33,000,000 to replace, substitute and refinance
the outstanding term loans drawn under the Facility
01/2019B.

The foregoing Facility 01/2019B and Facility 02/2020
became lapsed after the execution of the 2 new term loan
facility agreements made available to the Company and
Subsidiary A in October 2021.
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OTHER CORPORATE INFORMA':[_ION

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES ON THE
STOCK EXCHANGE (continued)

In May 2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (“Subsidiary B”) as borrower, entered into a
new term loan and trade-line facility agreement of total
HK$50,000,000 with a bank (“Bank C”) (the “Facility
05/2018”). The purpose of the term loan facility is used
for financing capital expenditure with a term of 35 months
from the loan drawdowns. The outstanding loan balance
in the amount of HK$32,000,000 under the aforesaid
term loan facility, with its maturity of repayment further
extended to June 2022 pursuant to a supplement facility
letter offered by Bank C in March 2020.

Subsequent to the year end at 31 March 2022, Bank
C offered Subsidiary B as a borrower, new General
Banking Facilities in April 2022, which are to replace and
substitute the Facility 056/2018, comprising a new term
loan designated for profits tax payment with a term of 24
months from the date of drawdown and the outstanding
loan balance under the Facility 05/2018 with the final
repayment due in June 2022 in a tally of approximately
HK$33,700,000 and a trade-line up to an aggregate
maximum limit of HK$62,000,000. The new facility
agreement was entered into in May 2022. The Facility
05/2018 became lapsed in tandem.

In addition to general terms and conditions, each of the
above facility agreements imposes, inter alia, a condition
that Mr. Cheng Chor Kit (“Mr. Cheng”), the executive
Director and the controlling shareholder of the Company
(as defined under the Listing Rules), and his direct family
member(s) collectively shall beneficially or directly or
indirectly maintain a shareholding of not less than 50% of
the issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Cheng shall
continue to be chairman of the Board under the facility
agreement entered into with Bank C. These conditions
are collectively constituted as the specific performance of
the controlling shareholder of the Company (the “Specific
Performance Obligations”). A breach of the Specific
Performance Obligations will constitute an event of default
under the relevant facility letter. Upon the occurrence of
such event, each of the loan shall become immediately
due and repayable on demand.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B

_a

pwec

To the Shareholders of Kin Yat Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Kin Yat Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 86 to 227, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2022;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

o Fair value estimation of freehold land and buildings
and investment properties

° Provision for inventories

° Expected credit loss allowance for accounts
receivable
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

BARETEE®)

Key Audit Matter
ERESSBE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN EFNMEEERETEE

Fair value estimation of freehold land and buildings and investment properties

KARBLIHRBFURKREN RN D FEMGS

Refer to notes 4.1(a), 15 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
B2HRE VB mEAMT4.1(0) - 1516 °

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had freehold
land and buildings of HK$358,873,000 included
in property, plant and equipment, and investment
properties of HK$65,280,000. The revaluation deficit
and fair value loss recognised during the year
amounted to HK$23,859,000 and HK$2,601,000,
respectively.

MZBEZZF=A=+—H0  E5EFEKAER
T i 2 # 5358,873,000& 7T (BIERME - BE K&
B RIEE W £65,280,000/8 7T + FARD B ERE
i 5 4t J2 A T {B /&5 1823,859,0007%8 7t 12,601,000/
IF o

Management engaged external valuers to determine
the year-end fair value of the freehold land and
buildings, and investment properties based on
market comparable method or direct replacement
cost method. The valuations are dependent on
certain key assumptions that require significant
management judgement, including estimated useful
life, unit rates and replacement cost.

EREZEINBEEMBEETSHLEBEANEEER
RAEEERKAERE T REFUARKEMENF
REAFE - HEFRREEEREREBHENE T
BRRER - BIEMG I EAFH  EEMEEKL -

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balance and significant management judgement
and estimates involved in the fair value estimation
of freehold land and buildings and investment
properties.

BT UL S 05 Ty B A SR B K SOk A SR £ 3
MEFURBREMEN LA FEGTSIREAEEE
FIER A ET o

Our key procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of freehold land and buildings and
investment properties included:
BPHEBEEKAERLIMREFUARKENE
WEERTHEZRTFEE

° Understood and validated management’s
internal controls and assessment processes
of estimating fair value of freehold land and
buildings and investment properties;

AR R AZ BB IR E A K AR E L MBFIA
RIZEWEN RN ARG RFEERF

° Assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors involved in the fair value
estimation such as subjectivity;

M ERERRANALERR  ERZEREMLE
WA EERE LA FEGEFR S RAEMAE
E g EZH KT - flanEERM

° Evaluated the external property valuers’
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

FHAESMNE R ERE EE - e MZEIE -

° Involved our in-house valuation expert to
assess the methodologies used in valuation
by referencing to market practices and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions,
such as estimated useful life, unit rates and
replacement costs by referencing to market
data; and
ERAMABHOEEZRLE M58
HEMEAN AL RBEMISHEBET HAR
BRR (PIEERAIE RS  EEREEXL)
MR EN s &

° Assessed the appropriateness of the
disclosures in the financial statements.

AHEMBRREEFENRE N

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
management’s judgements and estimates applied
on the fair value estimation of freehold land and
buildings and investment properties were supported
by available evidence.
RIBFTETOIRT - HPIRRE BB KA FEE LI
NABTF AR AR & ) 26 0N T B 1 51 8 PR A9 1 B R (5t
EMGBRENF -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REIs--ORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B B ]S

BERETEE#)

Key Audit Matter
HRETBIR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ESONEEBRENSE

Provision for inventories

FERE

Refer to notes 4.1(b) and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.
E2HGRE B RERME410) K22 -

At 31 March 2022, the Group held gross inventories
of HK$317,918,000 and the provision for obsolete
or slow moving inventories was HK$31,032,000.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value in the consolidated financial
statements. Management assesses the provision for
obsolete or slow moving inventories at each period
end based on their consideration of obsolescence
and the net realisable value of inventories. The
determination of estimated selling price less cost to
sell requires the use of significant judgement and
estimates, including consideration of condition of
products, latest selling price, expectation of future
sales orders, market trends and customer demands.
RZEZZF=ZA=+—H ' ESEFENR
FEA317,9180008 T MELFHTFTERE A
31,032,000/ 7T ° 7 &K AN & Al # 3R FE M E R
BERGEUBBRERIIE EEEANYFTERE
BEREAERFENZSE REHBRERES
T BB EEITA L - TR S EREE X
AFEFRERABMGEE - BRESERRRT - &7
?giﬁ% ORI EFIEMTER  MEBEBEREFPEX

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balance and, significant management judgement
and estimates involved in determining the provision
for obsolete or slow moving inventories.

BB IR UL E IS DN AR E KRBT RE S F
HIFEBBR S RENEEEH @ MGG -

Our key procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the provision for obsolete or slow
moving inventories included:

Bt B IR B RE BT BB B ETERITH
FREF e :

o Understood and validated key control
procedures over the aging schedule and the
estimation of inventory provision;

BRI ZEHRREBRNEEREHTHNEH
RIEHIRRR

° Assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors involved in the estimation
of inventory provision such as subjectivity;

A EARERBANANERR  EFEEGE
WA EEREMRFEREAGHER S ROHEMA
R EAZR KT - flanE &8

° Attended the inventory count to observe the
inventory condition;
SEFEBHUBRFEMN

° Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
aging profile of individual inventory items by
checking to the supporting documents such
as goods receipt notes;
AL S XinEZ AT (JIKREER) K
A E RTS8 B R e EREIE -

° Tested, on a sample basis, the net
realisable value of selected inventory items,
by comparing the carrying amount of the
inventory items against their selling price
subsequent to the year end;
FAMKAALEMEFTERRMEESEANEF
ﬁ?ﬁﬁ@%% CHMEEEN A ERFEETA
afl o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BARETEE®)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRESSE RN ESONEEBRENSE

Provision for inventories

FERE

° Tested, on a sample basis, the usage of
irlventories subsequent to the year end; and
KAMEFTRAERFEENEEER &

o Assessed the reasonableness of inventory
provision by comparing against historical sales
or usage pattern and sales subsequent to the
year end.

B S S AR RE R m B
T AEFERENSIENE -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered

management’s judgements and estimates applied

on the provision for inventories were supported by
available evidence.

REBFETORF RAIRREEBEHETERERE

A Y ) &ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ LY ;’EE’JSEH °

\\\
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

R 78 TS

BARETEE®)

Key Audit Matter
HRETBIR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ESONEEBRENSE

Expected credit loss allowance for accounts receivable

FEURANEREEHERE

Refer to notes 4.1(c) and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

F2HEE B HMEKRMEL.1(c) %28

At 31 March 2022, the Group had gross accounts
receivable of HK$304,317,000 and expected credit
loss allowance for accounts receivable amounted to
HK$14,998,000.
RZEZZF=ZA=+—H ' BEENEKERERR
¥ /304,317,000 7T - M EWBRRHBHEEEE
B 1% 514,998,000 7T °

Loss allowance for accounts receivable was
provided based on the simplified approach of
the expected credit loss model prescribed under
HKFRS 9.

JRE W B R B S 1R B O IR PR B B B R iR S RSB O5R
RENEHEEEBERANMEC T TR -

Management applied judgement in assessing the
expected credit losses. Accounts receivable relating
to customers which are affiliated companies of
listed entities with satisfactory credit history or do
not have continuing business with the Group are
assessed individually for provision for impairment
allowance. Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining receivables
based on their shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due, and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into account the
nature of the customer and its aging category, and
applying expected credit loss rates to the respective
gross carrying amounts of the receivables.
ERENGERAEEERREITERAE - ARIFE
BBy FmEBNEBRARTPE S£EYT
BREEBERZZ PR EKRZRT BB G
LAGHR BB B - E%FEﬁEﬁLLWEAHQ
ERRSE KSR SE BRI RFOETS A8

W HKEm g  RZERIZFEFHOEE
&%ﬁﬁ% W25 IR S B R E AR E R
RIEMBEE BB EEITAE -

Our key procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the expected credit loss allowance
for accounts receivable included:
BMEREENHENERNEREEBIEREMR
HMITHRFEE -

° Understood and validated key controls and
assessment processes of estimating expected
credit loss allowance for accounts receivable;
BRELAZEMERMERNTEREEERERE
B3 2SI R AR

° Assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors involved in the loss
allowance estimation such as subjectivity;
AR EXRERRANAERER  ERERMGE
WA EEREMEBEAGHER S ROHEMA
TR g E = &K - PlanFEER M

° For expected credit losses of accounts
receivable assessed individually, assessed
the methodology, with the assistance of our
in-house valuation expert, performed market
research of the default rate of the debtors and
rate of recoveries, factored in forward-looking
adjustment and compared the outcome with
the expected credit loss rates applied by
management;
MEBTHOERERNEREEEEMS -
B AE  RABEEERHS T - HEB

AREHR LB RETHIZHE - EFEE
AR UERREIEERANADRE

ERBREETLER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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BARETEE®)

Key Audit Matter
HRETBIR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ESONEEBRENSE

Expected credit loss allowance for accounts receivable

FEURANEREEHERE

The expected credit loss rates are determined
based on historical credit losses experienced
and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.
EHREEERERDNEBRBARENEEEBEMEE -
WHETHBARMER RATEEER - fINEER
PHEBKERENNEZBLECHERE -

We focused on the expected credit loss allowance
for accounts receivable due to the magnitude of
gross accounts receivable balance at the year end
date and the estimation of relevant expected credit
loss involves significant judgement and subjective
assumptions.
BMPEIREEERNEREEBEREE T HRE
WERFNEEANERERELR - ARIEHANTEY
EEBENEE SR ERAE R EHRE -

o For expected credit losses of accounts
receivable assessed collectively, assessed the
methodology, evaluated the appropriateness
of the management’s grouping, tested the
mathematical accuracy of the approach
adopted, then, with the assistance of
our in-house valuation expert, evaluated
the appropriateness of forward-looking
adjustment;
HEBTIENEUKERNEHREEEREM
T OEAMAE AMEREBETHOANEE
MBI FTERA AN BN RN - HERA
BEEERGET - FHAATEERENEE

o Tested, on a sample basis, the accounts
receivable aging profiles adopted in the
collective assessment by checking to
supporting documents such as invoices; and
BRBEZAXE (FINEE) - WEAESE
BERT (PR A B R IAR R BRI + J2

° Tested, on a sample basis, settlements
of accounts receivable during the year by
checking to supporting documents such as
bank receipts to evaluate the reasonableness
of prior year’s expected credit loss allowance.
MEAHARNFERVERNEZER B E
iBiRE AR (Pl sRITYER) - DAGEIE £ —
FENHRBEEBERENSEN -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
management’s judgements and estimates applied
on the expected credit loss allowance for accounts
receivable were supported by available evidence.
RIBFETORF  ZKARREIREHEKERTD
EHEEERBERBOHE LA EMEREIN
X FF e
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in 2022 Annual Report (but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon), which are obtained prior to the
date of this auditor’'s report, and 2022 Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, which is expected to be
made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read 2022 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to the Audit Committee and take appropriate action
considering our legal rights and obligations.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥
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ENTIESAHEMEREER - EMEER
BERMRAZEMFEASHINEN_F
ZFFH(ETBEEEVERE RN
BN S ) A R B FITEER A 3% H HRZ S Y
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=8 o

SR

B GEEMBRRNERL NREEME
B BMEET T EHZFEMEERERET
M ANEEE®

HBABRMEHEEMBHRRNET  RANE
TRABLXAANEMES  EUBE
ToEREMESRETREAMBMARAK
PEBETBRETATHRNBRAFEEANRS
SEUFFEERERFANBR o

AN ME R AN RS B ARG
HMESCHITNITIE mRBEMARSEMD
EEFEEAHRRL  RAFTEREZSE
BofEhm s RFPRBEMEE -

BHMEA S __FRE HehEAR
TR CWMERMABAZBREFEERERR
i BRMAESHERZESARER AR
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) o
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 E AR A A

EERERZEENRAMBR
REARENERE

BERREFARARBE GRS RM
MCEB R B|EER) REFB (R BRG] 5
BEEMTENGEAMBERER  YHERR
REFABBHRRNBE N FEARKEFR
BE FR T 8 B0 B K 55 AR PR 2L P 75 B 70 B4

=
= ©

ERBERAEMBERRE B8 AFM &
SEFBBELEMRE N LHEERABRTHRE
RSELEAMNER  URERKELE
SEFEN RIFEFAEN EXEER
HFLLEE  SHBEMBERNRBE IR -

BB BT AREMBHRRAR
MEE

BANER RYUYSAVBBRRELES T
TFHEBNRGFFRHERMEMHNEAHRBR M
MEEERFRE YHEBREMEROEE
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E)FOMRE BT (EREE) RS LM
BER CBRUZIAREREELME A - H A
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o ER-BARERRAFERBEER -
SERRBRA AT A KRR SR ARSI RE - IR A IR
BHEMEBRELRRAETERS WK
WK E KRB A PSR ATEH O EE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors'
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

B B ]S

RSB e EHRRAE
NEE &)

ERB(CERBEFERDETRTHNBRES
BPERTERHE RETEXREEE
[Z o AR :

o BRI E B HEF S AR T B BUR
éﬂﬁﬂ‘%ﬁ&%ﬁ&ékﬁaaﬂ%_ﬁ@ﬂﬁ
RETRBITENEFAREELER -
ARERFTZMEENETRE  ER
HMEROER - HRREFAI P R &
E% 1?5’5% BERER  EERM - S0

MEBFE S 2 - B R A IR E R
Wﬁ%ﬁ%ik%&ﬁLmﬂAﬁF*
REEE IR R S5 AR T BB B /Y B2 K SR AR PRl 9
[\ Bg e

TR AR M A BIE S - AREHE
ENEEF BEEMLEY E5H
NEEGINEREBERER -

o FHEEFEMRAETERRNBEERE
ﬁ SRTEFT MR REN AR -

o YEERBRECESHTERMNRE
EH &5 o RIBFTERETEE -
EREFEHEELBEREENENT
WEM MmAEERY ES£EMNF
BRERENELEERRE - MREHMR
BFEEXTEEYE Wﬁbx&%%
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ETRE R c RAKREBENKBRAAEE
B OEEETRBELE -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %% EAR AT

REMHMEBET GRS B RRAE
HEE @)

. AHESRA M RARNEBRIIES N
REAIAR  BERERE URKREH
BHRRESTERMRIBBEXZMEE -

. 7 OEEEANERAXEB TN
BEEERZRE BENENERE
NEHEEMBRRERER - HAM
BR EREEFANITR EERH
T RMAREABRALEZNEE -

FREMBREN BRMEEXZESBERT
FPEIMEFSE  RREZH  EREAHR
EF - BRBMEF P HE L REEHNE
BN =

BHEREZZEQREIER  FALME
NEARBYENEEEXERER XYM
P BEERREA R ERAETERME
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ms. Chung Kit Vi, Kitty.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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LElER

For the year ended 31 March 2022
(E_ET - _F=-A=1+—HIEFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains, net

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Impairment losses on financial assets
Finance costs, net

Share of losses of an associate

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operation
Loss for the year from
discontinued operation

Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) attributable to the
equity holders of the Company
arisen from:

Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

The above consolidated income statement should be read

iy 25

HE R

E7

H ARz 55
HE R HAX
THAX
TREEZMERBRE

MBER  F8R
FEfE—FHB 2R R ZER

BR FT 15 %6 A 38 7

PSR X

FREEER 2

F R EF

ERIEREXK
ERIEEERH

FAREE

F AR

U B I fB A

B (B8

RAFHERE A

FEFE R R

RARERFEA

FEM R, (B58)

EXEH:

;rH: i= z«( AX % fk
BRI EED

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #&m&EER

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

Notes HK$°000 HK$’000

Brat FET FET

5 2,316,315 2,693,865

8 (2,070,783) (2,374,220)

245,532 319,645

6 67,030 94,044

8 (64,916) (59,611)

8 (162,847) (184,140)

(1,786) (20,046)

7 (8,606) (9,8006)

21 - (31)

74,407 140,055

11 (17,549) (35,914)
56,858 104,141

= (702)

56,858 103,439

56,858 103,626

= (187)

56,858 103,439

56,858 104,328

- (702)

56,858 103,626
Ltz a WS R EERBEWNE—FEIE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income arisen

from continuing operations:
Items that may be reclassified to
the income statement:
Exchange translation reserve on
translation of foreign operations
Release of exchange translation

reserve upon disposal of subsidiaries

Other comprehensive (loss)/income not
to be reclassified to the income
statement in subsequent periods:
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation

of land and buildings
Deferred tax credited/(debited) to
asset revaluation reserve

Other comprehensive loss arisen
from discontinued operation:
Item that may be reclassified to

the income statement:
Exchange translation reserve on
translation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥
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For the year ended 31 March 2022

 E-ZE - —F=A=1t—HItFE
2022 2021
—E-—fF —E-—F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
ioka FET FET
FREF 56,858 103,439
REFEREERZ
Hih 2wk -
A EF DB W s K
ZIEA :
BMEGINETSEE
bE 5 51,929 129,925
R E W B A R
i bR B 5 R A - 340
_________ 51,929 130265
REZHRET 2 EH 5
ERY R AEME
A (EE), Wzt
T REFER
(B Bt (23,859) 52,776
REEELFEE
A (R 2
IEIER IR 29 5,486 (10,519)
(18,373) 42,257
RECKRIEEER
CHMEEES :
A EH 5B W K
ZIHEA :
BMEGINETREE
b 5 = (80
FRHMEEWES
MERFLIE 33,556 172,462
FRAZEKEETE
90,414 275,901
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RETHEHWER
For the year ended 31 March 2022
BE_T-__F=A=+—HILFE

CON_S'bLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-_—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FET FiET
Equity holders of the Company KRAREZFEA 90,414 275,866
Non-controlling interests JEYERGAE 25 - 35
90,414 275,901
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ZAATERFRZFEA
for the year attributable to equity EhaErnz2mkzE
holders of the Company arisen from: (E#E)#BEELH :
Continuing operations FIEAS B TS 90,414 276,628
Discontinued operation BRI E T = (762)
90,414 275,866
Earnings/(losses) per share EATAERZFEEA
attributable to equity holders EEER
of the Company BR,(&E)
Basic BN
Continuing operations RELEER HK12.95 cents #{ll  HK23.77 cents &1l
Discontinued operation BRI EET N/ARER  HK(0.16) cents i1l
Total — included discontinued operation  #85t — B2 4% 1E
REXET 13 HK12.95 cents &fll  HK23.61 cents Al
Diluted e
Continuing operations B E TS HK12.95 cents %fll  HK23.77 cents &1l
Discontinued operation B IE R E TS N/A RER  HK(0.16) cents &1l
Total - included discontinued operation #it — BiEE K IE
5 TR 13 HK12.95 cents #fl  HK23.61 cents i1l
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive il dR A 2 S IR R E RS B Y 5 — G5

income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e AR &/

As at 31 March 2022
RZEBE-_—_F=HA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= T —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iz FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMKRE 15 983,239 1,070,374
Investment properties "EYE 16 65,280 66,028
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 34,652 26,334
Properties under development ERBPYE 19 42,217 41,043
Intangible assets B A E 18 10,857 7,873
Financial assets at fair value BBRBREAFEEYEREZ
through profit or loss PREE 25 12,684 12,283
Prepayments and deposits FEMREREZS 24 85,843 104,494
Deferred tax assets BEEHIAEE 29 5,745 8,202
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 1,240,517 1,336,631
Current assets REEE
Properties under development EERPYE 19 411,898 316,787
Completed properties held for sale  #F{EHE 2B T3 20 143,954 143,905
Inventories FE 22 286,886 361,901
Accounts and bills receivable BRI M ZE R 23 289,319 368,089
Prepayments, deposits and FERFIE ek
other receivables H b & Y F0 8 24 236,397 245,568
Financial assets at fair value BRBREAFTEYEZ
through profit or loss TREE 25 14,508 11,715
Tax recoverable A Y [a] 75 78 11,339 4,099
Pledged deposits EEAER 26 12,326 17,975
Time deposits T B3 1F 3K 26 13,355 13,607
Restricted bank deposits TREIBITER 26 650 538
Cash and cash equivalents ReELBREZERY 26 256,934 390,018
Total current assets nBEEMEE 1,677,566 1,874,202
Total assets HWEE 2,918,083 3,210,833
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity ARz iFHA
holders of the Company ViR T
Share capital f& 2 30 43,896 43,896
Reserves E 32 1,546,014 1,455,600
Total equity R 1,589,910 1,499,496
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As at 31 March 2022
N-ZE-_—_F=A=+—H

CON_§OLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R E B R R

2022 2021
—E-= T —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iz FET FEIT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income and other payables & fiE U A K £ ) & 1+ 7118 27 17,515 24,158
Bank borrowings RITEE 28 111,800 191,874
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 6,941 1,892
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 29 40,075 37,097
Total non-current liabilities FERBEERRE 176,331 255,021
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts and bills payable, EAEREFRERE -
other payables and provisions H b FEAT T R B 27 478,742 779,319
Contract liabilities AHEE 5(d) 180,761 123,093
Bank borrowings RITEE 28 417,347 467,672
Lease liabilities HEBRE 17 5,979 1,880
Tax payable FET R 18 69,013 84,352
Total current liabilities M B EEE 1,151,842 1,456,316
Total liabilities weE 1,828,173 1,711,337
Total equity and liabilities HERRERE 2,918,083 3,210,833
The above consolidated statement of financial position tii S BB R EERBEN M — R
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 5 o

notes.

These consolidated financial statements on pages 86 FOOR2TE V2 E R MEHMREHES
to 227 have been approved for issue by the Board of eRN _E-__FRNAZ-TNAHIEREITIH
Directors on 29 June 2022 and were signed on its behalf. THESERREEZ -

Cheng Chor Kit Liu Tat Luen
BRI BERE
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERBEH R
For the year ended 31 March 2022
BE_T-__F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ANERERAARR
Reserves
e
Share-
Share based Asset  Exchange Capital
Share  premium  payment revaluation translation redemption Contributed Other  Retained Total Total
capital  account  reserve reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve profits  reserves equity
HRHa
ERf  EEER E5RE

ke REEER AREE e EiXfR ffE  HABR  RHBE RERY BRER  ER4E
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00
FEr  TEr  TEL FEL FET FET FET FET FET FET FET

At 1 April 2021 RZ2--£RA-R 43806 156,015 670 177,854 19,990 14 6,150 (11,230) 1,106,137 1,455,600 1,499,496
Revaluation deficit (Note 15 BREER (A1) - - - (23,859) - - - - - (23859)  (23,859)
Deferred tax credited to asset revaluation reseve  FVEEEBREEIAZ
EREHE - - - 5,486 - - - - - 5,486 5,486
Exchange ranslation on translation BERIEHIE 2R
of foreign operations - - - - 51,929 - - - - 51,929 51,929
Profit for the year FRET - - - - - - - - 56,858 56,858 56,858
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2ANEEE - - - (18,373) 51,929 - - - 56,858 90,414 90,414
At 31 March 2022 RZE-ZE=f=1-A 4389 156,015 670 159,481 71919 14 6,150 (11,230) 1,162,995 1,546,014 1,589,910
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ADAREREARL
Reserves
%
Share-
Share based Asset Exchange  Capital Non-
Share  premium  payment revaluation translation redemption Contributed Other  Retained Total controlling Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  surplus  reserve profits  reserves interests equity
Wikt &
BN EEER g o)
kx RHEEE HREE fE ENRE RE  BABR EMBE REEN RELE FERER REEE
HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$(000
fér  FEr  FEr  TAr  TEr TR TEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEn
At 1 April 2020 W-2-3EMA-R 43896 156,015 1768 135,507 (109,993) 14 6,150 (8940 1,001,413 1,182,024 162 1,226,082
Revaluation surplus (Note 15) Bl BR(H15) - - - R - - - - -8 - BB
Deferted tax debited o asset revaluation reserve  NEAEEREENRZ
EiEHE - - - (10519 - - - - - (10519 - (10519
Exchangg translation on translation BESNEHIELZE
of foreign operations - - - - 12064 - - - - 129643 22 129865
Release of exchange translation reserve HEHBARREREREE
upon disposal of subsidlaries - - - - 340 - - - - 340 - 340
Profit for the year ERaf] - - - - - - - - 103626 103,626 (187) 103,439
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2ANEEE - - - W21 129,983 - - - 103626 275,866 ¥ 275901
Lapse of share option (Note 31) BRERR Fis1) - - (1,09) - - - - - 1,098 - - -
Transactions with non-controling interests BHIRERLS - - - - - - - 2.290) - (2,290 (1,049 (3,339
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT - - - - - - - - - - 852 852
At 31 March 2021 WZE--E=f=1-A 43896 156,015 670 177,854 19,990 14 6,150 (11,200 1,106,137 1,455,600 - 149949
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CON_,§OLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022

S ——

FZA=+—HIFE

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Interest expenses

Bank interest income

Fair value gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, net

Fair value loss/(gain) on investment

properties
Depreciation of

property,

plant and equipment

Depreciation of

right-of-use assets

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment, net
Provision for impairment of financial assets
Provision for impairment of inventories, net
Gain on disposal of an associate
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Gain on termination of leases
Share of loss of investment in an associate
Deferred government subsidies income
Impairment of properties under development
Impairment of completed properties

held for sale

Decrease in completed properties held for sale
Increase in properties under development
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in accounts and bills

receivable

Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in accounts and bills
payable, other payables and provisions
Increase in contract liabilities
Increase in deferred income
(Increase)/decrease in restricted bank deposits

Cash generated from continuing operations

Interest received
Interest paid

AL

Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas income taxes paid

Net cash used in operating activities from

discontinued operation

Net cash inflow from operating activities
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% 5E

ﬂ&ﬁz%h

TER M) /Rd

2022 2021

—E-CE —E-—F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
o3 FET FET
74,407 140,055

7 9,707 10,624
7 (1,101) (818)
6 (4,155) (3,322)
6 2,601 (3,462)
8 129,588 119,635
8 5,213 2,445
6 (34) 1,195
1,786 20,046

8 4,583 5,086
6 - (729)
6 (605) (1,621)
- (142)

- 31
27 (39,895) (36,965)
19 - 4,456
20 - 15,944
182,095 272,458

4,002 5,204

(61,257) (11,513)

71,674 (50,082)

82,539 (149,242)

(275) (47,095)

(275,457) 143,952

54,206 49,744

4,399 9,223

(95) 11,845

67,831 234,494

1,101 818

(17,644) (16,847)

(30,296) (8,922)

(913) (5,050

- (750)

20,079 203,743
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
:é-'rj'? = Iﬁ@)ﬂbi%‘%

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE_ZT-__F=A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-CE —E-—F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Hriz FET FET
Cash flows from investing activities RETEBZHERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BMEMERE (22,551) (28,105)
(Increase)/decrease in short-term bank REBRaFERCEN) SRS
deposits (172) 1,561
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BERREMETE
plant and equipment 34(a) 90 2,802
Net cash inflow as a result of disposal HEWBRRAIZEEHRATZE
of subsidiaries - 37,336
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash hE—HRBAR  MKEEdWRE
received (3,912) -
Net cash generated from investing activites ~— B FEEER I RETHEL Y
from discontinued operation Be 38 - 556
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing BEEHZHES ORL) /R
activities FEE (26,545) 14,150
Cash flows from financing activities METBHz2HERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings BIEREEEZFIEHE 477,186 287,438
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTER (613,582) (314,551)
Repayment of other financing EEEMEE - (34,042)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEa’E (4,103) (1,752)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BEBEIRD /(M) 6,078 (17,309)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEEH RS R EA (134,421) (80,216)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash fﬁﬁ&fﬁﬁ% Bz RD),/
equivalents EmFE (140,887) 137,677
Cash and cash equivalents at E%}]Zfﬁﬁ)}fﬁ%—rﬂ%
the beginning of year 390,018 245,276
Effect of exchange rate changes T “@J HRERHEZRAM
on cash and cash equivalents 7,803 7,065
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year FRZBEERELERY 256,934 390,018

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % & #£5 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED & E AR A \ 4 I a3




NOﬂES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 2 MY =

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kin Yat Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the design, manufacture and sale of
electrical and electronic products, motors and real
estate development.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is 7/F., Galaxy Factory Building, 25-
27 Luk Hop Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The Company is a subsidiary of Resplendent Global
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. The directors of the Company consider
Padora Global Inc., a company also incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, to be the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”), unless otherwise stated.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %% EAR AT

—REH

EaEEARAR ([ARA]) REWE
RE(BEIAKE]) T2RERT  #
ENHEERNETEM  ERARE
WEERE -

ARBAE—RPRBRETMEZZER
AN - EFMp s gt A/ B NESN
RN EHSE2TRERF TMAETE -

ARREBBRREABARBHBRA
AEMR L

XA 7] BResplendent Global Limited 2
WERAR  ZARNKEBEZES M
FX 3L ° 782 B E F R APadora Global
Inc. (MAEREBRELZHSEMANZZA
A BARA Z R AT

BRBREIN ZEFMBRRAET
(BTl 251 -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the Group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(@) Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements
of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

(b) Historical cost convention
The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except for certain financial assets,
certain classes of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties,
which are measured at fair value.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥ KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#%EABR A7)
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Noﬁss TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 2 MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Amended standards and revised
conceptual framework adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following

amendments to existing standards for the

first time for their annual reporting period

commencing 1 April 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-related
rent concessions
and Covid-19-
related rent
€OoNcessions
beyond 30 June
2021

Amendments to Hong Kong  Interest Rate

Accounting Standards Benchmark
(*HKAS") 39, HKFRS 4, Reform —
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and Phase 2

HKFRS 16

The amendments to existing standards
listed above did not have any impact on
the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %= E B R AR

2 FTESHHEME #)

21 RREE(E)

(c)

FEBMBRMZEBTEUR
REBTHSER

AEEER-_T_—F1A
—HFRANFERSHEE
RFER T HIERNERTA

ERUBREEL 20190 T
E165% (BT A) k=
sl Kk
BERR

—=—_

— =

FXA

—t+A#%
2201931
SwiEHE
HEER

BB esER FlREEY
([BEgER]) E-%=
E% - BEHE KR
A R 45 -

RN BREEL

BT BRENE
REEREH K

BB REER

E16% (BFTR)

EXFRIIEIR A EA ZAER]
AEBEHRHERZSRY
BYELEHHRFHER
HHETESAZE -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMé-NTS
5 %% R ak MY =

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Basis of preparation (continued)

(d)

New standard and amendments to
existing standards not yet adopted

A new accounting standard and certain
amendments to existing standards have
been published that are not mandatory
for 31 March 2022 reporting periods
and have not been early adopted by the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16
BB EE16% (BRI A)
Amendments to HKAS 37

2.1

Proceeds before intended use
B AR Al 2 TS R

Onerous contracts - costs of fulfilling a contract 1 April 2022

2 FESHBEBE )

FEREE ()
d) MREMZHTEURRE
% 845 3T &

R-ZFE-_—_F=A=+—8H
o HI MR 2 AR AR B K 58 1 AR
B AR E I IR RN Z
el @st BRI RE TRAESE
AMERTAS -

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after
RUTBEHE 2%
MRz et HBEN

1 April 2022
—E--®#MA—H

BB EREITH (BFIAR) BRUESN-BIaOZKA —EZZFMA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 (Revised)  Update reference to the conceptual framework 1 April 2022
ERNSHRS ERB0% EHHMAELZ IR —E-—#mA—H
CHESICS )
Annual Improvements Project Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 1 April 2022
(Amendments) ERUBREEN T —N\FE —E-_#FMA—H
FEBEER (BATA) “RoTEFEENE
Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised) Merger accounting for common control 1 April 2022
@&HESI E55 (BIEFT) combinations ZE-__FMA—H
HEAZHT Az A0 EtRE
Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised)  Classification of liabilities as current or 1 April 2023
EeREREAEACHES) non-current “E-=FMA—H
(&1&7T) BEEDERRDNERD
Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised)  Disclosure of accounting policies 1 April 2023
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2~ # % & 3 B % —E-=FWmA—H
BB EAEIR (BT A) K
ERUBREENEBRE
F25% (BT K)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of accounting estimates 1 April 2023
B G ERNET (BFIA) B ER “ET-=%MA—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities 1 April 2023
BB G EE12% (BRI A) arising from a single transaction —E-Z=FMA—H
HE-QIEENBER
BEAEMELENRE
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 April 2023
BEBEMBRERREITR RREE L “E-=FMA—H
HK Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of financial statements — 1 April 2023
BB EREEST (20205) Classification by the borrower of a term loan  —ZE =%V [ —H

that contains a repayment on demand clause
HBREN 2T —ERAHEFREREEKRX

MTEHERNSSE
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets between an To be determined
and HKAS 28 investor and its associate or joint venture fF3E

EABBREERZ 0%
EB iR H08% (BT 4)

BEEREBANRRABLE
CHNAEDER LA

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#%EAR A a]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 3R % M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d)

New standard and amendments to
existing standards not yet adopted
(continued)

The directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the adoption of the
above new standard and amendments
to existing standards would not have
a material impact on the Group in the
current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions. The
Group intends to adopt the above new
standard and amendments to existing
standards when they become effective.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business
combinations by the Group. The excess
of the consideration transferred and
amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquired entity over the fair value
of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 E AR A A

2 FEETBRBER

21 RREE(E)

(d)
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(a)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMéNTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Subsidiaries (continued)

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.

B 75 3% 3% P =

2 FESHHEHBE®)

2.2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 3R % M

- 100

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in “Other reserves” within
equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate
an investment because of a loss of
control, any retained interest in the entity
is remeasured to its fair value with the
change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified or
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 E AR A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMéNTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM?”), comprising the Board of Directors of
the Company.

B 75 3% 3% P =

2 FTESHHEME #)

2.3

2.4
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3 Y &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HKD,
which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings are presented in the
consolidated income statement, within
“Finance costs, net”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement
on a net basis within “Other income and

gains, net”.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Transactions and balances (continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of
foreign operations (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each
income statement and statement
of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions);
and

° all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any
net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation
(that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2 FEETBRBER

25 SHEBRE(E)
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(d) Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal (continued)
In the case of a partial disposal that
does not result in the Group losing
control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates
that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land and buildings are recognised
at fair value based on annual valuations by
external independent valuers, less subsequent
depreciation for buildings. A revaluation deficit/
surplus is debited/credited to asset revaluation
reserves in shareholders’ equity.

All other property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.6

,m

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Changes in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of buildings are recognised, net
of tax, in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in reserves in shareholders’
equity. To the extent that the increase reverses
a decrease previously recognised in profit or
loss, the increase is first recognised in profit or
loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases
of the same asset are first recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of the
remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all
other decreases are charged to profit or loss.
Each year, the difference between depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of the
asset charged to profit or loss and depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost, net of tax,
is reclassified from the property, plant and
equipment revaluation surplus to retained
earnings.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings in Over the shorter of
Hong Kong lease terms and 4%
Buildings outside Over the shorter of
Hong Kong lease term and 3.3%
Moulds, tools, 10% - 20%
and plant and
machinery

Furniture, equipment  10% - 25%
and motor vehicles
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FTESHHEME #)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 26 ME -BMERRKREE)
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The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in profit or loss. When
revalued assets are sold, it is the Group’s
policy to transfer any amounts included in other
reserves in respect of those assets to retained
earnings.

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment under construction or
pending installation and is stated at cost
less impairment losses, if any. No provision
for depreciation is made on assets under
construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and available
for their intended use. On completion, the
relevant assets are transferred to property,
plant and equipment at fair value or cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-
term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as
investment properties. Investment property
is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair values.
Changes in fair values are presented in profit or
loss as part of other gains.

Properties under development and

completed properties held for sale

Properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and anticipated cost
to completion, or by management estimates
based on prevailing market conditions.

Development cost of property comprises mainly
construction costs, cost of land use rights,
borrowing costs, and professional fees incurred
during the development period.

Properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are classified as current
assets unless those will not be realised in one
normal operating cycle.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10
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Intangible assets

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGU”) for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those CGU
or groups of CGU that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The units or groups of units
are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments (Note
5).

Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have
an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investment and other financial assets

(a)

(b)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently
at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL"); and

o those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value,
gains and losses will be recorded in
profit or loss. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets, including accounts
receivable factored without resources, are
derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investment and other financial assets
(continued)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset. The Group classifies its debt
instruments as:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit
or loss and presented in “other
gains/(losses), net” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investment and other financial assets

,m

(continued)

(c)

Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised
in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or
loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet
the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at
FVPL is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which
it arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investment and other financial assets
(continued)

(c)

(d)
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Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where
the Group’s management has elected
to present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss
as other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVPL are recognised in other
gains/(losses) in the statement of profit
or loss as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For accounts receivable, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted
by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables, see
Note 3.1 for further details.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

212

2.13

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on
future event and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the
basis of normal operating capacity. Costs
are determined using the weighted-average
cost method. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and
discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Accounts receivable

2.15

2.16

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Accounts receivable are amounts due
from customers for goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
Accounts receivable are generally due for
settlement within 60-90 days and therefore are
all classified as current.

Accounts receivable are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the accounts receivable with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See Note
3.1 for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity (Note 30).

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

/'\

B 7 R % MY 53

2 FESHHEHBE®)

2.14 FEWERR

2.15

2.16

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% S 8 58 A 7] \ 4

FEWAERIERRN —REBRESD
& 7 0n 2 1R L AR 75 1 FE B P
2 FRIE o FEUER FA B A R60E
XALE WD B AR -

EWERY S IREGRERESE
BR - BRIFEBLEEAREETHD

LB N BR A FERER - AEE
BB EWERRN B B2 REE 4
RemeE  AtHEGRAERRNE
EIRBEN AT E o AEASER
BB G F2HME31 -

RERBREERY

REFRESRERMS R LB
SERYBRFERED  SRBE
HEBF AR - AIRERT B R E M
HAECHEEEHRARRI ZHE
b2 s @t B R B H B A3E
ARARBREIARIBITES < iR
TEXREAWBRRARARE
BEFRIAEE-

&N

Bm oy B A (KES0) -
BRI B E AR

RN - B SIVERTIS SR 2

R AERBLIR) ©

15




- 116

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3 Y &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Accounts and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Group prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually
paid within 60 days of recognition. Accounts
and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the

facility to which it relates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMé--_NTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are removed from the balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non- cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as other income or
finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets
are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOﬂES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 2 MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

(a)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED @SB HBR AR

2 FTESHHEME #)

2.20 NI RIELEFEH

HAMBHAXKERERES
AARE R B9 AT 1S T R 1R A 1)
FERTURASATHOTRIA - AR
GREREREZERKREABS
EEAMBHELCHBAEERARE
EEHE -

(a) BVHFREH
BIER RS 3 e AR B AN 2 7]
B F A R B QR EE R
EERERTWARBE R
BERRCHRMREEL LR
MHRBEGIHE - BEE
ERBBEAN B FREN
1B E IR 14 M & AR
Ao WHEBERBR NRIEE
78 [A) B0 765 16 B S A 9 B
REB

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 & ¥



/'\

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Noﬁss TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 2 MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(b)

(c)

o

>
g

Deferred income tax (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMé--NTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Pension obligations

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong
are required to participate in a defined
contribution scheme as defined in
mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”). The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group under independently
administered funds. Contributions to
the schemes by the employers and
employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. Under the
MPF Scheme, each of the company
(the employer) and its employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. The monthly contributions of
each of the employer and the employees
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 and
thereafter contributions are voluntary.
The Group has no further obligations for
the actual payment of post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.
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NOﬂES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 2 MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued) 221 EERF (&)
(a) Pension obligations (continued) (a) EBHhRE&EE(E)

2 FTESHHEME #)

Employees of the Group in the PRC
are required to participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes
administered and operated by municipal
governments. The Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC contribute funds to the
retirement scheme to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees which are
calculated on certain percentage of the
average employee salary as agreed by the
municipal government. Such retirement
schemes are responsible for the entire
post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees. The
Group has no further obligations for
the actual payment of post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.

Employee leaves entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the date of statement of financial
position. Employee entitlements to sick
and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMé--NTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Share-based compensation
Share-based compensation benefits are
provided to employees via the share
option scheme. Information relating to
these schemes is set out in Note 31.

Employee options

The fair value of options granted under
the share option scheme is recognised
as an employee benefits expense with
a corresponding increase in equity.
The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

- including any market performance
conditions (eg the entity’s share
price);

- excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance
vesting conditions (eg profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

- including the impact of any
non-vesting conditions (eg the
requirement for employees to save
or holding shares for a specific
period of time).
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NOﬂES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

(d)

Share-based compensation (continued)
The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-
market vesting and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when the Group is
demonstrably committed to either: (a)
terminate the employment of an employee
or group of employees before the normal
retirement date; or (b) provide termination
benefits as a result of an offer made in
order to encourage voluntary redundancy.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %% EAR AT

2 FTESHHEME #)

221 EERBH(£&)

(c)

(d)

RGO REROHEE(E)

REXANEHMBEER
B8 15k 1 2 57 BB A f R RE R o
REREMR  BERRIEF
M55 & MRS IR IHERT H
HENRENERERE R
tEfEEH AR BEBERZLE
AIHREEE (WE)
[ B S i 2 (F h AR S 2 o

RIERRBEER
RIERBEINEEBELS
BRI A EE R R
B EREEREZBBRER
DA B b 55 48 I B S A o AR
SENAMEAR (@) RIER
RABMARIEERERSX
—#1EE : (o) (FEHEE B
PR B B R K IEREF
By - AIFERRAR LEAR A o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 & ¥



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMé-NTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Provisions 2.22 &1

2 FTESHHEME #)
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Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation using a pre-tax that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the

2 FEETBERBER

2.23 WHEER

WamBRERNAEERBEBEBED
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consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods or properties in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax (“VAT”), estimated returns and
rebates (if any) and after eliminating sales within
the Group. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and
when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities.

A receivable is recognised when the goods
or properties are delivered as this is the point
in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

If the goods or properties delivered by the
Group exceed the payments made by the
counter parties, a contract asset is recognised.
If the payments exceed the goods or properties
delivered, a contract liability is recognised. A
contract liability is the obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has
received a consideration (or an amount of
consideration that is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays the consideration before
the Group transfers goods to the customer,
a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

The following is a description of the accounting
policy for the principal revenue streams of the
Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

2 FEETBRBER

2.23 WHBE (&)
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Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised
when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the
customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the customer, and
either the customer has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Sales of properties

For property sales contract for which the
control of the property is transferred at a point
in time, revenue is recognised when the buyer
obtains the physical possession or the legal
title of the completed property and the Group
has present right to payment and the collection
of the consideration is probable.

The revenue is measured at the transaction
price agreed under the contract. The Group
receives payments from customers based on
payment schedule as established in contracts.
Certain payments are usually received in
advance in pre-sales arrangement. Such
proceeds from customers are recorded as
contract liabilities before the relevant sales are
recognised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

L,

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired
loans is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value
of the fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable.

The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FTESHHEME #)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Leases (continued) 2.25 HE (&)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, BAETEESERFE  NEBEET
the Group, where possible, uses recent third- TTIE R T (5 B E R & FE A 53T &
party financing received by the individual BHE-FTREANBEINEDLH
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect BURMEESE=FELREK
changes in financing conditions since third BB RES - WETEENHE
party financing was received, and makes ERHE -

adjustments specific to the lease.

Lease payments are allocated between HENRDESZBRBERMBK
principal and finance cost. The finance cost is o BB ANEABAEEZN
charged to profit or loss over the lease period B LGGTEH S aEEH0E
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of TEBEAFEK o

interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost FREEERKAtE  BIEUAT

comprising the following: I8

e the amount of the initial measurement of o EHYFTEMREABEZEE
lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before o R AHZAELZE
the commencement date less any lease MAERR HBRERZE
incentives received; and MEEER: &

e any initial direct cost. o  (EITIMBEENAE -

Subsequent to initial recognition, right-of- R HERE  FREEELRES

use assets are stated at historical cost less KARITERS - FHEEEE /KR

depreciation. They are generally depreciated B E R A F B B (AR
over the shorter of the asset's useful life and BRE)NEBENTE - WAKE
the lease term on a straight-line basis. If AT FETRERE  BFER
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise HEENRMEBEERA {F B FH

a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is AITE o

depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful

life.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FZ k& KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED i@ EHR A A 129




NOﬂES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 2 MY =

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25

2.26

Leases (continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases
of properties, equipment and vehicles and all
leases of low-value assets are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair values when there is a reasonable
assurance that the grants will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised within “Other income
and gains, net” in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended
to compensate. Government grant related to
property, plant and equipment are recognised
as deferred income and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a systematic
basis over the expected useful lives of the
related assets.
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2.26
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

B 75 3% 3% P =

3 HMHKERER

Financial risk factors 31 HMBERABREZR
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of NEBMNEBRAITZLEN KR
financial risks: market risk (including foreign ko miZER (BEIMNERR - F
exchange risk, interest rate risk and price BERBkERRR) - EFERR KX
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s mEE SRR - AEBEREERR
overall risk management programme focuses EEEEPREMMENTA
on the unpredictability of financial markets FEAM - WEREEREYAER
and seeks to minimise potential adverse RIS RIBEBIETFZE - AR
effects on the Group’s financial performance. EEDAARARANRREEER
Risk management is carried out by the senior BARNRIZESSHERBEREST -
management of the Company under policies
approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company.
(a) Market risk (a) ™WEAEK
(i) Foreign exchange risk () SMNEE
The Group mainly operates in the REBFERFRRSE
PRC and Hong Kong. AL T o
The functional currency of the BEAEMEEMNIEE
Hong Kong reporting entities is MR - MR HKE
HKD and the transactions are DB RET (%
mostly denominated in HKD and JTl)FHE - A ETT
United States dollar (*USD”). FEZXZHEH
For transactions or balances T EBEEXRHET
denominated in USD are reasonably ETRABEHEIFRE
stable with the HKD under the BEBTEKE  EERA
Linked Exchange Rate System, the AR E) I E R IMNE R
directors are of the opinion that the B - [EREBRAREE
Company does not have significant RREAEEZ25EE
foreign exchange risk, the exposure RFEEAE - B - WEE
to fluctuation in exchange rates will HERE DT -
only arise from the translation to the
presentation currency of the Group.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is
performed.
KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #&E%EAR A A \
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 3R % M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1

132

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)
The functional currency of the
PRC reporting entities is Renminbi
(“RMB”) and the transactions are
mostly denominated in RMB and
HKD. The conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of the foreign
exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk primarily through
financing, capital expenditure and
expenses transactions that are
denominated in a currency other
than RMB, which is the functional
currency of the major subsidiaries
of the Group. The Group manages
its exposures to foreign currency
transactions by monitoring the
level of foreign currency receipts
and payments. The Group ensures
that the net exposure to foreign
exchange risk is kept to an
acceptable level from time to time.
The Group is presently not using
any forward exchange contract to
hedge against foreign exchange
risk as management considers its
exposure is not significant.

At 31 March 2022, if HKD had
strengthened/weakened by 5%
(2021: 5%) against RMB with all
other variables held constant,
profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$9,876,000 (2021:
HK$20,083,000) higher/lower.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk
arises from long-term borrowings
with variable rates, which expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The Group’s borrowings and
receivables are carried at amortised
cost.

The Group monitors closely
its interest rate exposure by
maintaining an appropriate floating
rate borrowings and considers
hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
The position is regularly monitored
and evaluated by reference of
anticipated changes in market
interest rate.

At 31 March 2022, if interest rates
on bank and other borrowings
had been 50 basis points (2021:
50 basis points) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant,
profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$2,972,000 (2021:
HK$3,341,000) lower/higher mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMé--NTS

B 75 3% 3% P =

3 H¥RBRERE®

31 H¥ERKREZE)
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(i)
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NOﬂES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group’s exposure to price
risk arises from investments held
by the Group and classified in the
consolidated statement of financial
position as fair value through profit
or loss (Note 25).

Profit for the year would increase/
decrease by approximately
HK$1,451,000 (2021: HK$1,172,000)
as a result of 10% (2021: 10%)
change in price on equity securities
classified as at fair value through
profit or loss.

(b) Credit risk

(i)

Risk management

Credit risk arises if a customer or
other counterparty fails to meet its
contractual obligations. The credit
risk of the Group mainly arises from
trade and other receivables and
deposits with banks and financial
institutions.

The Group has policies that limit the
amount of credit exposure to any
financial institutions. Substantially
all the deposits in banks are held
in reputable financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and the PRC,
which management believes are of
high credit quality and management
does not expect any losses arising
from non-performance by these
counterparties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMIé--_NTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BXRBER®
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 B¥ERERBREZEZ)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) =ERB (&)
(i) Risk management (continued) () EEREE(E)
The Group also has policies in place A& B R R B R DARE
to ensure that sales of products RAEBGBEEELH
are made to customers with an ZEPHEER - MA
appropriate credit history. Sales to BRI S 2 KE
large or long-established customers S RHRPIHEGEHEE
with good payment history comprise BB EEHD c K&
a significant proportion of the (5] 368 1 Wiz [0 i AR 3 F
total sales. The Group’s historical E B INGRIR 2 8 B

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

experience in collection of trade and
other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances.

The Group has concentration
of credit risk as the top five
trade debtors accounted for
approximately 24% of its total
trade debts balance as at 31
March 2022 (2021: 50%). In view
of this, management of the Group
regularly assesses by monitoring the
individual profile of these accounts
receivable. The Group also uses
non-recourse accounts receivable
factoring arrangement with bank
to cover the credit risk. As at 31
March 2022, accounts receivable
of approximately HK$2,660,000
(2021: HK$154,086,000) was
subject to non-recourse factoring
arrangements and therefore
derecognised. In this regard,
management of the Group considers
that the credit concentration risk
has been significantly mitigated.

MR K A BRI
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ﬁlﬁ%;g::iz
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FIBE IR T IR
2 BRI & &5 E BIRT
i o ZNE B JrfE R
17 B4 38 W R UL BR 3K
RIEBZHZFIEER
7 = — ey
=+—H  BWERLY
2,660,000 T (=&
154,086,000
B IT) BB A B
At B BUH
WRoptmsE » A&
BEEHERAEESER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1

136

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(i)

Impairment of accounts receivable
The accounts receivable of the
Group is subject to the expected
credit loss model. The Group
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all
accounts receivable.

To measure expected credit
losses, the Group categorises its
accounts receivable based on the
customer profiles, shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past
due.

The expected loss rates are based
on the aging profiles of accounts
receivable over a period of 12
months before 31 March 2022 or
31 March 2021 respectively and
the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates
are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors, after
considering the expected market
conditions and economic impact
of the unprecedented COVID-19
on the countries in which major
customers operate, affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

The Group has identified the Gross
Domestic Product index of the
countries where customers mainly
operate to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjust
the historical loss rate based on
expected changes in these factors.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BXRBER®
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 H¥EAREEE)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) FERRK (&)
(i) Impairment of accounts receivable (i) FEY IR 1E (4E)
(continued)
Impairment losses on accounts FEW AR SRR BB E B R
receivable are presented as net LE RN R 25 RRE
impairment losses within operating B8 55 o EgUE A
profit. Subsequent recoveries of EHiEe 2 BT AR —
amounts previously written off are BH -

credited against the same line item.

The Group identifies two categories AEEDEEMERYK
of its accounts receivable which B TXRMEEE
reflect their credit risk as follows: [2 B2

Measurement of expected credit EE G E A EES
loss on individual basis

For accounts receivable relating EBRITEEREZ E
to customers which are affiliated MEBNEBRAAR
companies of listed entities with P BN R BN R
satisfactory credit history or do not EGARNEFRAH
have continuing business with the HEWERE R E BT
Group, are assessed individually BEREETE - RF
for impairment allowance. As at 31 ——®#=ZA=+—8"
March 2022, the balances of such HA§$§HH¥1EZJT§H&EE
individually assessed accounts HE R R AEEE
receivable and the corresponding %éﬁ 5 Bl &54,598,000
loss allowance are HK$54,598,000 BT (ZE = —F
(2021: HK$108,445,000) and 108,445,000/ 7T) &
HK$20,000 (2021: HK$21,000), 20,0008 T (=& = —
respectively. & : 21,0008 7T) °

i

i ERHIZEER

Measurement of expected credit
loss on collective basis

Other than accounts receivable b B 3B R 2 FE U BR 7K
which were assessed by individual Ih - B REIBERER
basis, trade receivables have been BEROEUEERR

grouped based on shared similar B RaBRRE A -

credit risk characteristics and the
days past due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 H¥RBRERE®
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 H¥EAREEE)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) FERR (&)
(i) Impairment of accounts receivable (i) JENERF R E (&)
(continued)
Measurement of expected credit EpEst B R A E BE S
loss on collective basis (continued) (#&)
The loss allowance as at 31 March N-_E - =AH1
2022 was determined as follows for —T—HZEIRIBERE
accounts receivable after factoring: WERRE B R EHE TN
-

1-30 31-60 61-90  Over 90
days days days days
Current past due pastdue pastdue pastdue Total
BM1E AHNE AH61ZE  BH90R
B 30H 60H 90H Nt @t
HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FEr  FExr  FExr THrn  FEr  TEx

At 31 March 2022 R=B=Zf
=R=t-H
Assets EE
Gross carrying amount BEAE 152,588 38,828 34,321 5690 18,297 249,719
Loss allowance BERE (1,690) (818)  (1,191)  (1,603)  (9,676) (14,978)
150,898 38,005 33,130 4,087 8,621 234,741
Expected loss rate EHEER 1.1% 2.1% 35%  282%  52.9% 6.0%
At 31 March 2021 i —d
ZA=f-H
Assets BE
Gross carrying amount BEEE 123,295 62,588 48,103 18,420 4,045 256,451
Loss allowance BEAE (1475)  (2,524)  (3,107)  (5,892) (1,763  (14,761)
121,820 60,064 44996 12,528 2282 241,690
Expected loss rate BHEEX 1.2% 4.0% 65%  320%  43.6% 5.8%
A
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 H¥RBRERE®
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 B¥ERERBREZEZ)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) FERRK (&)

(i) Other financial assets at amortised (i) KA E B
cost THEE
Other financial assets at amortised BN NG 2 2 HAtb
cost include deposits and other CREERRETHREHE
receivables. Management considers fhFEMFRIE - LREX
that the credit risk for certain SHEHFHNBTEOER
balances has increased since ERMBARR - BEE
initial recognition with reference REETHRENEER
to the counterparty historical B2 B ¥ 0R MR LA R B2 45
default rate and current financial e AEBEIREZSE
position. The Group applies the HMemEE 2 BELR
HKFRS 9 general approach to RIS A K
measure either 12-month or RS EFHIBIIE M AT
lifetime expected credit losses E5HT - EAEBME
for these other financial assets WMEERFIR 2 — M
based on the historical settlement FAFFEZSTEMSD
pattern and financial position of BEEMI2E AR E
these other financial assets and MEMEERE - K=
the forward-looking recoverability E__F=ZA=+—
analysis of the counterparties. A AEBERENR
As at 31 March 2022, the 4,827,000 T (=&
corresponding loss allowance is ——1%F 113,152,000/
approximately HK$4,827,000 (2021: JL) °

HK$13,152,000).

While cash and cash equivalents, BABRSLEREER
time deposits, restricted bank W - EEITERR - IR
deposits and pledged deposits RITFERREEBFR
are also subject to the impairment INERE R BB Y B W
requirements of HKFRS 9, the HERIFOW 2 AR
identified impairment loss was i MBI 2R EE
immaterial. BIEFHERK -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 3R % M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management,
after considering the expected market
conditions and the outbreak of COVID-19,
implies maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of banking facilities.
The Group aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping credit lines available
at all time.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity reserve on the basis
of expected cash flows. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 requires a
term loan that contains a clause that
gives the lender the unconditional right to
call the loan at any time shall be classified
in total by the borrower as current in
the statement of financial position.
This is irrespective of whether a default
event has occurred and notwithstanding
any other terms and maturity stated in
the loan agreement. As at 31 March
2022, borrowings of approximately
HK$48,125,000 (2021: HK$37,500,000)
was classified as current liabilities due to
this requirement.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

At the reporting date, the Group
held cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$256,934,000
(2021: HK$390,018,000) (Note 26)
and accounts and bills receivable of
approximately HK$289,319,000 (2021:
HK$368,089,000) (Note 23) that are
expected to generate cash inflows for
managing liquidity risk. In addition, the
Group held financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately
HK$14,508,000 (2021: HK$11,715,000)
(Note 25), which could be realised
to provide a further source of cash if
needed.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

3

B 75 3% 3% P =

BRRERER#)

3.1

Ik EE (&)

(c)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

(c)

2022

Accounts and bills payable

Financial liabilities included
in other payables, accrued
liabilities

Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

2021

Accounts and bills payable

Financial liabilities included
in other payables, accrued
liabilities

Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

—EC-CE

EREZREE

SPAEMENTIER
EitafL
TRAR

RITHRE

HE&RE

—E-—
ERERREE
SEAE MR HIER
i BEL
PRER
RITEE

3 MERERERE®
31 HMBEABERE)
(c) “BHESER (&)

On demand or One to Two to
within one year two years five years Total
RERS—FR -FEME MERLE @it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&z FiEr FiEr FiEr
313,403 - - 313,403
56,485 - - 56,485
429,033 22,546 98,049 549,628
6,222 4,954 2,155 13,331
805,143 27,500 100,204 932,847
562,903 - - 562,903
71,958 - - 71,958
479,469 201,654 - 681,023
1,987 1,933 - 3,920
1,116,317 203,487 - 1,319,804

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %% EAR AT
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table summarises the
maturity analysis of bank borrowings
subject to repayment on demand based
on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreements. The amount
includes interest payments computed
using contractual rates. Taking into
account the Group’s net assets, the
directors do not consider that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its
discretion to immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such borrowings
will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements.

3

BERBER#®)

31 H¥ERKREZE)

(c)

REBESRR (&)

TERBRBREREREZR
TTIEENREO N - TIIRE
B R 15 4 P R 2 15 RE A& SRR
R ZTEBREAGOFN
RABZFENK - BERE
NAKENEEFE EF
RBBITITEERIBEER KR
VEERNEETIA -EF
BE REBEREKRER
HEAENETERAME

Maturity analysis - bank borrowings subject to repayment
on demand clause based on their original scheduled repayments

RN -WEERRRERTICBTHE RERCERAARR

Within One to Two to Carrying

one year two years five years Total amount

-£R -FEWMF MEELE @ REE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET FET TET T

2022 —BCCE 17,990 23,100 28,455 69,545 65,625
2021 “E--F 28,078 28,656 10,635 67,369 65,000

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#%EAR A a]
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BXEARER#)
(continued)

3.2 Capital management 32 BEXREHE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic condition. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, obtain bank borrowings, or issue
new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
bank borrowings divided by total equity.

AEBZEAEERBREERE
AEEZFHELERN BRI
HEOR - ARERFHENENER
PURAE & AR -

AEEEREANGER  URELH
RN EBEH AR - RN
BREXGRE AKEBReFABRCH
BRZBE 2 - BEURTTRRHK
BITH

AEBEMNBERNABLXRERE
o L RARITEEBRER AR

dE N

AT E -

2022 2021

—_s=-= —E -4

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Total debt (e F L 529,147 659,546
Total equity BNE TS 1,589,910 1,499,496
Gearing ratio BABELE 33% 44%

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &t E AR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F [ i
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMéNTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation
The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March
2022 and 2021 by level of inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such
inputs are categorised into three levels within a
fair value hierarchy as follows:

° quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1);

° inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2); and

o inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥ KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#%EABR A7)

B 75 3% 3% P =

3 HXRKRERE#®)

3.3

AFPEMGE
TRELTEQAFEMAGBERSA
HENERHASEEN -2 ==
FR-_ZE-_—F=ZA=+—HZ
EAFEAENESRITAETD
o REBABBEATEEHRTP
DEZE BRWOT

s BEREBEXBBENEED
BZHmE (RERE) (F—
E):

o REEXBEIVERE (AL
B%) sk M (B # (8 4% A
B)BRMAB2HABE
MAE—RANZRERIN)
(B=ZE) &

s EBESBBUFKREAER
mE BB B ABE (BT
ABRBABE) (F=F) -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BXRBER®
(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEME (&)
The following table presents the Group’s TREIRE-_—_FR-_FT——
financial assets that are at fair value at 31 FZA=ZF+—HAEEURQRFEE
March 2022 and 2021. HECERMEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-F 2-F 2=F @t
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FEx FEx FEx FEx
At 31 March 2022 R=B=Z#=A=+-8
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value #EiBiB% A TEHER
through profit or loss JERMEE 14,508 - 12,684 27,192
At 31 March 2021 RZZ--£=A=+-H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value EBEREATFEIIE
through profit or loss JEREE 11,715 - 12,283 23,998
There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and FAN -F—E FEHF=ZEZ
3 and no other changes in valuation techniques R SRS - (H{E 7 %k PN R E th 8
during the year. EI/S
\
s

>
g
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 H¥RBRERE®
(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEME (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the statement of financial position
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm'’s length basis.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED 33 £ M4 R A7) \ A

F-EBzemIA
EERMBEEZEMIAZR
FEREVBERIRBBZMES
WEE - BRI AHRTEHNFS
RS - S50 - 8450 - ERAT
REEERIEIEGHRE - MARER
BEREREQAERGEERTZE
BREEETIBR B - ZMBER
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B2 EXNE ASEATEH
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMKEBRERE®
(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 DFEME(E)
Financial instruments in level 3 E-EzEBIA

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the
case for key management insurance.

The fair value of insurance policy investments
that is not traded in an active market is
determined based on the higher of cash
surrender value and fair value determined by
discounted cash flow model. The significant
unobservable inputs that determine the
fair value is cash surrender value, which is
contractually agreed upon entering into the
insurance contract.

WM—IARHIAERNEABEIL I
RIBABETSHIE - AIZITAD
AFEZE - TZ2EBERBEN I
EPA

VIR ERTISEE ZRERER
Z\\¥TEE$ETJ£Lf%EEiFﬁ§HiQEEE

RenERAMEENRFEZ
MRS EETE  EEQAFENE
ATABRBABEBERERAS
BE  ERFIZREAREHE

The following table presents the changes in THR2WNF=BIAREEZ_Z

level 3 instruments for the years ended 31 i J 5 G iiﬂ =+
March 2022 and 2021. HIEFEZ#

2022 2021

—E-_F —EZ—F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHEIT

At 1 April RMUA—H 12,283 12,336

Fair value gain/(loss) recognised to RIEZERZAFE
profit or loss Wz (&18) 401 (53)
At 31 March W=A=+—8H 12,684 12,283

A / KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% B 4 1R 2 7]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and

assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(@) Fair value of freehold land and
buildings and investment properties
The Group carries its freehold land and
buildings, and investment properties
at fair value with changes in the fair
value recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
and consolidated income statement,
respectively. It obtains independent
valuations at least annually. At the end of
each reporting period, the management
updates their assessment of the fair value
of each property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations.
Refer to Notes 15 and 16 for the
assumptions, valuation techniques and
fair value measurement.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥ KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#%EAR A a]
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41 EAREFMHFRMER
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B 7 R %% Y 53

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(b)

(c)

Provision for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the
inventory aging analysis periodically and
makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that
are no longer suitable for sales. The
Group carries out an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at the
end of each reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
items through management’s estimation
of the net realisable value for such
obsolete and slow-moving items based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions.

Provision for impairment of financial
assets

The impairment for financial assets is
based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The
Company uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period, including the
consideration of the global health issues.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs
used and the impact of changes to these
assumptions are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E&&EEAR A7

4 EBEREFHFTRHAE 2

4.1

BREREFREBR(E)

(b)

(c)

FERE
AEBEZEEBTERENT
EZRESN  LRERR
THEAHEE ZBE &TIH
FEHEBELEE - NER
TR ARBREBEER
EHEFERN  LBEBER
BXEREROERERR
B % F Bk &
HEZ AR FEMGT R
B b SR B (F B o

TRHEERMERS

TREERNMENRELYE
WEREEHERXNR
e ARARELRZEFRE
FOERBREENBABE
B ITEHIE - B EREBEARE
BB  HE MR R
A& S B R B AT IE 1
H(BREEEINERELER
B) cFrEANEZRE

WABBENFBUANLZER
‘“ﬁﬁﬁbﬁﬁ BT EES. A ()3
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £ [Z &

Provision for impairment of financial
assets (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined using valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period, including the
consideration of the global health issues.
For details of the key assumptions used
and the impact of changes to these
assumptions see Note 3.3.

B R R M

4 EBEREFHFTRHAE =)

4.1

BREREFREBR(E)

(c)

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &i&&%EBEAR AR

EREERMERE (B

VTENEEMS LEENS
BTANAFENERGE
BRERE - AERBEITREH
B AR EERBIDELAIER R
FEPFEBRBERERS
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
Assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on the higher of value-
in-use calculations or fair value less costs
of disposal. These calculations require
the use of judgements and estimates.
Management judgement is required in
the area of asset impairment, including
the consideration of the expected market
conditions, in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and net
present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and
(iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s financial
condition and results of operations.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 E AR A A

4 EBEREFHFTRHAE 2

4.1

BREREFREBR(E)

(d)

I3~ R K aR 4 A R A A
BEENRE

BEFHIBABEL B
FREES AR EOX W DB
A EEETRENR - 7
WeE B REEREER
BHRFEBREERNER
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REERETE  BEE®
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SRR AR E S A

N FAE R B A LR R ER
EREBHFHRE(RERE
BRHEERZEEMET
mE)mEZHREE  Kii)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(e)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Impairment of properties under
development and completed
properties held for sale

The Group assesses the carrying
amounts of properties under development
and completed properties held for
sale according to their net realisable
values based on the realisability of
these properties and consideration of
the potential impact on selling price
resulting from the COVID-19 outbreak.
Net realisable value for properties under
development is determined by reference
to management’s estimates of the
selling price based on prevailing market
conditions, less applicable variable
selling expenses and the anticipated
costs to completion. Net realisable
value for completed properties held
for sale is determined by reference
to management’s estimates of the
selling price based on prevailing market
conditions, less applicable variable selling
expenses. Based on management’s
best estimates, there were impairment
of HK$4,898,000 and HK$17,529,000
respectively for properties under
development and completed properties
held for sale at date of statement of
financial position.

B 7 R % MY 53

4 EBEREFHFTRHAE 2

4.1

BREREFREBR(E)

(e)

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED % 5=EAR AT

BRTPUERFFELHEZR
TYERE
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(f)

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to taxes in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision
for various kinds of taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the consolidated
income statement in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from
the original estimates, such difference
will impact the recognition of deferred tax
assets and income tax in the period in
which such estimates are changed.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %% EAR AT
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BRI R HE =)
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BREREFREBR(E)

f)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMé--NTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) has been
identified as the Board of Directors of the Company
(the “Directors”). CODM reviews the Group’s internal
reports in order to assess performance, allocate
resources and determine the operating segments.

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has three reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@) the electrical and electronic products segment
consists of the manufacture and sale of Al
robotics, loT and smart home products,
electronic entertainment products and other
related products;

(b) the motors segment consists of the
development, design, manufacture and sale of
electric motor drives and related products and
encoder film; and

(c) the real estate development segment.
The operation of the glass technology and

application segment was disposed during the year
ended 31 March 2021 (Note 6).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Management monitors the operating results of the
Group’s business units separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on operating profit or loss which in
certain respects, as explained in the table below, is
measured differently from operating profit or loss in
the consolidated financial statements.

Group financing (including finance costs and finance
income) and income taxes are managed on a group
basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
the third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %% EAR AT

5

THEER (#)
EREBTERAEEEREN T
e DEENRERSEREERT
REBERE - HERBBRIBELHF
BT - TA B EL%FISE
BrHERE EETHENTEMR
2 BRGAMBRER 2 EL RTINS
BYHEFEERTR -

EERE (BREMBEERRMBEA) X
FISHEEREEER  WIAEeskEE
%ﬁ \A—E °

REMHEEENERI2ERERST
BETE=ZTMRAZEEET -

Fag
7™

HRADEEENREBEEERE - H
DI BREETNBRAFEE -

mwx TEBEDNREEEEEE  H
D BEREINEEZEFRE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 & ¥



/

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMéNTS
5 %% R ak MY =

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 oBER®)
(a) Operating segments (a) ¥¥oHE
The following tables present revenue, results TREVNNAREERBE_ZT__
and certain asset, liability and expenditure FERZ_E-_—F=ZA=+—HIt
information for the Group’s operating segments FE ¥BoHE2WE - £FENEA
for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021. TEE BEERZHER -
31 March 2022 —EZ-F=ZA=t—H
Electrical
and electronic Real estate
products Motors  development Others Eliminations  Consolidated
BER
ETER EL: RHERRE Hity el =E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET FET FET FET
Segment revenue ol
Revenue from external REIREFH
customers &
Timing of revenue recognition T R 25 B
- At a point of time 2 YL LR 1,267,957 1,044,052 4,306 - - 2,316,315
Inter-segment sales DEBMUMEHEE 34,582 4,021 - - (38,603) -
Total 1@t 1,302,539 1,048,073 4,306 - (38,603) 2,316,315
Other income/(expenses) and Hi A/ (B%)
gains/(losses), net R/ (E) -
T 14,713 51,419 (2,370) - - 63,762
Segment results DRER 37,648 71,350 (13,503) (3,497) - 91,998
Unallocated gain, net RoBis - 28 3,268
Unallocated expenses APEHX (12,253)
Finance costs, net BIBER T8 (8,606)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 B AT 74,407
Income tax expense FrE R R (17,549)
Profit for the year F B F 56,858
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Operating segments (continued)

31 March 2022 (continued)

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment
information:
Capital expenditure

Depreciation and
amortisation

Gain on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment, net

Deficit on revaluation
of land and buildings
recognised directly in
equity

Fair value loss on
investment properties

NREE
KRR EE

BaE

At EER -
AR
FEREH
HENE  BFER
FE
BEEREEER

THREFZ
EfbBA

REMEZ
AVEEBR

5 oEERE
(a) (X908 (E)
—E--FZA=+—-RH(#E)

Electrical
and electronic Real estate
products Motors development Others Elimination Consolidated
BRK
EFEMm Eff ERERR Hity Eaf| wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
1,687,514 1,103,991 769,864 38,170 (1,064,859) 2,534,680
383,403
2,918,083
277,238 313,556 853,433 282,693 (1,064,859) 662,061
666,112
1,328,173
7,969 36,149 6 - - 44,124
61,903 71,122 132 1,644 - 134,801
- (34) - - - (34)
10,950 10,384 - 2,525 - 23,859
- - 2,601 - - 2,601

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 E AR A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMéNTS

B 75 3% 3% P =

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 p@ERE
Operating segments (continued) (a) EXSE(E)
31 March 2021 —E-—-H=ZH=+—H
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
HEEEER BRIEEEH
Electrical
and electronic Real estate (Glass technology
products Motors development Others Eliminations Sub-total  and application Elimination Consolicated
28k RRR
E7ER E RHELR At Ui gt RER baf &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
FET AT AT AT AT AT AT FET AT
Segmentrevenue AN
Revenue from extemal K85 REF
customers
Tmngof revenue  BZUEHBE
recognition
-Aapontoftime - EEXEBRG 1,639,837 1,048,551 5477 - - 2,693,865 2,461 - 2,696,326
- Over time -EER - - - - - - 3,050 - 3,060
1,639,837 1,048,551 5477 - - 2,693,865 5511 - 2,699,376
Inter-segment sales  HEEMAHE 30,779 3,266 - - (43,039) - - - -
Total 83t 1,679,616 1,051,807 5477 - (43,085) 2,693,865 5,511 - 2,699,376
Otherincomeand ~ EfUARKE -
gains, net et 35,220 46,143 7,149 1,620 - 90,132 46 - 90,178
Segment results HEEE 138447 55,904 (24,989) [7571) - 161,875 (740) - 161,135
Unallocated gain, net ~ FAEME 138 3912 3912
Unallocated expenses A2 ER% (15,899) (15,899)
Finance costs, net ~ BBBR W FE (9,806) 9,806)
Share of losses from (B (ER - EBE AT
investment in REER
an assoclate (31) (31)
Profit before income tex % 27 1 27 140,055 139,315
Income tax (expense)/ 5% (B%)/
oredt £4 (3914 k) - (3,876)
Proftfortheyear ~ FE&F 104,141 103,439

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED % 5=EAR AT

159




NOﬂES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 2 MY =

(a)

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Seqment liabilties
Unallocated liabities

Total liabiities

Other segment
information:
Capital expenditure

Depreciation and
amortisation

Lossf(gain) on disposal  HiEH% « HER
of property, plant and 557 518/

equipment, net

Surplus on revaluation
of land and buildings
recognised directly in
equity

Fair value gain on

investment properties AT (i

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 S¥EER#)
Operating segments (continued) (a) EXSE(E)
31 March 2021 (continued) —BE--F=ZA=+—-RH(#&
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
BEEEER BRILEERH
Electrical
and electronic Real estate (Glass technology
products Motors development Others Elimination Sub-total  and application Elimination Consolidated
BER BBES
E1ER B FHERR ifb 35 it RER HH Ga
HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK8'000 HK§'000 HK§000
FET TET FET TET TET 7T AT FET TET
HEEE 1,785,507 1,185,504 689,103 43296 (987,687) 2715723 - - 2,715,723
RAREE 495,110 495,110
f2E 3210833 3,210,833
HEEE 394,041 465,468 756,415 283,084 987,687) 911,321 - - 911,321
FAREE 800,016 800,016
£8% 1,711,387 1,711,337
EfbARER -
ER%i 9,369 76,699 8 - - 86,076 - - 86,076
HERES
56,09 63,990 125 2870 - 122,080 - - 122,080
(ki) 38 (169) 1,364 - - - 1,19 - - 119
ERRNERED
1iREF,
EfiRg
(38,79) (8.940) - (5,038) - (52,776) - - (52,776)
RENEL
- - 3.462) - - (3462 - - (3.462)

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %% EAR AT

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 & ¥



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMéNTS

B 75 4R % P 2

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 oEE®R#®
(b) Geographical information (b) Hbig & #
United States of America Europe Asia Others Consolidated
EL: B i it B
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2001 2022 2021 2022 2021
“E-CE -R--F ZBCCE C%--fF CBCCE CE--F ZBCCE CE--F CEBCCE CEo-F
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000
FEr  FET TEn TEr  TAn  FEr  FEn TET TAn TET
Segment revenue: A8EIE:
Revenue from extenal customers ~ REAMRREHNE
- Continuing operations -RAEEER 997524 1,166,023 288,741 489,623 1,030,050 1038219 = - 2316315 2,693,805
- Discontinued operation -BRIHIEER - - - - - 55 - - - 55N

The revenue information above is based on the

it S E M DRIERF P

locations of the customers. 245 o
Hong Kong Mainland China Malaysia Consolidated
B HER ERET G4
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CEF -“Z--F CZBCCE -“E--F CZBCCE -E--F CZBCCE O-CZ-o-F
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FE FE7 TE FE7 TET &7 TET
Other segment information: ~ E#2 8%
Non-current assets FRBEE 6,206 7,884 1,182,068 1,272,886 33,819 35,376 1,202,088 1,316,146

The non-current assets for the above segment
information consist of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, right-of-
use assets, properties under development,
intangible assets and prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, but exclude deferred tax
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥ KIN YAT HOLDINGS
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Noﬁss TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 2 MY =

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

(d)

Information about major customers
Revenue of HK$622,020,000 (2021:
HK$1,022,366,000) was derived from sales of
electrical and electronic products to a major
customer, which accounted for 27% (2021:
38%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Assets and liabilities related to contract
with customers

The Group has recognised the following
assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers:

Contract liabilities related to
sales of goods (Note i)

Contract liabilities related to
sales of properties (Note ii)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

These consist of advanced payments received
from customers for goods that have not yet
been transferred to the customers.

These consist of advanced payments received
from customers resulting from the properties
sales.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %= E B R AR

5

BRHEEERZ
BHa’E A
BRHEEMEZ
B #a s (M)

TEER &)
) BBIEEF &R

(d)

I %5622,020,0008 7T (—ZF = —

£ :1,022,366,000/8 7T ) JHR E A

—HRTEXRFHEHEERNETE

M PO AEE NS EEE2T%
T —4F :38%) °

HFREFENZEERAE

AEEEHRANTBEREEFALH
ZEERARE:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
42,894 23,592
137,867 99,501
180,761 123,093

Hat

() HWEEARARBEREEPZEM
[F) & P T8 SR WRER 2 AN 3K o

(i) WEREXSHEEWEATSARK
PANE S
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5
(e) Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities

The following table shows how much of the
revenue recognised for the year ended 31
March 2022 and 2021 relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities:

Contract liabilities related to sales BRAHEESE R
of goods BHBE

Contract liabilities related to sales BHEEEMEY
of properties BHEE

B 35 M

THEER (#)

() BRENEBECEIAZKE

TREREEC

E-_FR-F

T Z=ZA=t+t—BHLEFEHRE
HANABER ZWERE

2022 2021
—E=-= — T —%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
23,592 33,652

120 -

23,712 33,652

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £E#H & KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &i&&%EBEAR AR
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NOT"iES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3 Y &

Fair value gain on financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss, net

Fair value (loss)/gain on investment

properties, net (Note 16)

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property,

plant and equipment, net

Gain on disposal of equity interest

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6

BEBBRBRAFEIEKZ

TREEZAFE
Yas - FER

REMEZ AFE(BR),/
Yeak - 88 (HaE16)

HEME  BEERELZ
W (E1E) B8
HE—MBER A REZ

in an associate (Note 21) W (fat21)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHB ARz ks
(Note i) (Kt ati)
Gain on termination of leases wIEE 2 Wi
Gross rental income He WALz
Sales of scrap materials & R
Subsidy income (Note ij) ARG (B i)
Others HAh
Note: Hat -
)  On 25 October 2021, the Group entered into a sale 0]

and purchase agreement with an independent third

party to dispose of the entire interest in an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which was
principally engaged in manufacture and trading of
moulds, for a cash consideration of RMB400,000
(equivalent to HK$486,000). The transaction was
completed on the same date, resulting in a gain on
disposal of approximately HK$605,000.

On 16 June 2020, the Group disposed of the entire
equity interest in B2 (EREB)ER AR and
BIRETREIIM (BN B MR AR and its subsidiaries to
an independent third party, for a cash consideration
RMB34,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
(HK$39,812,000). The disposal resulted in a gain of
disposal of HK$1,621,000.

N
/

N N

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 E AR A A

Htt WA R s - F8

2022 2021
—E=-= —E - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
4,155 3,322
(2,601) 3,462
34 (1,195)

- 729

605 1,621

- 142

1,767 512

11,257 10,001
44,970 66,914
6,843 8,536
67,030 94,044

R-ZE-_—F+A-+AH AEH
H—ZBIEZ L EE RS M
B &R EAR400,000T (HER
486,000/ 0) HEA AR —EHEES
BENBABIMEIRE  ZABEE
REEELEEREE -BEAXH5ER
[ B FEAK I 2 AE 6 i &% 49605,0007%8

JT °©

RZZEZZEXA+XA  AEEMN
He A EARK34,500,0007T (FHER
#939,812,0008 L) M— & BULE=F
HERIESERE (BE) BRAR K
BlEEE e (EM) AR AR R EKH
BRAIZEHRE AFRALEEHEE
A E Y 251,621,000 7T ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMé-NTS
5 %% R ak MY =

6 OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6 HWARWKE  FHE@
(continued)
Note: (continued) MiaE - ()
(i) Various government subsidies have been received iy ARABCE A E M BTSN E

from the local government authorities for subsidising
the operating activities, research and development
activities, and acquisition of fixed assets. During
the year ended 31 March 2022, subsidies
income amounting to HK$44,970,000 (2021:
HK$66,914,000) are recognised in profit or loss,
including the recognition of deferred government
subsidy income of HK$39,895,000 (2021:
HK$36,965,000).

ERITH B A BE & B 5 &) - T8 F
FRNEREEE REBEE-_T -
FZAZ+—BLFE @WHKA
& $£44,970,0008 L (Z T = —F ¢
66,914,000/ 7C) ERBENER @ B
+ T 3R IR RE KT 47 B U A.39,895,000
BT (=T = —% : 36,965,000/ L) °

7 FINANCE COSTS, NET 7 BBER FE

2022 2021

—E-— T —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Interest expense on bank loans RITERZMEMX 9,357 10,468
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBBEZMERX

(Note 17(b)) (Btat17(b)) 350 156

Bank interest income HRITH B A (1,101) (818)

8,606 9,806

During the year ended 31 March 2022, interest REZE-_TE-_—F=ZA=+—8HIF

expense of HK$7,937,000 (2021: HK$6,223,000) [E - MBHEZ7,987,0008 L (ZF=—

was capitalised under properties under development.
The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount
of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted
average interest rate applicable to the entity’s
borrowings during the year of 2.8% (2021: 2.7%).

16,223,000 L) RERBFRWEIAT
B - AREESTERCAI &K
$/\§EE’]§$4|§T’7%%:FHE/\:§:%§¢WF
RZMEFHRFE - B2.8% (=T =——
F:127%)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥
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NOﬂES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 2 MY =

166

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %% EAR AT

8 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 PBRFANER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after AREBZGBADSERN O MR T &HE :
charging:
2022 2021
—E—— —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAK 1,443,250 1,716,739
Cost of properties sold B E WK 4,002 5,204
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BEMERETE
equipment (Note 15) (K15t15) 129,588 119,635
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE
(Note 17(a)) (Hit17(a) 5,213 2,445
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) BEE®RFRAZ (A:29) 499,341 507,663
Auditor’s remuneration % B AT B 3,180 3,100
Legal and professional fee EERBEXEER 7,018 8,478
Short-term lease expenses RMEHEERX 233 911
Provision for impairment of FERERE  FE
inventories, net (Note 22) (Ht:t22) 4,583 5,086
Impairment of properties under BERIPMERE
development (Note 19) (B1a19) - 4,456
Impairment of completed properties BIEHEZRTITYMERE
held for sale (Note 20) (Htit20) - 15,944
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT 75 4R % MY aF

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EERAHX

(@) Employee benefit expenses (including
Directors’ emoluments)

Wages, salaries and other ITE -#Hak
employee welfares Hibig 2@ F
Retirement benefits costs iR ARAE F B A

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
five (2021: five) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 10.

(c) During the year, no emoluments have been
paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office (2021:
Nil).

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £ [Z & KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &)@k E B R A A

(a) EEEFEXX(BEESHH)

2022 2021
—EsE-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
497,896 506,217
1,445 1,446
499,341 507,663

(b) EfUESHMAL
RAEEREBRUSESHMAL
EPEEAL(ZE-—F :14%)
BT -BREEE2HERME10

EIE s k)ig-d:: 3
(c) RFER  AEBWEREEI(NE

BN 1E B I AR E B I AR
EESMNERSIEAER®BE (=
T —F ) o
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Noﬁss TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 2 MY =

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments

The remuneration of every director and chief
executive for the year ended 31 March 2022
and 2021 is set out below:

10

EEVakER (REBE(EEB
~ B & BI) (55622F ) 55383
(28 (HEESENGEE
#) R HI) (5£622GE) R &EHE
EiRREEER)

(a) EERFTETHAENS

BHE_Z-_—_Fr-ZT-_—F=
A=+—HLFE SEERETE
THRABMEMET WOT -

Equity-
settled Pension
Discretionary  share option scheme
Fee Salary bonus expense contributions Total
Kaks B
e 4 MERL BRERX STEER &
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&7 &7 b2 FET FE7 &7
2022 —EB-CE
Executive directors and HTEER
the chief executive BETHAR
Cheng Chor Kit (Note J PRE W) - 5,340 - - = 5,340
Liu Tat Luen FEE = 2,280 - - 18 2,298
Cheng Tsz To 815 - 1,800 - - 18 1,818
Cheng Tsz Hang B4 - 2,160 - - 18 2,178
Lee Kim Wa, Winston (Note i 8= (i) - 3,600 - - 18 3,618
Non-executive director *41rES
Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent (Note i) BES (1) 300 - - - - 300
Independent non-executive directors BUXHTES
Wong Chi Wai i 300 - - - - 300
Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian En 300 - - - - 300
Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul =EES 300 = - - - 300
Cheung Wang Ip - 300 - - - - 300
1,500 15,180 - - 7 16,752

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %% EAR AT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS

OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (continued)

10

NTS
T ELE:

BEENNEZREDS (KB(EFB
2 B &) (56622 ) %383
HR-(2E (BHEEENRE
B RB) (£622GE) R BB
ERRABEER) @)

(@) EERTFETBRAEME (&)

Equity-settled Pension

Discretionary  share option scheme
Fee Salary bonus expense  contributions Total
hrig R’ife
#e gé BETL  BRERY SHELR a3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT AT AT FET FET
2021 -R--F
Executive directors and the YIEER
chief executive ERTRAE
Cheng Chor Kit (Note J gRE () - 5,704 - - - 5,704
Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent (Note i)~ B E (#2ii) - 3,752 - - 18 3,710
Liu Tat Luen BiER - 1,888 - - 18 1,906
Cheng Tsz To g1z - 1,800 - - 18 1818
Cheng Tsz Hang g1 - 2,160 - - 18 2,178
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Wong Chi Wai Bl 300 - - _ _ 300
Sun Kwal Yu, Vivian FEm 300 - - - - 300
Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul kS 300 - - - - 300
Cheung Wang Ip REX 300 - - - - 300
1,200 15,304 - - 72 16,576

There was no arrangement under which a
director or the chief executive waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year

(2021: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ e E:

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 10 EEFERER (KEB(EB
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES A A% H) (5$622%F) 5383
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF HR-(2E (BHEEENRE
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES B RB) (£622GE) R BB
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), FHBEBBEER) 2

COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EERIETHAEME (Z)

emoluments (continued)

Notes: Biat -

()  Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, a director of the () ARREFERELETAER
Company, is also the chief executive of the AITIRABEL ©
Company.

(i)  Mr. Lee Kim Wa, Winston, was appointed as iy FRIELEER-_ZT=_—FWMA—
an executive director on 1 April 2021. HEZTARITESE -

(i) Dr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent, resigned as an (i) HEEFBLR=_T=_—FWA—
executive director and was re-designated as a AR ITES T AT AIENTT
non-executive director on 1 April 2021. £FE o

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED & %&E B[R AR ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EZ # &




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMéNTS

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £ [Z &

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any retirement benefits during the year ended
31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any termination benefits during the year ended
31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services
(2021 Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans

and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
During the year ended 31 March 2022, there
were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of the directors, or
controlled body corporates and connected
entities of such directors (2021: Nil).

WS 4R & MYt

10 EENRZRER (RKBEEEB
N AEHI) (55622%FE) 5383
HR-(2E (BHEEENRE
B RB) (£622GE) R BB
ERRABEER) @)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &% 5= & A R A &)

EEEAEA
Hze_Z2-_—_#=ZA=+—HI
FEAR - BEEEWRDSEKEE
ARRERN(ZE=—F : &) -

EEBRREAN

BEe—_f2-_—_F=-A=+—H1
FENRN - BEESERIIBRENME
MBEREN(ZE—F + &)

MERHEEREMATFE=H
RE
HE-_Z-_—_F=-H=+—HIL
FE - -ARARMERERMHEES
BREZHREFEANE=ZH(ZF
Z—Ffm) o

BREES SEZEFNEAR
BrREEEEHEESRELENE
RRELER  URBERZSES
HWEMRZHNER

HE_Z-_—_F=-A=+—H1F
FE AQEHERNES RZE
EERIREABBREEESH
HERENERRBUER UK
BERZEATHNEMRITHE(Z
T —F | o
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’ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3 Y &

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(f) Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
Apart from those disclosed in Note 33, no
significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

11 INCOME TAX

10 EENRZRER (RKBEEEB
A B HEBI) (565622 ) 5383
HR-(2E (BHEEENRE
B RBI) ($5622GE) R E B
EFHRABEER) &)

() ESEXRS  ZHIEGHHTHEKX
R
BRMIEES3 PAIRBEE SN - MAFF
RF AR - HmEAREE
EXBBMEZLEERS  RHHA
#) 0 RAARRBE—T - ARAR
RAEFERIHEENFEEARN
EHE-

11 FiB#H

2022 2021
—TE-F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Current — Hong Kong KEE-HE

Charge for the year FAZW 6,459 13,400
Adjustment for current tax of prior years 38 1F £ 5 B H3 15 18 5 2 938 4,883

Current — Elsewhere REF - Hbib[E
Charge for the year FAZH 3,555 15,495
Adjustment for current tax of prior years 81T 4E & BN HA B 1B 5 2 (3,856) (3,666)
Deferred tax (Note 29) RIERIA (M 7F29) 10,453 5,802
Total tax charge for the year FABIEZ LB 17,549 35,914

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %= E B R AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMéNTS

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the locations
in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
weighted average tax rate of 24 % (2021: 26%) is as

B 75 R 3% Y =

11 FiBH (&)

BARNARERZEMERRIMEDZ
EEMEFFRE ZERANR G BATG N 2
BUIR B S B AR N P 39 B R 24% (—F
T 26%) st B 2 BIER S HER 0
T~

follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rates
Adjustments in respect of

current tax of previous periods
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax losses from previous periods utilised

Tax losses not recognised
Effect of different taxation rates under
preferential tax treatment

Tax charge

2022 2021

—=E== T

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

B B4 B8 74,407 140,055

REEMEFTHE 2 BE 15,950 26,728
ERBEER B

B2 A (2,918) 1,217

AR ZBA (6,877) (8,199)

DA 2 A& 8,549 10,810
EBABETHE

TIEEE (3,996) (3,659)

RER 2 IBEE 7,046 9,182

MEBETARABEZ
2 (205) (165)
TRIE S H 17,549 35,914

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year, except
for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
effective from the year of assessment 2019/2020.
The first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of this
subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% (2021: Same) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%
(2021: Same).

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the applicable rates of tax prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates. The tax
rate applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%
(2021: 25%).

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#%EAR A a]

EENERIREAREEMEEZMG
STIERR R M M IR16.5% (Z T — —4F ¢
16.5%) 2T RAHRBH  HEAEE—
MM B AR ZARB-ZT—N,
CEERBFERBERZARFNEH
REETZEEREE - ZMBRARZ
B2,000,000/% 7T F& &R Bt ' 7 128.25%
(ZEZ—F - AR BHEEH - MEH
FERBS R M BIE16.5% (T =——4 : 48
[E]) Bt =G H o

RE AR 2 FER R F 2 BB AR AR
EEEEMEBRRBITZEAR R
H-FR PRZHBARZEARE
B25% (—EFE = —4F : 25%)




NOﬂES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 2 MY =

12 DIVIDENDS 12 RE
The Board has resolved not to declare any final EFERATEEREE-_ZE=-F
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: ZA=+—HULEFEZRERS (ZF
Nil). ——F &) o
13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 EREF
A reconciliation of the earnings used in calculating RAUSTEERABF 2 BMHEENT -
earnings per share is as follows:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) attributable to the ordinary RAUGTFEERERRK
equity holders of the Company used in BERAN 2 AAF
S
calculating basic and diluted earnings %ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% ﬁ_j\n
per share: FEAEm ] (E1E) -
From continuing operations REBECEER 56,858 104,328
From discontinued operation REBKRIEQCEEY - (702)
56,858 103,626
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: BREAREFTIETYIEE BERTE
- profit for the year attributable to equity holders — ARFEZEFEBEABGLTE LT
of the Company of HK$56,858,000 (2021: 56,858,000/ 7T (=T — — 4 :
HK$103,626,000), 103,626,000/%% 7T) -
- by the weighted average number of ordinary - BRUFRBEBTTRMETYH
shares of 438,960,000 (2021: 438,960,000) in £0438,960,000/% (=& = — F :
issue during the year. 438,960,0000% ) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMé«-NTS
5 %% R ak MY =

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13 BRER &)
2022 2021
—E-= - —F
HK cents HK cents
Bl BN
Earnings from continuing BEREER 2 BRAT
operations per share 12.95 23.77
Loss from discontinued operation O P2k~ IR E R
per share - (0.16)
Total basic earnings per share RNATHESEA AEN
attributable to the equity FRYE A B F| %8
holders of the Company 12.95 23.61

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in

the determination of basic earnings per share to take 2 EF AT M

into account:

BRESAENARAUNBEESERERR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

the after income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

- HEEAEELARAABNTNERE
R ER AR BMERETE &

- BREMEEEEETLARESR
B T BTN RRINE B
nHEFH R -

S

\ o /
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13 ERER @)
A reconciliation of the weighted average number of BUGEERERNEERT 2 ERA%
ordinary shares used in calculating the basic and IFEFEG & 2 HERMT ¢

diluted earnings per share is as follows:

2022 2021
—s=-= B
Weighted average number of ordinary 3 LA &t & 5 A% H 7K 2 #5%
shares used in calculating basic and & F| 7 & @AY INkE F 19
diluted earnings per share 438,960,000 438,960,000
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK cents HK cents
Bl BN
Diluted earnings from continuing HEREEBRZ
operations per share SR ERT 12.95 23.77
Diluted loss from discontinued BERIEEEER 2
operation per share EFiEEHE - (0.16)
Total diluted earnings per share RARERERFEAA
attributable to the ordinary equity iR REER N B5
holders of the Company 12.95 23.61
Earnings from continuing operations TEKEER 2 EFRER
per share
- Basic earnings per share —FREREF 12.95 23.77
- Diluted earnings per share —ESREFEZF 12.95 23.77
Loss from discontinued operation ERIEREER 2 RIEE
per share
- Basic loss per share —EBREXNER - (0.16
- Diluted loss per share —EBREEHE = (0.16)
Diluted earnings/(losses) per share SRBEEF (FE)

The diluted earnings/(losses) from continuing
operations and discontinued operation per share is
equal to the basic earnings/(losses) per share for
the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 as the
outstanding share options did not have dilutive effect
because the exercise price per share option was
higher than the average share price of the Company
durih"g__ the year.

176 A \
v W
N 3

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E&&EEAR A7

HE-_ZT-_—FRk=-ZT=—%=H
ST —HIEFEZBELEEBREK
IHEEEBrSREsaT (FE) &
BREARZF, (BE)ER REAS
MBREZITEESREARIRFRNLZ
FHRRME - E UL ARTTF BRI EEE
R o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMIé--_NTS
5 %% R ak MY =

14 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

14 B QA

TREFR =T F=A=+—HZ

31 March 2022: FTEWE AR :
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of Ownership
establishment and issued share interest held by
Name kind of legal entity capital the Group Principal activities
HMERL/ BRI HR rEEBEL
AEER EARRER BRITRARE FEgER TEXHR
2022 2021
“T--F %
Directly held
EERE
Kin Yat Holdings (BVI) British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited limited liability company US$1
REkE(RBRERAES) HBRLHES BRLRA  EBRRIERL RERK
BRAT
Indirectly held
BERE
Guizhou Kin Yat Property ~ The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Property development
Company Limited limited liability company RMB130,000,000
EMBRRHEBRAR HE FRAA ERRARY FHERE
130,000,0007T
ENEHELRRME The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Property development
BRAHE limited liability company RMB200,000,000
hE - BRAR ERRARE FHERE
200,000,0007C
Guizhou Standard Electric  The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Manufacture and trading
Motor Company Limited limited liability company RMB124,005,400 of motors
EMBEERERAR  HE ARAA ERRARE HEREES
124,005,4007T
Kin Yat (Guizhou) Robot The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Manufacture and trading
Company Limited limited liability company RMB100,000,000 of electronic products
B (EMN)BEAFRLE HE - BRAA ERRARE HEREBEFEM
100,000,0007T
Kin Yat (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of electrical

Corporation Limited

BE(BB)EXBRAA

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

limited liability company

BE ARAA

HK$10,000
E/AE10,0008 7T

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED % 5=EAR AT
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NOﬂES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 2 MY =

14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14 fiB A= (&)
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of Ownership
establishment and issued share interest held by
Name kind of legal entity capital the Group Principal activities
WAL/ L BHR rEEBHEL
ARER EARRER BRITRARFE FrERER TEEH
2022 2021
—E--F ZZ--%
Indirectly held (continued)
BERE(E)
Kin Yat Industrial Company Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of toys,

Limited limited liability company HK$3,200,000 electronic products,
and sourcing of
materials

BEEXARAA BE BRAR %8 %3,200,000% 7T EEMA TFE@mEM

HiRE

Newway Electrical Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of electrical
Industries (Hong Kong) limited liability company HK$10,000 household appliances
Limited

MEEREX(FR) BE BRAR LiBMR10,0008 T EEXE
BRAT

Penta Blesses Enterprises  Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment and property
Limited limited liability company HK$1,000,000 holding

hRGEERRA BE BRAR %i8M1,000,000% 7T RERFBENE

Shaoguan Turbo Electronic  The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Manufacture and trading
Technology Company limited liability company US$8,000,000 of toys and electrical
Limited appliances

RAEETFRRBRAA #E FRAA % i808,000,000% 7T HEREEMARER

Shenzhen Kin Yat Power ~ The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Manufacture and trading
Electronic Company limited liability company US$10,000,000 of toys and electronic
Limited products

RBRESFERRR HE ARAA £i87%10,000,000% 7T HEREEMAREFE

m

Shixing Standard Motor The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Property holding,

Company Limited limited liability company US$23,000,000 manufacture and
trading of motors

nEGRENETE hE - BRAR £i87%23,000,000% 7T BEN% HEREES

BRAT] e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMIé--_NTS
5 %% R ak MY =

14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

14 B QT (&)

Place of incorporation/  Particulars of Ownership
establishment and issued share interest held by
Name kind of legal entity capital the Group Principal activities
WAL/ L BHR rEERERZ
ARER EABRER BRTRAFE FEEER TEEH
2022 2021
—E--F ZT-—-%
Indirectly held (continued)
BERE(2)
Smart Electric Motor Hong Kong, Ordinary share 100% 100%  Trading of motors and
Company Limited limited liability company HK$1 materials
BEBRARAR B BRAT EBRIBT EREH R
Smart Electric Motor Singapore, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of motors
Singapore Pte. Limited limited liability company SG$100
M BRAR LBRI100FT A T BESHK
Standard Encoder Malaysia, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Manufacture and trading
(Malaysia) Sdn Bhd limited liability company RM500,000 of encoder film
SRAEL BRAF £ %500,0005% WEREERBRFM
Standard Land (Malaysia) ~ Malaysia, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Property holding
Sdn Bhd limited liability company RM500,000
SRAER BRAR £ M%500,0005% HEME
Standard Motor Company ~ Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of motors and
Limited limited liability company HK$40,000,000 sourcing of materials
SREMEETERRAE BB BRAA 38 A240,000,000% 7T EESHIRENH
Standard Motor Japan Japan, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of motors
Company Limited limited liability company JPY10,000,000
BAR - BRAR 310,000,000 E EESH
World Talent Enterprise Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of toys
Limited limited liability company HK$1,000,000
RECEARAR & ARAR £ % 1,000,000/ 7 EEmA
BEATREEEERALA  The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Manufacture and trading
limited liability company HK$26,500,000 of toys
HE - BRAR £ % 1%26,500,000/8 7T WEREEMA
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

156 W% - BERZRE

EQUIPMENT
Moulds, tools, Furniture,
Freehold land  Construction and plant and equipment and
Buildings and buildings i progress machinery motor vehicles Total
KAER B3 I8 5438 )
B:  ihHEET fEIR LRHRHEAE kAE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
223 b2 223 b2 871 223
31 March 2022 ZECCEZRST-H
Cost or valuation: BAESME:
At 1 April 2021 R-E--ENA-H 357,460 26,893 92,153 1,276,494 478,536 2,231,536
Additions AE - - 7 41,522 1,460 43,699
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-RHBAE - - - - 518 518
Disposals e - - - (17) (1,824) (1,841)
Wite-off ik - - = (129) (3972) (4,095)
Transfers g% 9,550 - (12,982) 3,432 - -
Deficit on revaluation Ef B4 (23,865) 6 - - - (23,859)
Write-back on revaluation EREE (14,785) (176) - - - (14,961)
Exchange realignment BiA% 5,067 (1,277) 2,461 32,853 9,322 48,426
At 31 March 2022 RZE--#-A=1+-H 333,427 25,446 82,349 1,354,161 484,040 2,219,423
Accumulated depreciationand i TERA(E :
impairment:
At 1 April 2021 R-B--£NA-H - - - 812,547 348,615 1,161,162
Provided during the year EREE 14,785 176 - 86,021 28,606 129,568
Disposals HE - - - (17) (1,768) (1,785)
Write-off § = - - (123) (3,972) (4,095)
Write-back on revaluation EfREE (14,785) (176) - - - (14,961)
Exchange realignment [ER A% - - - 20,480 5,795 26,275
At 31 March 2022 RZE-Z5=ZR=1+-H - - - 918,908 377,276 1,296,184
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 March 2022 R-E-"€=f=+-H 333,427 25,446 82,349 435,253 106,764 983,239
31 March 2022 ZECZEZA=t-H
An analysis of cost or valuation: KAEHEEZ 1 :
At cost R E - - 82,349 1,354,161 484,040 1,920,550
At 2022 valuation BE-ZEVRE 333,421 25,446 - - - 358,873
333,427 25,446 82,349 1,354,161 484,040 2,219,423
KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &t E AR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F [ i



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMé-NTS
5 %% R ak MY =

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15 ¥ -HEREE @)
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Moulds, tools, Fumiture,
Freeholdland ~ Construction  and plantand  equipment and
Buidings  and buildings in progress machinery  motor vehicles Total
KRR BE-I&  GA RE
BF  1HRET ERIE RERERE RAE it

HK8'000 HK8'000 HK8 000 HK8 000 HK8 000 HK8 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

31 March 2021 ZBEC-EZf=1-8

Cost or valuation: HAESGE:

At 1 April 2020 WZE-TEMA-R 304,576 25,909 94,605 1,139,085 423875 1,988,050

Addtions iy - - 1372 50,896 24,441 85,709

Disposals e - - - (6,487) - (6,487)

Write-off i - - - (117) (3,772) (3,889)

Transfers S - - (13,398) 187 13,261 -

Surplus on revaluation EfRH 52,600 176 - - - 52,776

Write-back on revaluation EfEREE (12,417) (176) - - - (12,599

Exchange realignment B 12,701 984 9,574 83,980 20,731 127,970

At 31 March 2021 R-E--£=f=t-8 357,460 26,893 92,153 1,276,494 478,53 2,231,536

Accumulated depreciation and ~ EHTEREME :

impairment:

At 1 Aprl 2020 R_Z_ZEMA-A - - - 686,150 312,746 998,896

Provided during the year Enif 12,417 176 - 80,605 26,437 119,63

Disposals ek - - - (2,490) - (2,490)

Write-off i - - - (117) (3,772) (3,889)

Write-back on revaluation EffkEE (12,417) (176) - - - (12,599

Exchange realignment EHBE - - - 48,399 13,004 61,603

At 31 March 2021 W-E--£=F=1-8 - - - 812,547 348,615 1,161,162

Net book value: BHFE:

At 31 March 2021 R-B--%=f=t-8 357,460 26,893 92,153 463,947 129,021 1,070,374

31 March 2021 ZE--EZBzt-8

An analysis of cost or valuation: KABHEE 22 :

At cost A - - 92,153 176,494 478,536 1847,183

At 2021 valuation B-E--E70E 357,460 26,893 - - - 384,353
357,460 26,893 92,153 1,276,494 478,536 2,231,536
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation of approximately HK$119,113,000
(2021: HK$108,866,000) is included in cost of sales;
HK$10,475,000 (2021: HK$10,769,000) is included
in administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

At 31 March 2022, the Group’s building in Hong
Kong and Mainland China were revalued based on
valuation performed by Asset Appraisal Limited,
an independent professionally qualified valuer,
at HK$2,630,000 (2021: HK$2,310,000) and
RMB268,370,000 (equivalent to HK$330,797,000)
(2021: RMB296,370,000 (equivalent to
HK$355,150,000)) respectively.

Freehold land and buildings in Malaysia were
revalued based on valuation performed by Ravia
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer, at Malaysian
Ringgit (“RM”) RM13,690,000 (equivalent to
HK$25,446,000) (2021: RM13,780,000 (equivalent to
HK$26,893,000)).

Revaluation deficits of HK$23,859,000 resulting
from the above revaluation were debited to (2021:
Revaluation surplus of HK$52,776,000 resulting from
the above revaluation were credited to) the asset
revaluation reserve.

Each year, the Group appoints external valuers
to be responsible for the external valuations of
the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained.
The management discusses with the valuers on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed for financial reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation
techniques used in prior years. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E&&EEAR A7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

15 ¥ - BMERRE#®)

7 E#119,113,0008 T (Z T = —
F : 108,866,000 j) B 5T A 38 & X
7K 510,475,000 0 (=2 = — F ¢
10,769,000/ 7T) E5F AR & W= &k N
TR °

RZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H AEH
REBRFBEAM ZEFHREBE
BEELERGEMPHAEZEETER
MERARMETZHEEMmMER 4
B9 B 452,630,0008 7T (Z T =—F :
2,310,000/ 7T) & A R #268,370,000
7t (#8 % 330,797,000 7t) (= &
——%: AR#¥296,370,0007T (HHZ %
355,150,000/ L)) °

RERTEE 2 KA EE L RIEF TR
BB HES EKIEERRavia Global
Appraisal Advisory LimitedFf# 17 2
HEMmE - 4 E 413,690,000 &
([F#]) (#8%1425,446,000% 7T) (=
T~ — 4 :13,780,0006 % (HE R
26,893,000/87T)) °

ot & fh E A 2 & 14 E #iN23,859,000
BITEREEEHFBEIR (22—
FERALERELEZEMAH®
52,776,000/ 7T) °

BF AREZRBIEHEMHAEEA
SEZ2MFRETIBMGEE - REFTER
EmSHE BE BUUELRRLHER
EXRE - ZRMBRBETHER
EEEgEMGEMNREERRLGE

+
:%D °

BEFEMBMEERMELEZS - KRG
AMEZATER  FEVEZES
RERAESHEBRKRAE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMéNTS
5 %% R ak MY =

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15 Y% - BMERRE®)
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Fair value hierarchy AFEERE
The fair values of the Group’s land and buildings at R-ZE-_—_F#=ZA=+—H  AEEZ
31 March 2022 are estimated by using significant T REFZ AT ETRBEATAHE
unobservable inputs and the fair value measurement R ABBHFTTEAFEFEDENS
is categorised within Level 3 (2021: Same). BT (ZZ——4%: AR) -
During the year ended 31 March 2022, there were RBE_Z_—_F#=A=1+—HBI%F
no transfers of fair value measurements between E - BETAAFEFEEEF B F
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 (2021: Nil). —_EBHEE=ZEB2EEB(ZEZ—F
=) o
Reconciliation of fair value measurements ENBERATFEERE-"ERNZAFE
categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: FECHE:
Buildings in

Building in Mainland  Buildings in

Hong Kong China Malaysia

(Industrial) ~ (Industrial)  (Industrial) Total

REE RPERNE  REREE

BT ZBF ZBF

(1%) (I%) (I%) ast
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$000

T FET FER FET

Carrying amount: REME:

At 1 April 2021 RZE--FMNE—H 2,310 355,150 26,893 384,353
Transfer g% - 9,550 - 9,550
Depreciation | (92) (14,693) (176) (14,961)
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation BEER/ (BH) 412 (24,277) 6 (23,859)
Exchange realignment fE 1 i - 5,067 (1,277) 3,790
At 31 March 2022 RZZE--%#=fR=+-H 2,630 330,797 25,446 358,873
At 1 April 2020 WZE-ZENA-H 2,460 302,116 25,909 330,485
Depreciation & (98) (12,319) (176) (12,593)
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation Eff (B /B (52) 52,652 176 52,776
Exchange realignment XA - 12,701 984 13,685
At 31 March 2021 W-E--F=A=1—H 2,310 355,150 26,893 384,353
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NOﬂES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15 ¥ - BMERRE#®)
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DRELEE(E)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used MEGEMBZGEETERTER AH
and the key inputs to the valuation of properties: BHENT
Significant Range of unobservable inputs
Class of properties  Valuation techniques unobservable inputs (weighted average)
TIBERAHEEE
VEX ] HER % EXARTBEBAYE (fn#ET13)
2022 2021
—E-CE g5
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong Market comparable method Gross unit rate per square foot 506 444
BB s B E BEARBENESE
- Buildings
-85
- Industrial
-1¥
- Level 3
-%=F
Mainland China Direct replacement cost method  Gross unit rate per square foot 63 to 148 70 t0 159
HRE BEEBERAKE BYARBENLE]E 63Z148 70£159
- Buildings
o =i
- Industrial
—:E%
- Level 3
=
Malaysia Direct replacement cost method  Gross unit rate per square foot 459 477
HRAE S BEEEENAZE BYRREEMER
- Buildings
8%
- Industrial
-T%
- Level 3
~57F
As at 31 March 2022, had the Group’s buildings RZEBE-_ZF=A=+—08  WAEH
stated at valuation been carried at cost less NEEIRZEFURKBREBETE
accumulated depreciation, they would have been HEEEE IWAMBHREKRP ZERME
included in the financial statements at approximately ¥ #9 551,390,000/8 T (—Z&F = —4F :
HK$51,390,000 (2021: HK$66,777,000). 66,777,000 7T) °

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &t E AR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F [ i




ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMéNTS

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

B 75 R 3% Y =

16 REWHE

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Carrying amount at the beginning of year ¥R E & 66,028 57,975

(Loss)/gain from fair value adjustment KENFEEAREY

(Note 6) (E18) /Wzs (f1i6) (2,601) 3,462

Exchange realignment S 1,853 4,591

Carrying amount at the end of year FREEEE 65,280 66,028
Notes: it -

()  The balance included the commercial building in The (i) HEHRPEENENBBER 2 A X

Royale Cambridge Residences, residential units and
car park, and a commercial leasehold land in Guizhou
Province.

(if) As at 31 March 2022, a portion of the
commercial leasehold land with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$46,789,000 (2021:
HK$47,556,000) was pledged to the bank to secure
a bank facility (Note 28).

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 March 2022 based on valuations performed by
Assets Appraisal Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers, at RMB52,960,000 (2021:
RMB55,100,000) (equivalent to HK$65,280,000
(2021: HK$66,028,000)).

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of
the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained.
The management discusses with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed for financial reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation
techniques used in prior years. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #Ea&sEHFR A

CEEBEMRREES ARBER
Bt o

“H}

iy M-ZTE-_—_FZA=+—HB KEME
#4) /546,789,000 L (Z T = —fF :
47,556,000%7m) 2 — S AEE L
B IIF FIRIT ARG IR TR E (Mt
28) °
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M EEETEBRMER AR E
TEEER A ARMES2960,0007T
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(565,280,000 T (ZE = —F :
66,028,000/ 7T)) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16 REWE &)

Fair value hierarchy AFELEE

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties RZE-__F=A=+—H XxEHEK
at 31 March 2022 are estimated by using significant BYENANTETERE AN #RE
unobservable inputs and the fair value measurement ABBGET A ATFETEREEE=E
is categorised within Level 3 (2021: Same). —E=——F : /R) -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RAFE  METAATFENEESE —
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no [BEREE — [E 7 e - JREed A sisd
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). E=B(ZZT-_—F ) o
Reconciliation of fair value measurements BHEEAVTEEREEF=-E2RAFEME
categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: HERWT

Land in Building in

Mainland Mainland
China China
(Commercial) (Commercial) Total
NRAFERYE U RATER
21 (%) Z8F@FHF) mat
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 1 April 2021 RZZE-—FMA—H 55,123 10,905 66,028
Loss from fair value adjustment ~ APEFAEEL 7 (2,431) (170) (2,601)
Exchange realignment B R 2 1,544 309 1,853
At 31 March 2022 NZEZZF
=A=+—~H 54,236 11,044 65,280
At 1 April 2020 AZE-TFMA—A 47,849 10,126 57,975
Gain from fair value adjustment A FEFHEES 7 U 3,462 - 3,462
Exchange realignment P& 5 FH 8 3,812 779 4,591
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—%F
=A=+—8H 55,123 10,905 66,028
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMéNTS

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment

properties:

Class of properties Valuation techniques

B 75 3% 3% P =

16 WEWE #)

KREMELEMAZHETNEREIZEH
ABEBALT

Significant
unobservable inputs

Range of unobservable inputs
(weighted average)

FTUBERAHEEE
MR HEF % BEATTEHERABE (fnEE¥)
2022 2021
—s-= —ET-—F
HK$ HK$
B BT
Leasehold land in Market comparable Gross unit rate 26 27
Mainland China method per square foot*
RPBEN s BEL  WHEEEE Y AREBELER
Commercial properties Income method Gross unit rate 512 506
in Mainland China per square foot*
REBEA 2 BEDE KWL FBEAFRBBEA(EE
# The higher the gross unit rate per square foot, the # FBEHFREBMNBRAS  AFER
higher the fair value. P
/
\'\ S
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FZ k& KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #&E%EAR A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

17 LEASES 17 #HE
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FEHEEE
Prepaid Office
land lease Leasehold and other
payments land properties Total
(Note(i)) (Note(ii)) (Note(iii))
AL MAER
e HELH Hi s st
(B =E()) (BF=E(E) (B EE(ii))
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2021 R-B=-—%
A—AH 22,406 202 3,726 26,334
Inception of lease A%
contracts - - 13,182 13,182
Depreciation (Note (iv)) #1& (47:t(iv)) (653) (8) (4,552) (5,213)
Exchange realignment [ 35,38 2 340 - 9 349
At 31 March 2022 R-E-—F
=A=+—H 22,093 194 12,365 34,652
At 1 April 2020 R-E-ZF
mA—H 22,169 210 3,864 26,243
Inception of lease A
contracts - - 5,348 5,348
Depreciation (Note (iv)) #1& (474t(iv)) (635) ®) (1,802) (2,445)
Termination of leases & IFTHE - - (3,828) (3,828)
Exchange realignment [ i, Ff 2 872 - 144 1,016
At 31 March 2021 MNZEZ—HF
—A=+—H 22,406 202 3,726 26,334

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 E AR A A
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17 LEASES (continued)

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £ [Z &

Right-of-use assets (continued)
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

The Group obtains the land use rights through
lease contracts with local governments in the
PRC with 50 years term.

The Group’s interest in leasehold land is on
medium term lease of 50 years located in Hong
Kong.

The Group obtains right to control the use
of office and other properties for a period
of time through lease arrangements. Lease
arrangements are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions including lease payments
and lease terms ranging from 1 to 3 years.

The Group’s lease expenses (Note 8) are
primarily for short-term leases.

Depreciation of approximately HK$624,000
(2021: HK$108,000) is included in “Cost
of sales” and HK$4,589,000 (2021:
HK$2,337,000) is included in “Administrative
expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

B R R M

17 & (»)

EREEE (&)
Mt

(a)

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &i&&%EBEAR AR

AR5 (B35 38 22 rh B3 T U AT 52
AEBOF M ARG L EM
TE o

REE 2 HE TR IERHI50
FZHHEEREURLRE
7 e

REEFBEELHIEN—B
iSAENAEE B ENEY S R E 3
FIERORERN - ME LR IEE
ITER - B8 BB TR R
o BEEENRRNTF1E34F
Z T -

AEHZHEMX (HiEs) T2
KEMHMEE -

I1 & 49624,0008 L (= F = —
£ : 108,000%% JT) 4,589,000
BT (ZZ = —4 : 2,337,000
BIT) B A RIFT AR B WE KD
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17 LEASES (continued) 17 HE »)
(b) Lease liabilities by HEERE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E - —F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
At 1 April RMEA—H 3,772 4,000
Inception of lease contracts AR R 13,182 5,348
Termination of leases wIEEE - (3,970)
Interest expenses on lease liabilites MHE&BEBE2FEH X
(Note 7) (K1at7) 350 156
Payment for lease liabilities ZNHEEARE
(including interest) (BEHE) (4,453) (1,908)
Exchange alignment [ 5 3 & 69 146
At 31 March N=HA=+—H 12,920 3,772
Amount due for settlement R12E A REIBEE 2
within 12 months H1g 5,979 1,880
Amount due for settlement M12E R E R BEE
after 12 months FIA 6,941 1,892
12,920 3,772

The total cash outflows for leases for the year

FAREREGALRER
were HK$4,686,000 (2021: HK$2,819,000). s

4,686,000 T (ZF = — % :
2,819,000/ 7T) °

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is

HERBEZHHOITRHESA(C)

disclosed in Note 3.1(c). HWEE
(c) Short-term leases (c) EHHEE
As at 31 March 2022, the total future lease N-ZE-_—_F=A=+—H0" &

payments for short-term leases amounted to
HK$468,000 (2021: HK$6,000) (Note 37(b)).

HEHEZARBENRERER
468,000 7T (ZF = —4% : 6,000
B t) (MEE37(b)) °

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &t E AR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F [ i
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS mEEE
Goodwill
[EE
HK$’000
FET
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R_E-_—F=ZA=+—HK
—E-—FWHA—H
Cost and net book value AR X BRTEDEE 7,873
Opening net book value FYIREFEE 7,873
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note) I B — R B R R (K a2) 2,984
Closing net book value FRE@EFE 10,857
At 31 March 2022 RZE-Z—F=A=+—H
Cost and net book value AR & BRTENF B 10,857
At 31 March 2020, 1 April 2020 b_/\\\ 2_7 F=ZA=+—8"
and 31 March 2021 “E-EFOA—B K
—E-—49=A=+—H
Cost and net book value AR & BR TR E 7,873

Note: et

On 1 December 2021, Kin Yat International Limited, a RZZEZ—F+ZA—H AEEHZEN

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with a third party to acquire
100% equity interest in Attoude Technology (Shanghai)
Company Limited (“Attoude”) at a total cash consideration
of RMB3,550,000 (equivalent to: HK$4,314,000). As
at the acquisition, Attoude had fair values of plant and
equipment of HK$518,000, cash and cash equivalents
of HK$402,000 and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of HK$410,000, resulting in recognition of
goodwill amounting to HK$2,984,000. Attoude contributed
net loss of HK$1,884,000 to the Group for the period from
1 December 2021 to 31 March 2022. If the acquisition
had occurred on 1 April 2021, consolidated profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 would have been
HK$54,079,000.

BRARIEGRIKARARE—EZE =L
BEHE AR S AR EARYS550,000
JC (K& 74,314,000 7T ) Ut B8 #4122 25 A
BB (L) BRAR ([HEHE]) £9100%08%
B-REBEE EREZDERSBEZ
NFEA518,0008 T RERBREZSAY
2 A F{E B402,0007 7T A & B A 5B
e R H b e M KB 2 2 F & A410,000
T B RS E2,984,0008 T 0 R
—E-_—F+-A—HEZZE=-_=%=A
=S+l ERERAEEEEFE
181,884,000 L - A KB EBR =T
Z—FNA-BET AAEEEE=-ZT
CoFZAC+ALFEZHARMNEA
54,079,000/ 7T °

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED % 5=EAR AT
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill
Management reviews the business performance
based on type of business as follows:

Electrical and electronic products BENE
Motors B
At 31 March R=RA=+

During the year ended 31 March 2022, management
of the Group determined that there was no
impairment of the CGU to which the goodwill has
been allocated. The recoverable amount of goodwill
is determined using a value in use calculation with
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The key assumption for the cash flow
projections is the budget gross margin which is the
average gross margin achieved in the years before
the budgeted year and the discount rates applied to
the cash flow projections for electrical and electronic
products and motors segments were 14% and
14% (2021: electrical and electronic products and
motors segments were 14% and 14%) respectively.
The financial budgets are prepared reflecting actual
and prior year performance and development
expectations.

A / KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 & E 4R 22 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 3R % M

BEEE®)

75 B R 8 A R
EEERBUATEGENENELE
g -

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
6,207 3,223
4,650 4,650
10,857 7,873

REBE_ZT__F=A=+—HILF
B AEBEEEET BOEREZ
WEEEEMCITEFE - B2k
CHEREREEFEET  MEMRE
BRGEASREEEBIEZRENFH
Zﬁjﬂﬁ’ﬁ*"ZIﬁiﬂmgfﬁ EU o Re
MEBEAZFERERT #%ﬂ%z CH
RRBEFEABFERNMER THE
FE pERNEFERMUAREHESLE
ZEeREARA R ESRIR14%
F14n (Z2Z—F  EXNEFEMD
AREBHDE  14%K%14%) - B EKTE
B HRBEEERVER R FFENEE
REERTEH -
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19 PROPERTIES UNDER
DEVELOPMENT

At 1 April

Addition

Impairment (Note 8)
Exchange alignment

At 31 March (Note)
Current portion

Non-current portion

Note:

Properties under development comprise:

Construction costs and
capitalised expenditures

Interests capitalised

Land use rights

Impairment

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

B 75 3% 3% P =

19 BREPYE

2022 2021

—E=-= —E -4

HK$°000 HK$’000

FE T FE T

RMmA—H 357,830 312,381
NE 85,679 26,914
B (faE8) = (4,456)
fE H % 10,606 22,991
R=ZA=+—H (Ki) 454,115 357,830
BVEREB 7> (411,898) (316,787)
JEBNEREE 2 42,217 41,043

ERAVMERSE

2022 2021

—E-C—F —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

BERAREAR T H

287,186 202,538

B E R 35,949 27,955
T AR 135,878 132,099
BIE (4,898) (4,762)
454,115 357,830

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED % 5=EAR AT
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20 COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD

21

20 FHEHEZRIYE

FOR SALE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 April RMmA—H 143,905 154,464
Properties sold BEME (4,002) (5,204)
Impairment (Note 8) E (H528) - (15,944)
Exchange realignment M 5 38 & 4,051 10,589
At 31 March R=A=+—H 143,954 143,905
INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 21 R—REBEQATZRE
2022 2021
—E-—F —EZ—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Movements in the investment in an R—EEBE A A2
associate is as follows: WEEFHMT -
At beginning of the year TE ) - 4,854
Disposal (Note) & (Bat) - (5,001)
Share of post-tax losses LRI E AR - (31)
Exchange alignment BEE 5, 3 28 - 178
At end of the year RER = -

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %= E B R AR
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21 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 21 A—REE LN Z2ERE #)
(continued)
Note: Wt -
On 27 April 2020, the Group entered into sales and REZ-ZFOA-—+ER AEHREE=
purchase agreement with a third party, pursuant to which FRILEEBEWS Bt BUFE=7RER
the independent third party agreed to purchase, and the B MAKEREHEENEANSHER X
Group agreed to sell 33.3% of equity interests inE &R & ARAFMS33%HE  REXBERARE
BEERIH AR A fat cash consideration of RMB5,000,000 5,000,0007T (#75,730,0004 7T ) °
(approximately HK$5,730,000).
The transaction was completed on 27 April 2020 resulting in a FZRGER-FE-ZFHUA-+EHTK
gain on disposal of approximately HK$729,000 (Note 6). EEHE #)729,000/% 7T 1) H & Y 5= (B EE6) ©
22 INVENTORIES 22 &
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Raw materials R 189,136 249,044
Work in progress TR 30,938 29,343
Finished goods B2IEK @ 97,844 109,963
317,918 388,350
Less: Provision for impairment o ORERE (31,032) (26,449)
286,886 361,901
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and BRAAIEFTAIEETFERA] Z
included in “Cost of inventories sold” amounted 7 &R AN % /&1,443,250,00058 7T (—
to approximately HK$1,443,250,000 (2021: T - —% :1,716,739,000 7T) °
HK$1,716,739,000). Provision amounted to B #4,583,0008 L (ZF - —4F
HK$4,583,000 (2021: HK$5,086,000) was included 5,086,000 T) EREE T - _F=
in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated income A=+—HIFEFAGZEREZEXD
statement during the year ended 31 March 2022. [SHERA] -
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 Z 3% KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED  #2)i &B 5 R A 7] \ 4 :
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23 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS

RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable JE U HR X
Bills receivable FE U =%
Loss allowance &5 18 # 1

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers, where
cash on sale or payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally for a period
of one to two months, extending up to three
months for certain well-established customers. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has imposed tightened control to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its accounts and bills receivable balances.
Accounts and bills receivable are non-interest-
bearing.

The Group also used accounts receivable
factoring facilities to manage the credit risk of its
trade debtors. As at 31 March 2022, accounts
receivable of approximately HK$2,660,000 (2021:
HK$154,086,000) was subject to non-recourse
factoring arrangements and therefore derecognised.

A / KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% B 4 1R 2 7]

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 3R % M

23 EWERAKRERE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
304,317 364,896
o 17,975
304,317 382,871
(14,998) (14,782)
289,319 368,089

AEBBREPZEZERANBOINEE
AET  EHEFP—REARS LA
NEAEER - EEH-—RR—EM
BA ETEERRARFZEFPZEER
HARMEREZ=@A - BREFHEAE
B LR - AN E R B R ERIBRES
AR PR 15 30 2 005 1 6 A 15 5 L
ERE - 5REEAESETHRITEBH
KERR o AEREY EAE YRR MR
EHRBEEMNERRIEBEERT -
FEHR A R RIEAL AT S -

$’$I1§FHFEH&5E ARIEREERERE
HEEERR R _F=
ﬂ + B - & W ER 58 492,660,000/%8
gL (ZF = —4F : 154,086,000/ 7T) B
R EBPERELZE  ABEBUERE

=7
s °©
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23 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS 23 EWERAKREE &)
RECEIVABLE (continued)
An aging analysis of the accounts and bills RIEHR  EFUERMEEZRESD
receivable as at the end of the reporting period, MUz EEH8)MT :

based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 - 30 days 0230H 151,965 168,566
31 - 60 days 31£60H 66,476 89,109
61 — 90 days 61290H 43,003 92,806
Over 90 days 908 I + 42,873 32,390
304,317 382,871
Loss allowance a1 (14,998) (14,782)
289,319 368,089
At 31 March 2022, the Group had certain RZEZZF=A=+—H8  A£@E"
concentrations of credit risk that may arise from BEAHAARE REARFE /@R O
the exposure to the five largest customers and the MEAS TEREZERRE - DRMGARE
largest customer which accounted for approximately B EWW R TEERE 7 4904% (—FE — —4F -
24% (2021: 50%) and 1% (2021: 20%) of the 50%) 1% (ZZE = —F : 20%) °
Group’s total accounts receivable, respectively.
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 45 [& %5 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED i B4R A 7 \A 197
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23 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS 23 EWERAKREE &)
RECEIVABLE (continued)
The movements in provision for impairment of JEREFRER 2 RERBESH LT

accounts and bills receivable are as follows:

2022 2021
—E=-= —EZ—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
At beginning of the year RE 14,782 7,201
Provision for impairment recognised RERNER B EERME
during the year 50 7,373
Exchange realignment P 3, 58 2 166 208
At end of the year RER 14,998 14,782
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach REBEREBIFHRE LR FIHE
to measuring expected credit losses which uses a bR Rt =BHEEEE AT aEW
lifetime expected loss allowance for all accounts and AN EEFEREEEREEREE -
bills receivable. Note 3.1(b) provides details about FE3.1(0b) BN ERE ZFRER -
the calculation of the allowance.
The carrying amount of accounts and bills receivable FEWBE R R Z=HE 2 BRAEEEE QN FER
approximate their fair values. e
Denominated in: UTHEHMEE:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
HKD BT 26,361 23,826
UsbD E 181,435 221,845
RMB AR 81,440 121,892
Others Hb 83 526
289,319 368,089

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &t E AR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F [ i
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24 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepayment for property,
plant and equipment
Prepaid construction costs (Note)
Prepayment for materials
VAT recoverables
Factoring receivables from bank
Utility and other deposits
Staff advance
Other prepayments
Other receivables

Less: Provision for impairment

Less: Current portion

Non-current portion

Note:

As at 31 March 2022, prepaid construction costs include
prepaid construction cost of approximately HK$83,843,000
HK$95,747,000) to certain contractors for the
property development project in Dushan County, Guizhou
Province, the PRC. The properties, upon completion, are 7N o
for selling purpose and are expected to be completed
within twelve months, therefore, it is classified as current

(2021:

assets.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

24 FEFIE

B 7 R % MY 53

b= |
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

YE - WEMRBEENRE
76,206 95,066
TR BREKAN () 93,148 104,816
MRIFE FRIE 43,299 36,294
A Yz 3] 42 (E R 37,820 47,040
U IRITIRIEFRIB 11,521 16,363
DR R EMIES 11,667 6,519
B I 2,102 2,366
EM I8 508 5,549 6,800
H th & 308 45,755 47,950
327,067 363,214
R ERE (4,827) (13,152)
322,240 350,062
B BNEREL (236,397) (245,568)
JEBNHEAER & 85,843 104,494

it -

BE -

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED % 5=EAR AT

R —_F=ZA=+—H ENEERLK
BEBNAFEENEBUGE T MEERER
B X 7% T 5B 7 4983,843,0007% T (=
T~ — 4 1 95,747,000 7T) 2 BT R EERK
ZEWMERNE TAIEHERE
RTZ@ARET > Bt EESEARD

I 78 5
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3 Y &

24 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 general approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses
12-month or lifetime expected loss allowance for
all deposits and other receivables which constitute
financial assets at amortised cost. Note 3.1(b)
provides for details about the determination of the
allowance.

The carrying amount of prepayments, deposits and
other receivables approximate their fair values.

Denominated in:

HKD BT

RMB AR #&

Others Hih
\\\

b \\.

\ : . /

‘-<0 B / KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED )i % Bl A R A 7
A b,
\ ‘ g i

24 ANFNE BEREMERRK

TE ()

7 8 8 8 7 7% B 765 3 2 0 R 2509 &9
—BATRHEEMEEEE  HEBRE
BHRAHEZ SBEENFERER
it e S AR 121 B S 2 RS
1B o W EE3.1(0) BB A T
BRI o

BNHIE  Ze REMERIRZ KRR
BEEARQFERS -

LT3 E%SHE :
2022 2021
—s=-= T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
28,761 44,271
288,664 304,582
4,815 1,209
322,240 350,062
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25 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed equity investment,
at market value

Unlisted equity investment,
at fair value

Key management insurance,
at fair value

Less: Current portion

Non-current portion

EWERARE - EHE

FLEMBEAKRE  HAFE

TREEERR  BRAFE

B BNERER

FERNHAEE 7

B 7 R % MY 53

25 ERBREBFQVAFEHIIKRZEH

BE

2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FE T

87 91

14,421 11,624
12,684 12,283
27,192 23,998
(14,508) (11,715)
12,684 12,283

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

The above investments at 31 March 2022 were
classified as held for trading and were, upon initial
recognition, classified by the Group as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (2021:
Same).

An insurance plan relating to the chairman of
the Company was included in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as at 31 March
2022 (2021: Same). The total insured sum as
at 31 March 2022 was US$3,500,000 (2021:
US$3,500,000) (equivalent to HK$27,225,000
(2021: HK$27,300,000)). If the Group withdrew from
the insurance policies, the account value, net of
surrender charges, would be refunded to the Group.
The insurance plan was classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual
cash flows are not solely for payments of principal
and interest.

RZEBE-—_FZA=+—HzZ K&
TAERBEEE  WHERERANBASE
EoEASREBRIEATEYERZ &M
BE(ZZE=Z—% : HA) -

W_ZE-_—_F=ZA=Z+—H —HEHH
ARBEREBZRRERFAIZBER
ﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@i@ﬁll%Zé%ﬁﬁFm
—EZ—F: $EH) A
—“A=+—8  ##&%RE%E 53,500,000
%ﬁ(_f——i 3,500,000 7T) (#8
£ 127,225,000 0) (Z & = —F ¢
27,300,000/ 70) ° A KB RR - &
SENEREREFEE (IHRERSE
A) BAREANRSREYIFERAR
SRS RFE - MRBFESEAS
BESEAFENEZEMEE -
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Noﬁss TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7% 3 3= MY &

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 26
TIME DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED

RBeRkReERAY EHF
o ZRFBTERREEA

BANK DEPOSITS AND PLEDGED Xy
DEPOSITS
2022 2021
—EC-CF T —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Pledged deposits (Note (i) BB ER (M 20) 12,326 17,975
Time deposits — original maturity of FEHfFHR—REIEA
more than three months i =1 A 13,355 13,607
Restricted bank deposits (Note (i) PR VER 1T AT R (A 2 ) 650 538
Cash and cash equivalents HeRFES2ZRY 256,934 390,018
283,265 422,138
Denominated in: NT5EEGHE :
2022 2021
—E-—F T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
usD ETT 131,923 240,543
RMB AR 96,247 87,262
HKD BT 37,669 77,858
Others Efh 17,426 16,475
283,265 422,138

\\‘

5 \\
_ A - /
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMé--NTS

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

TIME DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS (continued)

Notes:

(i) As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s pledge deposits
were denominated in RMB and placed in a bank to
secure a bank facility (Note 28) (2021: Same).

(if) Included in restricted bank deposits as at 31 March
2022 are RMB527,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$650,000) (2021: RMB448,000 (equivalent to
HK$538,000)) pledged to bank for trade financing.

As at 31 March 2022, the cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits, restricted bank deposits
and pledged deposits of the Group denominated
in RMB amounted to HK$96,247,000 (2021:
HK$87,262,000). RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies; however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made
for varying periods of between four months and one
year (2021: Same) depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group and earn interest at the
respective time deposit rates.

B 75 3% 3% P =

26 BekAEEEHY EHF

a’A xBE%JﬁE TT? &Eﬁfﬁ#ﬁ
ERE)

(i) RZEFEZZZF=A=+—H x5H
WEEBTFRAARBTELF AR
ITERIRITRYE KR (M28) (=
Z—F AR -

iy M-ZE-—F=ZA=+—BZZEH
BOFEREREAESIMEMERT
BT 2 AR #527,0007C (HHE R H
650,000/ L) (T T - —F: AR¥
448,0007T (HHE 7 49538,000/%7T) ) °

RZZEZ=—F=A=+—H K~EBE
ARBAEZREE MBS SRAY &
HATF 3R R PR IR 77 13 3UA I B 4K 3
F 7 596,247,000 7T (Z T — —4F ¢
87,262,000 7C) ° ARMENTA B B K
BAEEMER A BREMPEAR
HINHINEEIBIEF) RALEE - SER
NEEERE)  AEEBELRUTIR
TEHARE S AREMEBIEITINE

7% -

RITRSRE BT BIRITIF A BRI
MBE - AREZAERESHFE - FHN
FHEAAZE—F(ZT=—4 : {HR) H
A2 F R - WIS TE ME A R R
EUALE »
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NOﬂES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 2 MY =

27 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE,

27 BARIRER - HAEMR

OTHER PAYABLES AND BHNEBE
PROVISIONS
2022 2021
—E=-= —E - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Accounts and bills payable (Note i) FERBERRERE (M) 313,403 562,903
Accrued expenses FEEHRI 24,695 13,234
Other payables H i FE 1B 22,883 23,288
Payable for construction work BETEZERMNFIEA 8,907 35,436
Financial liabilities TEREE 369,888 634,861
Accrued employee benefit expenses EETRERFIMAX 73,763 85,083
VAT and other tax payable EE T R B A e IR 27,007 23,643
Deferred income (Note i) PEIEUR A (AT #tii) 25,599 59,890
Total trade and other payables FERTBR IR K B FE 1 SRIB 42 58 496,257 803,477
Less: Non-current portion of deferred 3 : iBIEUR A 2 ZEBNERER 1D
income (Note ii) (H1 #tii) (17,515) (24,158)
Current portion Bl EA & 10 478,742 779,319
Denominated in: LT EHEHE :
2022 2021
—=E== —T %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
HKD BT 123,348 170,342
RMB AR 355,638 607,736
Others Httb 17,271 25,399
496,257 803,477

A / KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% B 4 1R 2 7]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £ [Z &

B R R M

27 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE, 27 BNRRREE - HttEARK
OTHER PAYABLES AND HEEE®
PROVISIONS (continued)
Notes: B
(i) The accounts and bills payable and other payables (i) JERBRAR R EBR AR EMESREY
are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled Tt AERMEANGEERANE
within credit terms of two months, extending up to &% EEE=[@A -
three months.
The carrying amounts of accounts and other HREMNERREMENSREESR
payables are considered to be the same as their fair HitE AREREEERAZRR
values, due to their short term nature. HERAFE-
At 31 March 2022, the aging analysis of the RZZE-_—F=F=+—H EHNE
accounts and bills payable based on invoice date are HEREBERBEZHZEARZRE> TN
as follows: D
2022 2021
—E=-= —E -4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 - 30 days 0£30H 100,493 167,576
31 - 60 days 31£60H 50,208 102,940
61 — 90 days 61290H 62,118 155,397
Over 90 days 90 H LAk 100,584 136,990
313,403 562,903
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NOﬂES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 2 MY =

27 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE,
OTHER PAYABLES AND
PROVISIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii

The balance mainly represented government grants
received in respect of the subsidies from The
People’s Government of the Dushan County, Guizhou
Province (the “Dushan County Government”) for the
Group’s manufacturing company located in Dushan
County, Guizhou Province, the PRC. These grants
are held as deferred income and recognised to the
income statement on a systematic basis to match
with the costs or the assets’ useful lives that they
are intended to compensate in accordance with the
agreements with the Dushan County Government.
During the year ended 31 March 2022, subsidies of
HK$39,895,000 (2021: HK$36,965,000) had been
recognised and included in subsidy income of “Other
income and gains, net” in the consolidated income
statement.

The movements in deferred income are as follows:

At beginning of the year RET
Additions NE

27 ENRAREE - HtEAR
HEBEE)

Wiz - (4&)

(i

Grant recognised during the year RFNTER Bk
Exchange realignment e i A%
At end of the year RER

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED @SB HBR AR

EHRTIZEEMNEBLUEARKE
(I8 ILSBBAT)) wb s A S B AR
HEEMEELGREERRNHEIR
BT B - SR B IR R A R U
HEREELERABRUNESZSEE
R IR B8 | FE BT AT M 2 W i
ZHRAREENTEAFH - REE
—E-_FZA=Z+—HLEE" B
72 48 Bk 3R 739,895,000 T (=&
— —%E : 36,965,000/ 7T) Wit AR A
ek R A T E MU A R as - F58 ]
B BRI o

BEEWAZZEBT :

2022 2021

—E-= —E -
HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

59,890 82,365

4,399 9,223
(39,895) (36,965)

1,205 5,267

25,599 59,890
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28 BANK BORROWINGS 28 RITEE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E - —F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Unsecured mE A
Current portion BN EREL 412,071 455,689
Non-current portion FEENEAES o 111,800 191,874
523,871 647,563
Secured BEHEF
Current portion BN EREf 5,276 11,983
The Group’s banking facilities are secured by the AEBEZRITHEURRGT RARGEE
corporate guarantees, investment property (Note 16) FHBABAMREZ RRER - BEY
and bank deposits (Note 26) given by the Company ¥ (MFsE16) RBR1TF R (M 5E26) AIiK
and certain subsidiaries of the Company. o
Bank borrowings mature until 2025 and bear |ITEERZ “‘ﬁiﬂﬁﬂ Wiz 19
average interest at 2.8% (2021: 2.7%) per annum. FHRE28% (ZFE=—F:12.7%) 5B -
At 31 March 2022, based on the contractual RZZBEZZF=A=+—H &Re4E
repayment terms including repayable on demand FHEE (BERERKERER A%
clause, the Group’s bank borrowings maturity B RITEEIHI AT
analysis would be as follows:
2022 2021
—s-= —E -
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Within 1 year or on demand R—F R IREL 417,347 467,672
Between 1 and 2 years BB — FENBBME 21,350 191,874
Between 2 and 5 years HBAMTENBERT 90,450 -
529,147 659,546
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STAT
B 7 3R % M

28 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 28

The following table summarises the maturity
analysis of the bank borrowings which are subject
to repayment on demand based on scheduled
repayment dates:

Within 1 year R—FRA
Between 1 and 2 years Bl —FENBBRE
Between 2 and 5 years BERFEENBBARSF

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank
borrowings approximate their fair value.

Denominated in:

HKD BT
RMB AR
UsD ETT

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has uncommitted
undrawn bank facilities amounting to
HK$165,512,000 (2021: HK$83,053,000). As at 31
March 2022, the Group was in compliance with all
bank borrowing covenants (2021: Same).

208 A/ KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #5%tE AR A 7

EMENTS

RITEE @)
TR AR EREBIGEHRZRITE
ERNEEST - DIRERTEERHEBE
gl
2022 2021
—=E== —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
17,500 27,500
21,875 27,500
26,250 10,000
65,625 65,000
AEBRTEEZREEERE A FERM
NT5E%GHE :
2022 2021
—s=-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
293,613 401,533
209,382 193,172
26,152 64,841
529,147 659,546

R_ZE-_—FZA=+—H8 A£@2Z
RIBEIEAFEIRITAE £165,512,000
iar_m:“:—i 83,053,000/ 7T) °
W_E-—fF= ﬂ + B AL£ED
BTYRBRITEEZ#H(ZE=_—F
) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMéNTS
5 %% R ak MY =

29 DEFERRED TAX 29 EEHIE

B B A TE AT BT R N AT A5 B B AT AS R
BERNFMEHAEEMREHE - ME
SRS IER — M B EAR EH—HH

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related BRIEMEHEERBER AT - L3
to the same fiscal authority. The balances shown in EiEEE  SEEERABEXRITA ﬁ%ﬁu
the consolidated balance sheet, after appropriate ™

offsetting, are as follows:

2022 2021

—E=-= —E - —F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Deferred income tax assets EEMSTHEE 5,745 8,202
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMBHARE (40,075) (37,097)
Net deferred income tax liabilities RIEFSHAE F58 (34,330) (28,895)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets BELHRBEENMNEERNFTFRNZEEHW
during the year are as follows: T:
Gross deferred tax liabilities

EERB AR ERE

Depreciation
allowance in

excess of
related
depreciation Others Total
WERE
BHER
TENESE Hth @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET FETT
At 1 April 2020 N-ZE_ZTF
MA—H 32,400 1,318 33,718
Deferred tax debited to FARERNBRZ
equity during the year IR IR TE 10,519 - 10,519
Deferred tax debited to FRRREE
the income statement Mk ZELEHE
during the year (Note 11) (HiiF11) - 700 700
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 1,096 - 1,096
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—F
—H= ‘f’ H 44,015 2,018 46,033
Deferred tax credited to FARERTAZ
equity during the year EIEFL T8 (5,486) - (5,486)
Deferred tax debited to & W N
the income statement Wk 2 ELEFRHE
during the year (Note 11) (Hat11) - 705 705
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 5 B 757 - 757
At 31 March 2022 R-E—-—
=A=+—8H 39,286 2,723 42,009
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ e E:

29 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29 EEBIIE (&)
Gross deferred tax assets EEBEEEHLTE
Deferred
subsidy
income Others Total
BEEREBA Hitr @it

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FEL FEL FET

At 1 April 2020 A _ETFMYA—H 20,280 606 20,886
Deferred tax (debited)/credited to FAR W= E

the income statement (%), FtAZ

during the year (Note 11) EERIIA (K 5E11) (6,685) 1,583 (5,102)
Exchange realignment [ 5 % 1,308 51 1,354
At 31 March 2021 RZZEZ—F=A=+—H 14,898 2,240 17,138
Deferred tax debited to FARKEE

the income statement Mk 2 EIERIE

during the year (Note 11) (Bat11) (8,798) (950) (9,748)
Exchange realignment R 300 (11) 289
At 31 March 2022 R-ZEBE-_—_F=F=+—H 6,400 1,279 7,679
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMéNTS

29 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$28,363,000 (2021: HK$20,414,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose.

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland
China of HK$75,211,000 (2021: HK$69,144,000)
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law,
a 10% (2021: Same) withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% (2021:
Same). The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated since 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2022, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China (2021: Nil). In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of temporary differences on undistributed profit
of the subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately HK$632,412,000 (2021:
HK$746,457,000) at 31 March 2022,

29
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B 75 R 3% Y =

EERIE (2)
AREBEBREBEAEALA Z2HEBIE
28,363,000 L (=& — — & :

20,414,000/ 7T) + A & [R HA B P 4K 88
EEBEZRFZARER GF -

AEBIIRFE A ESERES
75,211,000 L (Z & = — F
69,144,000 70) * #H — & 7 F 2 &
FARAHE 88 R 2R B SR B v A o

BT IR E E YW A5 % F B R F R
w AREBRELECEA —REHE
REBEMRR 2B AR - BERTUE A
# A KA BE AR R IH TR A B 1R -

RIBFPEGEMEVE - R ERAK
ZIERELERIBEREETIK
B BIR10% (ZT——F : HR) &
WM - WREA —_FTTNF—A—
BEAN  WERAR _-_ZTTLF+_H
=t —RRZEN o fi B A RN
KREZEZRZERARIEERSE B
& RIFERABEZEMBE - gl L
BmE BRANER%(ZE_—%:
MR - At AEEBEETHFEAM
KL ZEEWNBARILE —TF/N\F—
A—RARELZBHHAD IR BEBNT
B -

RZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H  TEHRAK
EEPFE AT 2 M B A R A
mammz*zm&wzgﬁﬁmm
BEFB(ZE-—F E) - EFH
mﬁ ZEMBRREAERRKTK
AEgENREBEEF RZTE_—_F=H
—t— B ARRAHERECHREEE
2 B A M B A B R IR i M) 2 R
EEBAEE A HH5632,412,0008 T (=
T~ — 4 1 746,457,000 7T) °




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3 Y &

30 SHARE CAPITAL 30 BRA
2022 2021
—E=-= —E - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Authorised: JETE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000% & %
HK$0.10 each H{EC.10B T & Bk 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
438,960,000 438,960,000%
(2021: 438,960,000) T —F:
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 438,960,000/% ) & %
E{E0.10/8 7T 2 T ik 43,896 43,896
A summary of movements in the Company’s share RNATIRANSEFEZ T -
capital is as follows:
Number of Share
shares in premium
issue account Total
2ET
ROEA R 47 15 1B Bk @t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT
At 1 April 2020, RZE-TFEMNA—H -
31 March 2021 and —E-—FZfA=+-EBA
31 March 2022 —E--F=ZA=+—H 438,960,000 156,015 199,911
A / KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED 3 sk EBR A ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z i &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMéNTS

31 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company
terminated the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 20 August 2002 (the “Old Share
Option Scheme”) and adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) pursuant
to a resolution passed in the annual general meeting
dated 20 August 2012 which became effective on
the same date. The New Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for ten years commencing from the
effective date, after which period no further options
will be granted but the provisions of the New Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
option granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the
New Share Option Scheme.

The New Share Option Scheme

The Company operates the New Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the New Share Option Scheme
include the directors, including independent non-
executive directors, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, any person or entity
that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group, the Company’s
shareholders and any non-controlling interests in
the Company’s subsidiaries. The New Share Option
Scheme became effective on 20 August 2012 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the New Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

31
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31 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the
date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer
of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

As at 31 March 2022, there were 1,000,000 options
(2021: 1,000,000 options) granted but not yet
exercised under the New Share Option Scheme.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E&&EEAR A7
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BRERS 2

BT 8 ()

MARREE TBITBRABREER
B SEMBEARHERE  AS
SEBILIEMITESROE o 1A AFE
I+ —@AEE m—uARFEER
R BULIERTESHESETAHEA
BRHBHARRTMEMDETRG
0.1%3k #8 H 42 185,000,000 7T (1R &
REBHARRBMDERSE) ZTM
B BEARBREAS EEREL
JE ©

ARARARBEROBREZSE AR
AT ABARREXNBERES KIS
TTEMBRERLEZ RhBREZ
TEPHEFRT  NETHBHRHA
W WRNER BRI RZ B R+
FZHBKLE -

BREZITEERESZRTE BFEE
R TEREE (AR R RGO ERE
EZEHEBRSHTZBRME () BEE
FEHAERSAAR RN ERR
Frz FHWTE  RiiyARAE /G 2E
& -

BREYTE THAEADZRE N
RRGEEREZRERN -

R-ZB-Z_F=A=+—8 - HERE
=T 2118 T /F1,000,00019 B #% H {8 & &
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31 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31 BRESTSE (2
The following share options were outstanding under BIEFTEREAZRFEFRNDRITEZE
the New Share Option Scheme during the year: RERELN T -
2022 —E-_F
Price of the
Company's
Number of share options des
RRRAE immediately
At At hefore the
1 April 31 March grant date
Vesting period 021 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 022 Exercise K27
Date of share 8R4 1 during during during i pice  BARBE
options granted from to ZEZ-F  theyear  theyear  theyear =F=ZF Exerciseperiod  pershare  BXAHH
REBRERY ] E BA-B  HERRE  RERGE  WEAZN ZAZt-H k8  SROEE k8
HKS HKS
AT A
Directors
iz
Wong Chi Wai 1112017 400,000 - - - 400000 7/7/2017 - 6/7/2027 2.262 2220
Bl 12017 MR0tT 121972017 100,000 - - - 100,000  13/9/2017 - 6/7/2027 2.262 2.220
91112018 972018 12/9/2018 100,000 - - - 100,000 13/9/2018 - 8/7/2028 2410 2410
Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian 9/1/2018 9/7/2018  12/9/2018 100,000 - - - 100,000 13/9/2018 - 8/7/2028 2410 2410
#En
Cheng Kok Kin, Paul 1112017 100,000 - - - 100,000 7/7/2017 - 6/7/2021 2.262 2.220
ik 91112018 100,000 - - - 100,000 9/7/2018 - 8/7/2028 2410 2410
Cheung Wang Ip 9/1/2018 9/7/2018  20/7/2018 100,000 - - - 100,000 21/7/2018 - 8/7/2028 2410 2410
Fi%
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
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31 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31 BRESTE (2
The following share options were outstanding under RIEEBRETSI LB E ([3Z
the Old Share Option Scheme and New Share S:E)) RFERDAITEZ BAED
Option Scheme (the “Schemes”) during the year: o
2021 —E %
Price of the
Number of share options Coms:;yez
BhiEgn -
immediately
At At Defore the
1 Aprl 31 March grant date
Vesting period 2020 Granted ~ Exercised Lapsed 2001 Exercise A7
Date of share BEH i during during during i pice  BRRZE
options granted from o -E-5% the year the year theyer —E--% Exercise period pershare BB
RLERERS ] I OBA-R AERRE  AEROE REAXE ZAZT-R ks SRARE RE
HKS HKS
& -4
Directors
iz
Wong Chi Wai WA Note MiE 300,000 - - (300000) - 290302011 - 28132021 279 2110
Bl 01T Note iz 400,000 - - - 400000 7712017 - 61712027 2082 220
1017 017 12092017 100,000 - - - 100000 13/9/2017 - 6/7/2027 2082 220
9/7/2018 972018 121912018 100,000 - - - 100,000 13/9/2018 - 8/7/2028 2410 2470
Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian W31 Note it 300,000 - - (300,000 - 29032011 - 28/3/2021 219 2770
EEn 91712018 972018 12/9/2018 100,000 - - - 100,000 13/9/2018 - 8/7/2028 2410 2470
Cheng Kiwok Kin, Paul 01T Note iz 100,000 - - - 100000 7702017 - 61702027 2282 220
ek 91018 Note iz 100,000 - - - 100000 9/7/2018-8/7/2028 2410 2410
Cheung Wang p 91712018 972018 20172018 100,000 - - - 100000 21/7/2018 - 8/7/2028 2410 2470
Rix
Other employees
ifEs
In aggregate 203011 Note Hiiz 650,000 - - (650,000 - 29032011 - 28/3/2021 219 2710
Bit Y1018 Note it 100,000 - - (100,000) - 912018 - 8/7/2028 2410 2470

2,350,000 - - (13500000 1,000,000
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the Schemes. Should they be fully exercised,
the Company will receive HK$2,345,000 (2021:
HK$2,345,000) (before issue expenses). The
exercise in full of these share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 1,000,000 (2021: 1,000,000)
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$100,000 (2021:
HK$100,000) and share premium of approximately
HK$2,245,000 (2021: HK$2,245,000) (before issue
expenses).

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#%EAR A a]

31 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31 BIRESTE (2
Note: R
Vested upon granted. RIFLRFEEB -
During the year ended 31 March 2022, no share BE - ZE-_—_F#=ZA=Z+—B1t#HF
options are lapsed (2021: share options amounted EoEEREEAN(ZETE —F -
to HK$1,098,000 were lapsed) and no share option 1,098,000/ 7T 2 B AR #E B R0 RFE R
expenses were recognised during the year (2021: WEEABRER S (T —F &) -
Nil).
The following share options were outstanding under TR ZEEHEIE T EARITEABERE
the Schemes during the year: RN
2022 2021
—_E2- —E-—F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
IR 5 kY
TEE BREZE IE(E BRESEA
HK$ per HK$ per
share share
F R E T ZRE T
At the beginning of year RE ] 2.345 1,000,000 2.588 2,350,000
Lapsed during the year FREKM - — 2,768 (1,350,000)
At the end of year RFE R 2.345 1,000,000 2.345 1,000,000
As at 31 March 2022, the Company had 1,000,000 RZE-_—_F=A=+—H ' KAA7
(2021: 1,000,000) share options outstanding under % % 5 118 N % A 1,000,00013 (=

Z — —4 : 1,000,00013) HARITE 2 B
BEHE - WZEERBERETE AR
A G U R2,345,0008 L (ZE = —4F ¢
2,345,000/ 70) (RO #EITHAE)
RIBARG 2R ERLERE  BEITE
7 5 BB IR 8 8 BB M 171,000,000
f% (—Z = —4% : 1,000,0000%) & A 7]
I3 iz N2 B8 H1NET G A% A5 100,0005% JT
—ZF— —4 : 100,000/ 7T) KA K K15
i B #92,245,0008 70 (Z & = —F ¢
2,245,000/ 70) (R HBREITHZ) °
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32

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares
of the aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation on 7
April 1998 and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

Other reserve represents the excess of the
consideration over the share of net assets acquired

32 f#%E
FEERAEE RAEEE Y HERE
REBBHHBEORPHERE 2GR
BHENLF -

218

from non-controlling interests.

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33

AND BALANCES

(@) Key management compensation

Key management includes executive directors
of the Group. The compensation of key
management personnel of the Group is shown

below:

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions

Total compensation paid to
key management personnel

Note:

e ERER
BEWE T
BAKRESETEIHR

ENETEEEASR
e EE

Further details of the directors’ and the chief
executive’s emoluments are included in Note 10 to

the financial statements.

\
\
\
/
/
. /
X /
/
\\ o
\. /—_,

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %% EAR AT

AEBZHANBBRERBER -ANNEF
MAEtRETZSESHEMEBEREAR
AIARRCAR 2 B EE R AR B BEZ AR

ZHMBETROEEZ ZHE -

H b i e (L E R L R A SRR A s

T EEFEZHBD °

FEBALRS RELR

(a)

FTEEE ABSH M

TEEEABBRASENTE
FoAEETIZERABZHEMN

™~

2022 2021
—=E—= -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
15,180 15,304
72 72
15,252 15,376

it -

EENERSTHRABHMZE—THF
BEHRMBRERM 0.
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AND BALANCES (continued)

(b) Significant transactions with related (b)

parties

The directors of the Company are of the view
that Unicon Investments Limited and Century
Grand International Limited (Note), companies
owned by Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, are related

parties of the Group.

Lease expense paid to a related party

Unicon Investments Limited

(Note)

Century Grand International Limited
(Note)

Addition of right-of-use assets
Unicon Investments Limited
(Note)
Century Grand International Limited
(Note)

Interest expense of lease liabilities
Unicon Investments Limited
(Note)
Century Grand International Limited
(Note)

Note:

7 A BA B A 32
ZHEFAX
HEREARAR
(Ktaz)
EXEERERAR]
(KHtet)

NEERREE
HEREARAF
(Btet)
EXBERERAR
(KHtet)

HERBZMEMX
HEREARAF
(Htet)
EXBERERAR
(Ktit)

The lease agreement was conducted in accordance

with the terms as agreed by both parties.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

33 BHEBATIXRIREGRE)

HERBALIZEERS

ARBEEAR  MEBELER
BERRRMBEREARRAARE
KRERBRRDE (Bat) RAKE

MWABRBAL -

2022 2021
—=E== —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
1,498 1,498

36 -

- 4,250

610 -

81 132

4 _

Hpat -

THE W ok Ty AR IR AT 4958 7 13 7€ 22 163K

17 -
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34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,

proceeds from disposal of property,
and equipment comprise:

Net book amount:

Property, plant and equipment
(Note 15)

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
(Note 6)

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR e e

34 ZEBRERERMT

(a) HEWE BERRBHAERE

Fﬁ?éfﬁémiﬁm Hj%%% N

plant B iR s P S IR B 4E
2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FE T
BREFE
ME - WE REE
(Htat15) 56 3,997
PEWE - BERZE
ZWa (E18)
(H#tite6) 34 (1,195)
Hﬂﬂ%% J?‘ﬁ}%&
A FTAS 90 2,802

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #msEHER A A
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34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

/8
i

-

B 75 3% 3% P =

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt
and the movement in net debt for each of the

periods presented:

Cash and cash equivalents
Liquid investment (Note 25)
Pledged deposits (Note 26)
Bank borrowings (Note 28)
Lease liabilities (Note 17)

Net debts

Note:

Liquid investments comprise current investments that
are traded in an active market, being the Group’s
financial assets held at fair value through profit or

loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 [Z ¥

(b) FEBHIK

34 ZEBRERERMT (2

AR ER & 5 & B A PSR R R

RO MES
2022 2021
—EC-CF T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
BEMRESERY 256,934 390,018
MBI E (K 5725) 14,508 11,715
BEBIFR (A i726) 12,326 17,975
IRTTIEE (K iF28) (529,147) (659,546)
WMEBEWZE17) (12,920) (3,772)
AT (258,299) (243,610)

Bt

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED % 5=EAR AT

MBERERRENERMISEEZ)
PHE HAREREERBRRR
FEINEZEREE -

g
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34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continued)

(b)

Net debt reconciliation (continued)

2022
Net debt as at

31 March 2021
Net cash movement
Exchange realignment
Other movements

Net debt as at
31 March 2022

2021
Net debt as at
31 March 2020
Cash at bank included in
assets held for sale
Net cash movement
Exchange realignment
Other movements

Net debt as at
31 March 2021

\\‘

5 \\\.
_ A - /
2  /
N i,

—E-CF%

RZZ--%=R
=T-BZEER

ReRyEE

ERAE

£128

R-ZBE-ZF=H
=+-RZFEE

—E--F
R-Z-TF=R
“+-RZFEE
BENGELEEE
ZETRE
k- E)t
BEHAR

Eng®

WZEZ-F=R
=+-RZFEE

34 mEBE

(b) FEBHIKE)

==
DI[p==A

RMEE2)

Cash
and cash Liquid Pledged Bank Other Lease
equivalents  investment deposits borrowings  financing liabilities Total
ReRKE
SEYM RBHRE CEAER  RTEE  HERE  HEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT TET  TET  TET  TET  TER
390,018 11,7115 17,975 (659,546) - (3,772)  (243,610)
(140,887) - (6,078) 136,396 - 4,453 (6,116)
7,803 - 429 (5,997) - (69) 2,166
- 2,793 - - - (13,532) (10,739)
256,934 14,508 12,326 (529,147) - (12,920) (258,299)
244,681 8,533 - (676,809) (32,826) (4,000) (460,421)
595 - - - - - 59
137,677 - 17,309 27,113 34,042 1,752 217,893
7,065 - 666 (9,850) (1,216) (146) (3,481)
- 3,182 - - - (1,378) 1,804
390,018 11,715 17,975 (659,546) - (8,772) (243,610)

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED %= E B R AR
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35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35 REREszZEMIA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of R|EHR SEcm T AEZEEEW
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting o

period are as follows:

2022 2021
—E-C& g5
Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at  assets at fair assets at
value through amortised  value through amortised
profit or loss cost  profit or loss cost
RAYE R BATE birg 5
iRz  BAFER SRz HAEHEZ
SREE tHEE CREAE SRAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Accounts and bills receivable T ES - 289,319 - 368,089
Deposits and other receivables Be RE M EW R - 61,990 - 63,608
Cash deposits BeHR = 283,265 - 422,138
Financial assets at fair value BRBEEATETIRY
through profit or loss SREE 27,192 - 23,998 -
27,192 634,574 23,998 853,835
Financial liabilities tREE
Financial liabilities at REERATEL
amortised cost: SRBE:
Accounts and bills payable BRI RERE 313,403 562,903
Financial liabilities included AAARMENRIER
in other payables, accrued BiBEzZERAR
liabilities 56,797 71,958
Bank borrowings BIEE 529,147 659,546
Lease liabilities HEER 12,920 3,772
912,267 1,298,179
Note: Bt -
The fair values of the financial assets at amortised cost REBERAFEZEREEZ ATFEEAR
approximate their carrying amounts. HE{EHESE °

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £ [E i KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#%EAR A a] \ } _
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION AND RESERVE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ¥R 2R Y 5

36 ARBzUBMRRARRFES
)

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries

Financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss

Current assets
Prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents
Tax recoverable

Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Share capital

Reserves (Note)

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Accrued liabilities and other payables
Bank borrowings

Total current liabilities

Non-current liability
Bank borrowings

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

¥NTNET Bl B 3 O
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
BE
ERBEE
N NIEINGEIPA - o 875,570 918,370
BBETEATEYERZ
ETHEE 12,684 12,283
888,254 930,653
RBEE
BT FRIE = 1
e kReERY 2,486 28,769
Ay W B 7 I8 195 195
MEEELT 2,681 28,965
wmEE 890,935 959,618
%
APTAERSEAREGER
1% 43,896 43,896
s (Haz) 614,884 616,068
ESEEE 658,780 659,964
=L
REBEE
et B8 M E AL B 3UR 4,906 4,896
RITEE 141,849 150,384
mEBAaELRE 146,755 155,280
FREBEE
RITEE 85,400 144,374
=R 232,155 299,654
HERREE 890,935 959,618

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E&&EEAR A7
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nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
Company’s contributed surplus is available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie under certain
circumstances prescribed by section 54 thereof.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED % 5=EAR AT

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 36 EATZHMBMRRERRFER
POSITION AND RESERVE By ()
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
Note: Wit -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARRIZHEERERT :
Share Share-based Capital
premium payment  redemption Contributed Retained
account reserve reserve surplus profits Total
MR A
RE#Z RAEE
KRB RER DL 1 BABH REEHN @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
Tz Tz Tz -2 FEx TiEx
At 1 April 2020 RZZ-ZFMA-A 156,015 1,768 14 104,750 356,362 618,909
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - (2,841) (2,841)
Lapse of share option BREXR - (1,098) - - 1,008 -
At 31 March 2021 and RZZZ-§=f=1—H
1 April 2021 RZE-Z-%¥mA—-H 156,015 670 14 104,750 354,619 616,068
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (1,184) (1,184)
At 31 March 2022 RZE-Z§=R=+-H 156,015 670 14 104,750 353,435 614,884
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the RATZEARGIERER —SZHMKEY
excess of the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries WEBAR SR Y AHEESFEBE AR T
acquired pursuant to the same reorganisation, over the AT S MBATRMOEE Y =5 -

RIEERE NN —FRAE - HE54EET
BARATEEFERTARARBIERS
SRR REWHE -
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37 OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

37 HEMENRH

The Group leases its investment properties
(Note 16) under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms of one year.

At 31 March 2022,

the Group had total

future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants

falling due as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

(b) As lessee

—F R
E_FEELF
(BHREREMSF)

The Group leases certain of its office properties
and warehouses under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to two

years.

At 31 March 2022,

the Group had total

future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows:

Within one year

—FR

From 1 April 2019, the Group has recognised
right-of-use assets for these leases, except for
' short-term lease commitments as disclosed

above

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 E AR A A

(a)

(b)

ERHBEA
AEBRELLHOLTHEEE
BEWME (MH16) - HAKLER

MEEZHBA—%F -

R-ZTE-_—_F=A=+—H K&
B RN T3 H R 2 B 2 B AR
AZ NI HEGEHEOFEK 2
RREEESBELOT

2022 2021

—Es-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

766 213

1,179 -

1,975 213
EHAME A

AEERBLEHNLHERAES
THRAEMERRE - MEBNK
EEMEE2ERN T —EMF -

RZZEZZF=RA=+—H &%
B AR5 7 T 71 A RS B B 2 7 BT
S B HOFTEN < KRR &K
CHREENT

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET

468 6

B-ZT-NFOA-HBHE BKRLEX
P EE 2 FE I S AGESN - AEH
ERREHERREREEE -
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38 COMMITMENTS 38 &iE

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the RERBFTNERAREEZEAT BN

year but not yet incurred is as follows: N
2022 2021
—_E-— T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Property, plant and equipment WME - BENERB 69,709 79,253

Properties under development and BERPMENKREDE

investment properties 393,210 400,663

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F[Z & KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &= E B R A A]
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B L E

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t+-HLFE
RESULTS £ 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—B-C-f —F--f ZT-FTF —ZT-NEF ZT-N\F
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET FET

REVENUE L é: 2,316,315 2,693,865 3,114221 4221878 3,034,274
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX BRAT SR AER 74,407 140,055 196,458 129,171 182,325
Income tax expense FEmAX (17,549)  (35,914) (22,821) (18,760) (32,619)
Loss for the year from discontinued & IEEERE 2 F A

operation B8 = (702) (8,272) - -
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRF 56,858 103,439 165,365 110,411 149,706
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: RN 3::)

Equity holders of the Company NSIL: $2 352 DN 56,858 103,626 170,049 112,384 149,821

Non-controlling interests FERES = (187) (4,684) (1,973) (115)

56,858 103,439 165,365 110,411 149,706

As at 31 March
R=A=+-8
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C-E —FT--f ZT-FTF —T-NF ZT-N\F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE 1,240,517 1,336,631 1,325,819 1,541,484 1,240,511
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE 1,677,566 1,874,202 1548542 1,847,987 1,623,224
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 2,918,083 3,210,833 2,874,361 3,389,471 2,863,735
CURRENT LIABILITIES MEEE (1,151,842) (1,456,316) (1,265,474) (2,040,170) (1,264,231)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES krRBEE (176,331)  (255,021)  (382,805)  (139,375)  (441,460)
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEE (1,328,173) (1,711,337) (1,648,279) (2,179,545) (1,705,691
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,589,910 1,499,496 1,226,082 1,209,926 1,158,044
: 228 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED )i =B AR A 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 Z %
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